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The pace of change over the past year has been 
challenging, both as an individual organisation 
and as part of the wider NHS.  This report looks 
back over the year and provides information on 
our achievements, challenges and successes.  Fur-
ther detail is included within the report but here 
we summarise, in our welcome to you, some of 
the key highlights and challenges of 2017/18.

Careful planning and sustained hard work have 
underpinned what has proved to be a very 
successful 12 months for the Trust.

Our Highlights

In April we launched our Trust Strategy which 
set out how we intend to deliver our six strategic 
goals over the next five years. We have made 
great strides to deliver this in our first year.  

We introduced a role devoted to patient and car-
er experience and engagement to ensure patients 
and carers remain at the centre of everything we 
do and that we learn from their experiences.

We are also proud to be able to report that 
we have improved our services and that these 
improvements have been externally validated 
by our regulator, the Care Quality Commission 
(CQC), and we are now rated as ‘good’.  

In October this year, 12 months or so after being 
rated ‘requires improvement’, the CQC visited the 
Trust again to check our progress by conducting 
a comprehensive well-led inspection.  Three 
months later, the CQC delivered the news we 
had all been working towards by declaring that 
overall our services were ‘good’.

We achieved a significant improvement in our 
services in less than 16 months, improving 

our safety, effectiveness, responsiveness and 
leadership while maintaining our ‘good’ standard 
of care.  Two aspects of our services for people 
with learning disability and autism – care and 
responsiveness – are now rated ‘outstanding’ – a 
standard we aspire to achieve across all of our 
services.

To go from ‘requires improvement’ to ‘good’ 
making improvements across all five categories in 
such a short period of time represents a remark-
able turnaround in the Trust’s performance and 
is a fitting tribute to the extraordinary effort, 
commitment and loyalty of our staff. They are 
the backbone of the Trust and the reason for our 
success. Without their boundless enthusiasm and 
determination to always ‘go the extra mile’ to 
deliver, we would not have risen to the challenge 
and achieved the improvements demanded by 
the CQC.

We would like to take this opportunity to 
formally record our thanks to them for everything 
they have done and continue to do.

One area the CQC inspection identified as 
‘requires improvement’ was the domain of ‘Safe’, 
and we are working hard to address the issues 
raised to ensure our performance in this area 
improves.

Our commitment to research continued this year 
in May when we hosted our first major research 
conference – Developing a City of Research 
2017 - where we launched our Research Strategy.  
The conference demonstrated the importance we 
place on our community having the chance to 
contribute to high quality research that will shape 
future innovation and delivery of services.  

Chairman and Chief Executive’s foreword

Welcome from 
Chairman and 
Chief Executive
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The conference heard from people who access 
our services and take part in our studies - as 
well as hearing from national and international 
experts. 

We’ve managed to progress, it is fair to say, 
despite a less than encouraging backdrop char-
acterised by a familiar challenge: using limited 
resources to provide more and better services 
to a growing number of people, many of them 
elderly and frail or with complex needs.

We began the year by opening our ‘crisis pad’ for 
adults in emotional distress in Hull - a service re-
cently complemented by a pilot facility for young 
people - and were delighted to receive £700,000 
of NHS funding to improve our accident and 
emergency (A&E) mental health services. 

We established a private limited company this 
year - Humber Primary Care Limited - to enable 
us to hold General Medical Services (GMS) to 
develop services for our communities.

We added Northpoint GP Practice, in Bran-
sholme, and Peeler House Surgery, in Hessle, 
to our primary care portfolio, which is now six 
practices strong and growing. All of our practices 
are rated ‘good’ by the CQC and one, Chestnuts 
Surgery, in Cottingham, has ‘outstanding’ 
features.

The Trust also took responsibility for providing 
services at Granville Court, a specialist service in 
Hornsea for people with profound and multiple 
learning difficulties; we won a highly prized 

NHS England tender to develop a much-needed 
mental health inpatient unit for young people 
living north and south of the River Humber; and 
we gained an extension to our Health Trainers’ 
healthy lifestyle contract in the East Riding - all 
tremendous achievements.

We were also successful in securing a tender to 
provide community services for adults in Scar-
borough and Ryedale - services we will deliver 
from early in the new year (1 May 2018).  These 
will build upon our services in Pocklington and 
Whitby.

We continue to be a key partner in the Humber 
Coast and Vale Sustainability and Transformation 
Partnership (STP) and continue to work closely 
with all the partner organisations to deliver a 
more integrated health and social care system of 
provision.  

Our Humber Recovery College, which goes 
from strength to strength, held a successful and 
well-attended conference, as did the Perinatal 
Mental Health and Research and Development 
teams, and our Social Mediation and Self-Help 
Service (SMASH) produced superb results. 

Professor Nav Kapur, who leads the National 
Confidential Inquiry into Suicide and Homicide by 
People with Mental Illness, visited to inspire our 
work on suicide prevention, while his colleague, 
Professor Louis Appleby, literally added gloss to 
the Humber Centre’s 25th birthday celebrations 
by helping to paint one of the secure forensic 
service’s new murals. 

Our community mental health services were 
found to be performing better than expected - 
one of only three trusts in the country compared 
to other trusts - results which drew praise and 
congratulations from the CQC, and we were 
shortlisted for a Health Service Journal Patient 
Safety Award. 

Throughout the year we promoted and entered 
a number of external awards and were delighted 
to have been successful in the Team of the Year 
category of the British Journal of Midwifery 
Practice Awards and the General Practice Nurse 

of the Year category of the local General Practice 
Nursing Awards.  

We welcomed a new Medical Director, Dr John 
Byrne, and - months later - a new Non-Executive 
Director, Francis Patton.  We held a well-attended 
Annual Members’ Meeting and celebrated our 
employees’ success at our 2017 Staff Awards. 

Our wonderful charity, Health Stars, continued to 
‘add sparkle’ to our services throughout the year. 
We are extremely grateful for their tremendous 
support.

The innovation and success continued into the 
New Year with the opening of our new ‘step-
down’ service for recovering mental health pa-
tients. The Trust retained a contract to continue 
operating Field House Surgery, a GP practice in 
Bridlington, after turning around its fortunes; and 
our Research and Development team announced 
that one of the keynote speakers at its second 
research conference would be Professor Alistair 
Burns, the National Clinical Director for Demen-
tia.

We are delighted with our achievements this year 
and our ongoing improvement journey continues.

Although the CQC’s report is a positive validation 
of our efforts to continually improve our services, 
we acknowledge that we still have work to do. 

In April 2018 we became ‘Humber Teaching NHS 
Foundation Trust’. This will further progress our 
strategic aim to be recognised as a world-class 
specialist education and teaching provider. This 
will be an important strategic development in the 

SHARON MAYS 

Chairman 

MICHELE MORAN 

Chief Executive 

year ahead and will emphasise our commitment 
to delivering excellent services to our patients 
and carers, development opportunities for staff, 
and to continue to work with our academic part-
ners to nurture the future generation of doctors, 
nurses and other healthcare professionals.  

As we move forwards, we continue to 
deliver on our pledge to put patients 
and their families at the centre of their 
care and to make as much of a positive 
difference to their lives as we can. We 
will continue to care, learn and grow 
together.

Our journey continues.

Health Stars

Crisis Pad at St Andrew’s Place
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Overview of Performance 

well as some team members who had received 
national awards for good practice.

The learning disability service also undertook 
innovative practice to support patient discharge 
into the local community.”

The CQC’s report showed we had improved 
our overall rating from ‘requires improvement’ 
to ‘good’ in less than 16 months, improving 
our safety, effectiveness, responsiveness and 
leadership while maintaining our ‘good’ standard 
of care.

The regulator said that since our last inspection, 
in 2016, five of our 19 key services had improved 
– meaning 16 were now ‘good’ and three 
‘required improvement’.

To have received such an overwhelmingly 
positive, independent, external validation of 
our efforts to improve our services is testament 
to the extraordinarily hard work of our staff. 
Our improvement is down to them and, once 
again, I’d like to formally record my thanks and 
gratitude to them for everything they have done 
– and continue to do – for the Trust.

Although I’m thrilled with the progress we have 
made, I’d also like to reassure our patients, their 
carers and relatives, our stakeholders and the 
CQC that the Trust is fully aware that we have a 

The purpose of this Performance Report is to provide information 
on Trust services and our vision, values and strategic aims. It also 
provides information on our development, performance and the 
principal risks to our objectives during 2017/18.

A statement from the Chief Executive

I am delighted to be able to report that the 
Trust’s performance has improved during the 
period covered by this report.

I can declare this because our regulator, the Care 
Quality Commission (CQC), has said as much 
in its latest report on our services, published in 
January 2018.  

Jenny Wilkes, the CQC’s Head of Inspection 
for Mental Health, said: “CQC has seen a real 
improvement in services at Humber NHS Founda-
tion Trust, and these changes move their overall 
rating from Requires Improvement to Good.  At 
this most recent comprehensive inspection we 
saw exceptionally caring, kind and compassionate 
staff who involved patients in their own care.”

Ms Wilkes went on to say our services were 
more responsive to people’s needs; discharge 
was embedded from the point of admission; 
senior leaders and commissioners met regularly 
and protected patients from having to remain in 
hospital unnecessarily; and that complaints were 
listened to and acted on.

She said some of our practices were ‘outstand-
ing’, adding: “In the learning disability service, 
there was a real culture of development and 
improvement where staff were striving for 
excellence.  Inspectors saw staff undertaking 
additional training to enhance their practice, as 

Performance 
Report
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lot of work to do and are in no way complacent 
about the task at hand.

The CQC assessed us as ‘requires improvement’ 
in the Safe domain and although an improve-
ment on the previous inspection, we are working 
to address the issues raised to ensure our per-
formance in this domain improves - and as in all 
domains, strive for continuous quality improve-
ment which will be a key focus of the year ahead.

Improving our performance will require careful 
planning and sustained effort to achieve our 
goals, not arbitrary and sporadic bursts of 
activity. We all know that we have a lot to do – 
and we are determined to do it.

In April we launched our Trust Strategy which 
set out how we intend to deliver our six stra-
tegic goals over the next five years.  We have 
progressed in a number of areas and work 
continues.

Despite our success, there have been many 
challenges during the course of the year, not 
least a service demobilisation – the ending of 
our contract to provide mental health services in 
the Pocklington area – and a service mobilisation 
– the provision of adult community services in 
Scarborough and Ryedale, which will come on 
stream in May this year.

There has also been the need to provide more 
and better services to an ageing population, 
many with very complex health problems, with 
limited financial resources.

deliver a more integrated health and social care 
system of provision.  We maintain a crucial role 
in this partnership, with my role as executive 
lead - in addition to leading the mental health 
work stream - ensuring that the STP priorities are 
reflected in our strategic and operational plans.  

The Trust has welcomed a new Medical Director, 
Interim Chief Operating Officer, Non-Executive 
Director and Governors. We have overhauled our 
approach to quality and workforce and organisa-
tional development, and given a massive boost 
to our determination to ensure patients and their 
carers remain at the centre of everything we 
do by employing a Head of Patient and Carer 
Experience and Engagement – a role devoted 
to doing just that – engaging with patients and 
carers and learning from their experiences.

Our mission is to be a ‘multi-specialty healthcare 
and teaching provider committed to our values of 
caring, learning and growing’. 

One of the key steps along this journey is to 
incorporate teaching into our trust name from 1 
April 2018.  This move has been approved by our 
Council of Governors and Board of Directors and 
supported by our partners and stakeholders.

Our strategic goals are: 

• innovating in quality and patient safety; 

• enhancing prevention, wellbeing and 
recovery; 

• fostering integration, partnership and 
alliances; 

• developing an effective and empowered 
workforce; 

• maximising an efficient and sustainable 
organisation; 

• promoting people, communities and social 
values.

Safe Space

We have, however, maintained a sustainable 
business capable of meeting all of these chal-
lenges and more besides. We have delivered cost 
savings of approximately £3m and are one of 
the few trusts to have balanced our books and 
reported a surplus. Our NHS Improvement (NHSI) 
Use of Resources Assessment is two.

As a provider of mental health, community, 
GP and specialist services, we are accountable 
to our service users and commissioners. These 
include NHS England, NHS Hull CCG, NHS East 
Riding CCG, NHS Hambleton, Richmondshire and 
Whitby CCG, and NHS Scarborough and Ryedale 
CCG. It is their responsibility to design, develop 
and buy health services for the people who live 
in their areas.

The Trust regularly provides information about 
our performance to our commissioners and 
engages with them by taking part in monthly 
contract management, service mobilisation and 
sub-group meetings. These sessions focus on 
quality, service development and delivery, and 
finance.

In October we established Humber Primary Care 
Limited, a private limited company, to enable 
us to hold General Medical Services (GMS) 
contracts. This made it possible for us to embark 
on the first stage of implementing our Primary 
Care Strategy and will help secure primary care 
services for the future.

We have worked closely with our commissioners 
to expand our involvement in primary care and 
learning disability services, pilot a ‘safe space’ 
for young people in acute emotional distress, 
develop a ‘step-down’ service for adults leaving 
inpatient mental health care, and prepare for the 
construction of a new inpatient mental health 
unit for young people who live north and south 
of the River Humber.  A section highlighting 
some of the Trust’s most notable achievements is 
included in this report. 

We continue to be a key partner in the Humber 
Coast and Vale Sustainability and Transformation 
Partnership (STP) and we will continue to work 
closely with all the partner organisations to 

Staff and patients at Townend 
Court celebrate Halloween
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As for the quality of our staff and services, I regularly receive letters of praise and read patient experience 
feedback from our Friends and Family Test results. A selection of these fantastic comments is included 
below:

There are many outstanding successes I could 
mention, but I will restrict myself to a handful, 
including:

The nurses are very lovely, kind and swift.  The 
doctors are also very human and professionally 
responsive. 
Market Weighton GP Surgery

Your mental health team are really good and 
they really listen and are supportive. They're 
the best I've been to and I've been to at least 
10. 
Hospital Mental Health Team

The staff are very polite and helpful and the 
doctors/nurses listen to your problems and 
help you 100%.  
Addiction Services - Central  Hub

The staff were all friendly and caring towards 
my daughter. They give her the best possible 
care they could offer and make quick referrals. 
Children’s Physio Service

The team responded very quickly to our crisis. 
Everyone involved has been very professional, 
empathetic and kind. We hope that the 
situation doesn't arise again where we need to 
call the team again, but we are very lucky to 
have them  
Crisis and Intervention Team Older People

The main reason is the care, compassion, help 
and advice always given by the members of 
the team who looked after me! 
Beverley Mental Health

I liked the way that they treated me and that 
they explained everything 
Immunisation Team (School Nursing)

Referred by GP for help with anxiety/depres-
sion. This was my first meeting and she was 
brilliant, warm, kind, gentle. She offered 
various suggestions and help to go forward 
Health Trainers

Explained everything fully and in a way which 
was easily understood, straight talking and 
respectful! Invited conversation and opinion, 
good communicator and knowledgeable. 
Looked After Children

Our Friends and Family Test results show 
that more than 99% of respondents find 
our staff friendly and helpful; almost 
99% believe they receive sufficient 
information; and almost 99% feel they 
are involved as much as they want to be 
in their care. The targets for all three cat-
egories is 90% and we have significantly 
overachieved in these areas.

Hear in Hull – Hull UK City of Culture 2017 
stammering awareness initiative  
Developed with Artlink and City of Culture 
organisers with Big Lottery funding, the aim 
of the project was to raise awareness, change 
perceptions, create understanding and build 
confidence. Portraits, an animation and posters 
and leaflets were all included. The feedback has 
been overwhelmingly positive, with comments 
hailing it as “brilliant” and “inspirational”;

Winning an £80 million contract to provide 
adult community services in Scarborough 
and Ryedale  NHS Scarborough and Ryedale, 
which awarded the contract following a com-
petitive tender process, said we “put forward 
an excellent model which aligns strongly with 
the CCG’s vision” to deliver a new, transformed 
service. The new service is planned to ‘go live’ on 
1 May 2018;

Trust named as one of three organisations 
in the country whose community mental 
health services are ‘performing better than 
expected compared to other trusts’  The CQC 
said our results in the 2017 Community Mental 
Health Survey were down to “a higher propor-
tion of patients responding positively about the 
care they received”.

Securing a multi-million pound contract to 
develop a new mental health inpatient unit 
for young people  The Trust will establish a 
13-bed unit for 13 to 18-year-olds from Hull, the 
East Riding and North and North-East Lincoln-
shire under a 10-year contract with NHS England. 
To be built in Hull, the unit will treat illnesses 
such as depression, psychoses, eating disorders, 
anxiety and emerging personality disorder;

Opened our ‘Crisis Pad’ for adults experienc-
ing severe emotional distress  We formally 
opened this seven-day-a-week service, located at 
St Andrew’s Place, in St George’s Road, Hull, in 
May 2017. Staffed by one of our charity partners, 
Humbercare, and now open from 6pm until 
2am, the sanctuary is a calm, safe environment 
in which support, therapeutic interventions and 
expert assessment are provided as required. 
Patient surveys conducted during a three-month 
period revealed satisfaction levels of almost 100 
per cent.

Social Mediation and Self-Help (SMASH) 
produces outstanding results  Feedback from 
pupils involved in a three-month pilot project 
to improve the emotional resilience and mental 
health of young people at ten East Riding sec-
ondary schools showed the programme boosted 
the participants’ confidence and self-esteem by 
50% and improved their feelings and behaviour 
by 42%. The results also showed that on average 
the youngsters’ education, learning and rela-
tionships improved by 35% and their number of 
friends by 37%. SMASH capped a fine year by 
winning a special recognition award at the 2017 
Hull and East Riding Health Expo.

Artist’s impression of the new CAMHS unit
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Just as they have a duty to do their best for our 
patients, we have a duty to them to look after 
their welfare at work and to provide them with 
the best possible tools to do their job.  A number 
of initiatives continue to be offered and intro-
duced to support our commitment to staff health 
and wellbeing.  This work will continue.

One of these tools is training, and we’re always 
trying to do what we can to ensure our staff 
receive the best tuition and guidance. 

Our staff have responded magnificently, as 
they always do, by helping us achieve an overall 
training compliance rate of more than 86%, well 
above the target of 75%.

Our Staff Charter, launched in May, was founded 
on our new values of caring, learning and 
growing.

We have further work to do to ensure staff 
regard the Trust as an excellent place to work. 
Our staff survey results bear this out but we are 
committed to doing everything we can to listen 
to, support, nurture, advise and lead them. They 
deserve our very best.

2017-18 has been a year in which we have 
improved our performance in the face of familiar 
and new challenges.

Our challenge in the year ahead is to maintain 
the momentum and strive for excellence.

MICHELE MORAN 

Chief Executive 

23 MAY 2018

About our Trust
Humber NHS Foundation Trust (which became 
Humber Teaching NHS Foundation Trust on 1 
April 2018) provides a wide range of health and 
social care services including acute and forensic 
inpatient mental health services, community 
mental health services, Child and Adolescent 
Mental Health Services (CAMHS), community 
services, substance misuse and learning disability 
services.  

The Trust serves patients across a large geo-
graphical area that includes Hull, the East Riding 
of Yorkshire and North Yorkshire, and provides 
specialist mental health services to people from 
across the UK.

Our specialist services, such as forensic support 
and offender health, support patients from the 
wider Yorkshire and Humber area and from 
further afield.

We employ approximately 2,500 staff who work 
from about 120 sites at locations throughout the 
East Riding, Hull and Whitby. 

We became a foundation trust eight years ago. 

Our income in 2017/18 was £118.3m, with the 
majority of this money coming from our two 
main commissioners, NHS Hull and NHS East 
Riding of Yorkshire Clinical Commissioning 
Groups (CCGs).

Our services: 

Our services are delivered via three care groups:

• Mental Health Care Group

• Primary Care, Community, Learning Disability 
and Children's Services

• Specialist Services

Mental Health Care Group services 
include: 

• Mental Health Response Service (including 
Home-Based Treatment, Crisis/Urgent 
Assessment, Non-urgent Assessment and 
Mental Health Triage service) 

• Adult and Older Adult Inpatient Units 

• Chronic Fatigue 

• Community Mental Health Services

• Complex Interventions Services, including 
specialist trauma and services for people 
with a personality disorder 

• Perinatal Services

• Crisis Intervention Team for Older People 

• Veterans Outreach

• Psychosis Service for Young People in Hull 
and East Riding (PSYPHER)

• Memory Clinic

Staff at Westlands Inpatient Unit 
celebrating World Hand Hygiene Day

The Trust is continuing to play a key role in 
the Humber Coast and Vale Sustainability and 
Transformation Partnership. This is exemplified 
by our leadership of the Mental Health Delivery 
Board which is tackling key challenges such as 
improving dementia care and reducing out-of-ar-
ea placements for people requiring mental health 
inpatient services.

I’ve mentioned our staff earlier, and I’d like to do 
so again in my concluding remarks.

Our staff are the backbone of the Trust 
and have a key role in our continuing 
efforts to improve our performance. 

Mike Chapman, technician
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Primary Care, Community, Learning 
Disability and Children's Services include:

• Community Services – Pocklington, Whitby 
and specialist therapies to Dove House 
Hospice  

• Health Trainers 

• Child and Adolescent Mental Health Services 

• Integrated Specialist Public Health Nursing 
Services (formerly Health Visiting and School 
Nursing Services) 

• Children’s Therapies 

• Learning Disabilities Services (inpatient and 
community services), including Granville 
Court

• Primary Care (GP Practices)

Specialist Services include:

• Forensic Services - Humber Centre and 
Greentrees

• Addictions Services

• Humber Recovery College  

Further information about our services and 
referral pathways can be found on our website at 
www.humber.nhs.uk/services/services.htm 

In addition to health and care services, we have 
service level agreements to provide medical 
teaching to undergraduates of the Hull York 
Medical School. 

One of the reasons we changed the name of the 
Trust to Humber Teaching NHS Foundation Trust 
on 1 April 2018 was to fulfil our Trust mission to 
become a multi-speciality health and social care 
teaching provider. Great strides have been made 
in-year in preparing to change our Trust name to 
incorporate Teaching – a change that will em-
phasise our commitment to delivering excellent 
services to our patients and carers and reinforce 
our close working relationships with Hull York 
Medical School, the University of Hull and other 
educational establishments.   

People who use our community and mental 
health services receive a wide range of care and 
therapeutic treatments in a variety of settings 
including their own homes, GP practices and 
health centres, outpatient clinics, hospitals, local 
authority premises and our inpatient units. More 
specialised care is provided by the psychiatric 
intensive care unit and forensic services.

An element of our strategy is to provide services 
as close to a patient’s home or usual place 
of residence as possible and to ensure when 
inpatient care is necessary, it is provided in safe, 
high-quality environments.

Vision, values and strategic aims 2017 - 2020

Our Vision

We aim to be a leading provider of integrated health services, recognised for the care, compassion 
and commitment of our staff and known as a great employer and valued partner.

Our Values and what they mean

Our Strategic Goals

• Innovating in quality and patient safety

• Enhancing prevention, wellbeing and 
recovery

• Fostering integration, partnership and 
alliances

• Developing an effective and empowered 
workforce

• Maximising an efficient and sustainable 
organisation

• Promoting people, communities and social 
values

Our six strategic goals and key objectives all have 
equal importance and our outlined below:

Innovating Quality and Patient 
Safety  
We will:

• Deliver high-quality, responsive care by 
strengthening our patient safety culture.

• Demonstrate that we listen, respond and 
learn.

• Achieve excellent clinical practice and 
services.

• Capitalise on our research and development.

• Exceed CQC and other regulatory require-
ments.

Enhancing Prevention, Wellbeing and 
Recovery  
We will:

• Ensure patients, carers and families play a 
key role in the planning and delivery of our 
services.

• Empower people to work with us so they 
can manage their own health and social care 
needs.

• Deliver responsive care that improves health 
and reduces health inequalities.

• Develop an ambitious prevention and 
recovery strategy.

Caring for people 
while ensuring they 

are always at the 
heart of everything 

we do.

Learning and using 
proven research as a 
basis for delivering 

safe, effective, 
integrated care.

Growing our 
reputation for being a 

provider of high quality 
services and a great 

place to work.
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Fostering Integration, Partnership 
and Alliances 
We will:

• Be a leader in delivering Sustainability and 
Transformation Partnership plans.

• Foster innovation to develop new health and 
social care service delivery models.

• Strive to maximise our research-based 
approach through education and teaching 
initiatives.

• Build trusted alliances with voluntary, 
statutory/non-statutory agencies and the 
private sector.

Developing an Effective and 
Empowered Workforce  
We will:

• Develop a healthy organisational culture.

• Invest in teams to deliver clinically excellent 
and responsive services.

• Enable transformation and organisational 
development through shared leadership.

Maximising an Efficient and 
Sustainable Organisation  
We will:

• Be a flexible organisation that responds 
positively to business opportunities.

• Be a leading provider of integrated services.

• Exceed requirements set by NHS Improve-
ment regarding financial sustainability.

• Build state-of-the-art care facilities.

Promoting People, Communities and 
Social Values 
We will:

• Apply the principles outlined in the Social 
Value Act (2013).

• Ensure our human resource priorities and 
services have a measurable social impact.

• Improve recruitment and apprenticeship 
schemes and promote career opportunities.

• ‘Make every contact count’ via an integrated 
approach designed to make communities 
healthier.

Development and  

Performance

Our performance management framework tracks 
progress against key performance indicators. 
This is based on our strategic goals and is shared 
with our Board of Directors on a monthly basis. 
Added to this is a risk register which reports key 
risks identified on an ongoing basis and which 
therefore ensures any major concerns are dealt 
with. A larger set of indicators is reviewed by our 
Board of Directors each quarter. To support this, 
our business units account to the executive team 
via quarterly performance review meetings and 
likewise the senior operational managers review 
their teams on a structured basis.

Any problem issues identified with performance 
are formally reported up through these channels. 
The purpose of this is to ensure involvement of 
staff at all levels in understanding and influencing 
performance in their areas of responsibility.

Celebrating success

The inspiring and innovative work our staff do across the Trust every day to improve the lives of our 
patients and service users was celebrated at our annual Staff Awards on 2 December 2017 at Willerby 
Manor Hotel.

This year, we had 14 categories in which staff could nominate themselves or a colleague. We also had the 
Patient Choice Award which gave patients, their families and carers a chance to nominate a member of our 
staff or team who has gone the extra mile to provide outstanding care.

Our staff awards winners were:

Team of the Year - Mental 
Health Services

Perinatal Mental Health Team   

Team of the Year - Primary Care, 
Community, Children’s and Learning 

Disabilities Services
Field House Surgery

Team of the Year - Specialist Services
Road to Recovery Academy

Team of the Year - Corporate 
Services 

Communications Team

Outstanding Care Award
Dave Reade – Changes Project

Inspiration Award - sponsored by 
DXC Technology

Victoria Dunn
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Chief Executive’s Rising Star Award
Hollie Wilkinson

Patient Choice Award - sponsored by 
Gosschalks Solicitors 

Adult Community Mental Health Team 
– Haltemprice

Volunteer Award - sponsored by  
the Smile Foundation

There are two winners in this category.
Michael Cohen

Wendy Mitchell

Health Stars Sparkle Award
Vicky Oxbury

Mentor of the Year - 
sponsored by Konica Minolta

Catherine West

Apprentice of the Year -  
sponsored by KCOM

Trevor Lusiola

Chairman’s Award
Ruth Edwards and Siobhan Ward

 Outstanding Team of the Year
Perinatal Mental Health Team

Charlene Sargeant, a practice nurse at Field 
House Surgery in Bridlington, was crowned 
Yorkshire’s General Practice Nurse of the Year 
at the General Practice Nursing Awards on 21 
March 2018.

The awards were held by the Yorkshire and Hum-
ber General Practice Nursing Awards Committee 
to recognise the skills, expertise and dedication 
of practice nurses in our area.

The Committee hosted the awards ceremony 
after NHS England's Chief Nursing Officer, 
Professor Jane Cummings, launched a ten-point 
action plan to recognise and develop the role 
general practice nurses have in transforming care 
and helping deliver the plan to make the NHS fit 
for the future.

The regional success came after Charlene was 
crowned Practice Nurse of the Year for the 
Humber, Coast and Vale Sustainability and 
Transformation Partnership area on 28 February 
2018.

Externally, we also had our successes, with Trust 
Mental Health Nurse Andrew Barker nominated 
in the Edith Cavell Outstanding British Army 
Reserve of the Year Award. The award recog-
nised his provision of welfare support to service 
personnel at the height of the 2007 Ebola crisis 
in the West African state of Sierra Leone.  

We are proud of our internal and external award 
submissions which demonstrate the quality of 
our services and our staff.  To be nominated, 
shortlisted or to win is an achievement to be 
celebrated.

Principal Risks and 

Uncertainties 

The risks outlined below have been identified as 
the principal risks to the delivery of the Trust’s 
key objectives.  

More detail regarding the risks to which the 
Trust has been exposed in 2017/18 is included in 
full within the table in the Annual Governance 
Statement on page 92.

This year our event was sponsored by Konica Mi-
nolta, Clark Weightman KCOM, DXC Technology, 
Gosschalks Solicitors and the Smile Foundation.

National success

Perinatal Mental Health team won a 
prestigious award

Our Perinatal Mental Health team won Team 
of the Year at the British Journal of Midwifery 
Practice Awards. 

The award recognises collaborative working and 
innovation and is given to the team which has 
demonstrated an exceptional contribution to 
midwifery.

The Trust team was shortlisted for its commit-
ment to resolving everyday challenges in perina-
tal mental health, such as poor attendance and 
the need to improve prediction, diagnosis and 
referral rates.

Trust Nurse crowned General Practice 
Nurse of the Year
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Innovating Quality and Patient 
Safety 

• Failure to ensure a robust approach to 
clinical policy development, review and 
implementation.

• Failure to meet Regulation 18 HSCA (RA) 
Regulations 2014 regarding Safer Staffing.

• Develop processes that demonstrate organi-
sational learning from Serious Incidents, Seri-
ous Event Analyses and adverse incidents.

• Compliance with the Mental Health Act 
(MHA) and the Mental Capacity Act (MCA)/
Deprivation of Liberty Safeguards (DOLS).

• Maximisation of research and development 
programmes due to staff not referring 
patients into research studies.

Enhancing Prevention, Wellbeing and 
Recovery

• Equipping patients and carers with skills and 
knowledge needed via social prescribing.

• Failure to meet early intervention targets 
(national – Improving Access to Psycholog-
ical Therapies [IAPT], Early Intervention in 
Psychosis [EIP], Dementia).

• Failure to meet early intervention targets 
(local – Child and Adolescent Mental 
Health Services [CAMHS], Autism Spectrum 
Disorder [ASD], Children and Young People 
[CYP]).

• Ensuring the right level of physical health-
care support and that there is a cohesive 
alignment of mental health and physical 
health services to achieve parity of esteem.

• Capacity to deliver East Riding of Yorkshire 
CAMHS services in the light of increased 
referrals. 

Fostering Integration, Partnerships 
and Alliances

• Lack of involvement in Sustainability and 
Transformation Plans or Patient-Led As-
sessment of the Care Environment (PLACE) 
plans. 

• The Trust does not achieve the informatics 

strategy due to lack of funding and specialist 
resources required.

• Utlising evidence-based practice to inform 
and influence business decisions, resulting in 
the delivery of outdated service models, an 
inability to effectively compete with other 
providers and a subsequent loss of business/
income and reputation.

• There is a risk to future sustainability and 
reputation arising from a failure to compete 
effectively and build excellent relationships 
with partners and stakeholders via partner-
ship working and all communications and 
marketing activities.

Developing an Effective and 
Empowered Workforce

• Current CQUIN targets for Health and 
Wellbeing in place and the possibility that 
lack of current capacity and focus may result 
in these not being achieved.

• Failure to recruit and retain appropriately 
qualified, skilled and experienced workforce 
will directly impact on the Trust’s ability to 
meet its objectives.

• Failure to achieve compliance with statutory 
and mandatory training could result in staff 
not having the right skills and competencies 
required to ensure safe care to patients and 
safety within the environment.

• Failure to implement the Trust's Workforce 
Plan and Strategy may result in an inabil-
ity to achieve the changes to culture and 
reputation which are aspired to by the 
organisation.

Maximising an Efficient and 
Sustainable Organisation

• There is a risk to future sustainability and 
reputation arising from a failure to compete 
effectively because we have not maintained 
and developed strategic alliances and part-
nerships and not increased our commercial/
market understanding.

• Adverse impact of inadequate IT systems, 
failing to effectively support management 
decisions, performance management or 
contract compliance.

• Trust IT system being compromised due to a 
cyber security attack.

• Trust is unable to contain agency expend-
iture within its target ceiling from NHS 
Improvement, the consequence of which 
would impact on the Trust’s Use of Resourc-
es score.

• Failure to achieve the organisation’s Cost 
Improvement Programme, control total and 
required NHS Improvement Use of Resources 
score for 2017/18.

• Failure to identify, agree and implement 
a financial plan that returns the Trust to 
surplus, meets the NHS Improvement control 
total and delivers its short, medium and 
long-term CIP and service transformation 
targets to ensure costs are contained within 
budget.

• Deterioration of the Trust cash position so 
that day-to-day functioning is impacted 
and the organisation is no longer financially 
independent.

• Failure to address all risks identified as part 
of the capital application process due to lack 
of capital resource.

• Failure to improve the overall condition and 
efficiency of our estate.

Promoting People, Communities and 
Social Values

• Equipping patients and carers with skills and 
knowledge needed via social prescribing.

• Failure to have an Equality and Diversity 
strategy may impact on the Trust's ability 
to have a workforce trained and engaged 
with the equality and diversity agenda, limit 
accessibility to services and prevent achieve-
ment of the Trust's Equality and Diversity 
aims.

• Reduction in patients likely to recommend 
Trust services to friends and family may 
impact on the Trust's reputation and 
stakeholder confidence in services provided.

• Failure to implement the Trust's Workforce 
Plan and Strategy may result in an inabil-
ity to achieve the changes to culture and 

reputation which are aspired to by the 
organisation.

• Failure to recruit and retain an appropriately 
qualified, skilled and experienced clinical 
workforce as a result of national shortages 
and rising demands outside the Trust's 
control will directly impact on the Trust’s 
ability to meet its objectives.

The principal risks to the achievement of strategic 
goals are managed through the Board Assurance 
Framework which is reviewed on a monthly basis 
by the Executive Management Team and as a 
standing agenda item on the relevant assurance 
committee. The framework is presented to the 
Trust Board on a quarterly basis for assurance 
and oversight. 

Going Concern

After making enquiries, the directors have a 
reasonable expectation that the NHS Foundation 
Trust has adequate resources to continue in 
operational existence for the foreseeable future. 
For this reason, they continue to adopt the going 
concern basis in preparing the accounts.
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Performance 
Analysis

Summary of the Financial Year

We are reporting an operating surplus of 
£5.659m for the year on income of £118.386m in 
the year.  After finance costs, we have recorded a 
surplus of £3.695m. 

Performance against out NHS Improvement 
control total was achievement of the target set, 
which was a surplus of £0.233m after the receipt 
of £2.597m of Sustainability and Transformation 
funding.

Operationally, we have continued to work very 
hard to achieve this result. However, there is a 
level of underachievement of recurrent savings 
on our efficiency programme and we have 
developed a Budget Reduction Strategy. We 
have continued to consider non-recurrent savings 
which although successful will impact on next 
year’s Budget Reduction Strategy and the longer-
term financial plan.

Income received to deliver core services has 
decreased by £29m compared to 2016/17, 
primarily due to the loss of the East Riding 
Community contract in 2017/18. The Trust had 
increases in income from new contracts and from 
the acquisition of a number of GP surgeries in 
the area.

Efficiency reductions will continue to be required 
at an increased level for the foreseeable future.  
Coupled with the effect of cost inflation, this 
has placed increasing emphasis on the need 
to deliver financial efficiencies throughout the 
organisation.  A total of £3.024m of cost efficien-
cies were generated, the majority of these were 
of a non-recurrent nature and this will affect our 
future financial position.

The closing cash balance decreased to £8.613m 
in the year due to operational and capital 
expenditure. The balance is expected to rise back 
to above £9m in the early part of 2018/19.

Our total capital spend in the year was £5.372m.  
This level of expenditure is as expected. Schemes 
in 2017/18 comprised of expenditure for rolling 
equipment replacement in IT, a number of 
ligature reduction projects, initial costs of the 
new CAMHS unit scheme, and Maister Lodge 
refurbishment works.

We have an expected year-end risk rating of 2. 
The scale is from 1 to 4, with 1 being the lowest 
risk. We are expecting our governance risk rating 
to remain at green at the end of the year. At the 
time of publication this has not been confirmed 
by our regulator, NHS Improvement.

Financial results 2017/18 – Headlines

• Income of £118.3m, a decrease of £24.5m

• Surplus of £3.695m 

• The cash balance was £8.613m compared to 
£9.426m at March 2017

• Net current assets of £5.692m compared to 
£6.386m at March 2017

• Total net assets of £85.064m compared to 
£75.91m at March 2017

Income and expenditure

Income in the period was £118.3m compared 
to £142.9m in the previous year. Expenditure 
(excluding the East Riding Community Services 
contract) has increased due to costs associated 
with the new services and cost pressures around 
temporary staff; but overall for 2017/18 the Trust 
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achieved an underlying surplus of £0.233m for 
income and expenditure which counts towards 
the NHS Improvement control total.

Section 43 (2a) of the NHS Act 2006 (as amend-
ed by the Health and Social Care Act 2012) 
requires that the income from the provision 
of goods and services for the purposes of the 
Health Service in England must be greater than 
its income from the provision of goods and 
services for any other purposes. The Trust met 
this requirement during 2017/18.

Capital Expenditure

Capital expenditure totalled £5.372m during the 
year which was below the capital plan, mainly 
in relation to the delayed Child and Adolescent 
Mental Health Services (CAMHS) Tier Four 
build. The schemes we supported included IT 
infrastructure projects, including the ongoing 
replacement of IT equipment, and estate projects 
including ligature reduction works in all mental 
health units.

Our total assets employed increased to £79.1m 

compared to £70.5m a year ago.

The other most notable expenditure covered a 
range of projects and facilities including address-
ing backlog maintenance issues.

Management costs 

Management costs for the year amounted to 
£8.7m which equates to 7.12% of income. This 
shows a small increase in value and decrease in 
the percentage of total costs when compared to 
the previous year. Details of directors’ remunera-
tion are provided on page 50.

Better payment practice code

In accordance with the Confederation of British 
Industry’s (CBI) Better Payment Practice Code, 
our policy is to pay non-NHS trade creditors 
within 30 days of receipt of goods or services, 
or of a valid invoice (whichever is later), unless 
other payment terms have been agreed with the 
supplier. The figures for NHS creditors by value 
paid within 30 days dropped from 97% to 71%, 
while the number of invoices paid has reduced 
to by 14% to 80%. We will continue to focus on 
this important performance measure although 
this is often dependent on our customers paying 
invoices raised by ourselves.

Financial Outlook

We have responded well to the financial chal-
lenges we and the wider NHS have faced over 
the last three years in particular. Over £11m of 
cost-efficiency savings have been generated over 
the course of the past three years.  

The Trust successfully bid for community services 
in Scarborough and Ryedale. This is a seven-year 
contract with a total income of £80.5m.

Further income opportunities exist for the Trust 
which include:

• Further Acquisition of GP practices

• CAMHS Tier 4 services

The Trust operates in an environment of rising 
costs, increased expectations and increasing de-
mand, all of which present financial challenges.

Medium-term plans demonstrate the need 
to continue to deliver this level of efficiency 
improvement over the next four years. Given the 
amount already saved it is naturally more difficult 
to identify further savings.  We continue to 
operate a very robust process for identifying and 
implementing cost savings projects.  All projects 
must be approved by the Medical Director and 
Director of Nursing to ensure there is no negative 
impact on patient safety or quality of care. The 
programme of work for identifying savings 
initiatives for 2018/19 is largely complete and will 
continue to be reviewed on an ongoing basis.  

We remain committed to delivering the best 
possible care and service within the financial 
resources we have at our disposal. The focus 
of the cost-saving projects has therefore been 
very much on maintaining service provision and 
re-structuring the organisation to meet that 
service provision.

As reported last year, there is no doubt the diffi-
cult economic environment will remain for some 
time. We have maintained a solid financial base 
but will need to continue to improve financial 
management to remain in a healthy financial 
position. All staff are encouraged to identify 

where any savings can be made and to highlight 
these savings through management teams to 
allow for formal budget savings to be made.

We continue to perform well against achieve-
ment of our Commissioning for Quality and 
Innovation (CQUIN) framework. We accomplished 
a high level of achievement of these indicators in 
2017/18. We continue to focus on these indi-
cators in 2018/19 to ensure this level of income 
remains in place.

Conclusion

We delivered our expected financial performance 
last year despite national efficiency requirements 
being applied and the loss of income from 
some commissioned services. This was a positive 
achievement given that it was the fifth year of 
receiving a reduction in income and because it 
is becoming increasingly difficult to identify cost 
efficiency improvements. As ever, it was very 
much a team effort across the whole organisa-
tion to deliver this financial performance. Even 
more importantly, the delivery of the financial 
results did not compromise patient care. We 
achieved the majority of our performance targets 
for the year.

In conclusion, it is appropriate to re-affirm the 
comments made last year.  We will continue to 
face financial challenges both this coming year 
and beyond.  We remain positive that these 
challenges will be met, although we should not 
be under any illusions that it will not require a 
great deal of effort and involve making difficult 
decisions. 

Our directors consider the annual report and 
accounts, taken as a whole, is fair, balanced and 
understandable and provides the information 
necessary for stakeholders to assess our Trust’s 
performance, business model and strategy.

2017/2018 2016/17

Number £000 Number £000

Total non-NHS trade invoices paid in the year 26,450 44,913 34,460 57,785

Total non-NHS trade invoices paid within target 22,685 38,073 32,998 52,837

Percentage of non-NHS trade invoices paid within target 85.8% 84.8% 96% 91%

Total NHS trade invoices paid in the year 551 2,323 575 2,304

Total NHS trade invoices paid within target 441 1,641 538 2,377

Percentage of NHS trade invoices paid within target 80.0% 70.6% 94% 97%
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Performance Analysis

How performance is measured

The Trust reports to NHS Improvement (NHSI) 
and NHS Digital.  Key indicators are mapped via 
the Integrated Quality and Performance Report 
(IQPT) to the NHSI Single Oversight Framework 
(SOF), formerly the Risk Assessment Framework.

Our Trust uses a ‘traffic light’ or ‘RAG-rating’ 
system to report on performance and quality 
against our selected priorities and key perfor-
mance indicators (KPIs), e.g. Red = Weak, Amber 
= Fair and Green = Good.  This is translated to 
reflect the organisation’s performance on the 
selected priorities and initiatives.

The links between our key performance indi-
cators (KPIs), risk and uncertainty run through 
our corporate risk register and Board Assurance 
Framework (BAF).  Where performance is not 
where it is expected, this is logged as a risk for 
the Trust which if sufficiently scored appears on 
the risk register and the BAF.  In addition, Finance 
and Use of Resources is one of the five themes 
feeding into the Single Oversight Framework.  
The use of resources score reported earlier in this 
report is split by the five components, with an 
overall score, and is reported at a granular level.

Financial information is linked and presented to 
the Board of Directors who are provided with 
a granular breakdown of the Use of Resources 
score in the monthly finance report.  This infor-
mation is also linked to the Integrated Quality 
and Performance Tracker (IQPT) report that is also 
provided to the Board every month and includes 
a number of the performance measurements 
that are covered to some extent in the Use of 
Resources rating and also includes reporting on 
bank, agency and overtime whereas the Use of 
Resources specifies agency.  

Performance during the year

Performance to the end of March 2018 for the 
NHSI Single Oversight Framework is summarised 
in the table below:

Quality

The Trust monitors various quality metrics each 
month which are embedded into the IQPT, which 
is considered by the Trust Board each month.  

Operational Performance

Operational Performance (continued)
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Finance

Leadership

Leadership and Improvement (Training excludes primary care practices)

Operational Performance (continued)
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Leadership and Improvement (Training excludes primary care practices) Strategic Change
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Environmental Issues

As an NHS organisation which spends public 
funds we have an obligation to work in a way 
that has a positive effect on the community we 
serve.  Sustainability means spending public 
money well and using resources efficiently and 
effectively to grow healthy, resilient communities. 

With the rising cost of natural resources, it is vital 
for the Trust to work more sustainably and to 
make the most of its economic and environmen-
tal assets.

The Trust works with the newly commissioned 
Sustainable Development Management Plan 
(SDMP) which was signed off by the Board of 
Directors in 2017.  The SDMP is located on the 
Trust’s intranet site.

The driving forces behind the reduction of all 
trusts’ carbon footprints are the targets set by 
the Sustainable Development Unit (SDU) NHS 
England - outlined here are the reductions - 34% 
by 2020, based on the 2007 level. The NHS has 

been set a target of an 80% reduction of its 
emissions by 2050. The Trust is using a 2012/13 
figure as highlighted in the SDMP.

The Trust’s current carbon footprint equates to 
12,224 tons of carbon dioxide equivalent (tCO2e). 
This is spread over four key areas: 

• Energy management and green technology

• Procurement and food

• Waste

• Behaviour change

The Sustainable Development Action Plan sets 
out clear actions for each department which 
affect the four key groups (energy, procurement, 
travel, waste). The SDMP and SDAP are reported 
to the Board of Directors on a quarterly basis by 
tracking development and targets. The SDMP will 
be reviewed in 2018/19 to match the changes 
that have happened in 2017/18.

Sustainable Development

The Trust has reduced its carbon footprint from 13,373 tC02e to 12,224 tC02e. This is a 
reduction of 1149 tC02e.

Entrance to De La Pole 
Hospital circa 1960

Trust HQ today which was 
part of the De La Pole Hospital
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Energy

The Trust has seen a huge reduction in its energy 
use-related carbon emissions. However, energy 
is prone to fluctuate and can be easily influenced 
by external factors outside the Trust’s control. As 
demonstrated by the graph above, electricity use 
is steadily reducing and the Trust has also seen a 
decline in gas usage due to the introduction of 
new boilers and better heating controls.

Waste

Waste continues to have a low impact due to high levels of recycling from the agreement arranged with 
the current waste specialist. 

Water

Water continues to reduce due to better controls and monitoring of the usage leak detection and better 
controls at site level.

The Trust is constantly looking at ways to combat 
the extreme weather patterns and reduce usage 
where possible. 

The Trust has been investing in green technology 
such as high-efficiency boilers and LED lighting 
systems - which are becoming the standard for 
new installations - as well as introducing replace-

ments via maintenance. 

It is important to us and for all users of 
our properties to work with a sympathetic 
manner towards sustainability. The Trust 
has been running a green energy cam-
paign (Trust in Green campaign) focusing 
on behaviour change and which aims to 
introduce ‘green champions’ to lead by 
example and influence others to work 
more sustainably. Work will continue 
in 2018/19 to recruit new champions, 
provide staff with information and advise 
new staff at induction.

Procurement

Water 2014/15 2015/16 2016/17 2017/18

Mains Water
m3 35,996 38,797 40,433 30,140

tCO2e 33 35 37 27

Water & Sewage Spend  £108,145  £112,727  £112,742  £83,676

As can be seen above, the Trust can monitor its carbon emissions for procurement through eClass. In an 
exciting phase of carbon reductions the Trust will be using the above information to look at high impact 
areas and consider where it can use cost versus sustainability to reduce its carbon emissions, highlighting 
hot spots for further investigation.
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Counter-fraud and corruption

The Trust has a local counter-fraud specialist 
and there are policies in place to support coun-
ter-fraud and corruption. It is the Trust’s policy 
that all allegations of fraud must be referred to 
the Trust’s Director of Finance.

Anti-Bribery

The Trust has a publicly available Anti-Bribery 
statement and leaflet on the Trust's public 
website. In addition, the Trust has an intranet 
fraud page for staff which refers to bribery.  The 
Audit Committee receives regular updates from 
the Local Counter Fraud Specialist.

Bribery is also referenced in various policies 
including the Anti-Bribery Policy, Standing 
Orders, Scheme of Delegation and Standing 
Financial Instructions, Local Anti-Fraud, Bribery 
and Corruption Policy, and Standards of Business 
Conduct and Managing Conflict of Interest 
Policy, which includes the requirements around 
gifts and hospitality that was updated in-year to 
take account of revised NHS England guidance.   
In addition, the Bribery Act will continue to 
be incorporated into all staff fraud awareness 
literature and presentations.

Social Values Report

We are committed to embedding social 
accounting within the Trust to enable us 
to demonstrate and measure the impact 
we make socially on the communities we 
serve.

The principles of social value allow the 
Trust to take into account the wider 
aspects of increasing equality, improving 
wellbeing and increased environmental 
sustainability when making decisions. 

Accounts of social value estimate the 
value of changes experienced by people. 
Calculations include qualitative, quan-
titative and comparative information in 
relation to how services/changes affect 
people’s lives.

Determining social value added requires judge-
ment and different people may have different 
opinions or perceptions on the value added from 
different items. Draft calculations use financial 
proxies to determine the Social Return on 
Investment (SROI), which indicates the benefit to 
cost ratio.

Areas where draft SROI are currently been 
estimated include:

• Volunteers Services (Draft SROI £1: £2.28) 
through group activities and increased social 
interaction.

• Psychological Therapies (Draft SROI £1: 
£19.44) through benefits of recovered 
patients and reduced reliance on other forms 
of healthcare.

• Humber Recovery College (Draft SROI £1: 
£3.58) through increased empowerment and 
reduced consumption of health services.

The above are only examples of where SROI has 
been estimated for services the Trust provides. 
There are many other areas of our services where 
SROI can be calculated, and we will be working 
through these areas during 2018/19 with the 
ambition of producing a set of social accounts 
later in the calendar year.

Social Community and Human Rights

The Trust serves a richly diverse population and 
works hard to ensure all our services are fair and 
equally accessible to everyone.

We aim to employ a workforce which is as repre-
sentative as possible of this population; so we are 
open to the value of differences in age, disability, 
gender, marital status, pregnancy and maternity, 
race, sexual orientation, and religion or belief.

Our vision, which applies to staff, patients, and 
patients’ families, is to be ‘effortlessly inclusive’. 
To achieve that vision, we aim to:

• treat everyone with respect and dignity at all 
times

• challenge discriminatory behaviour and 
practice

• recognise and embrace diversity

• ensure equal and easy access to services

• ensure equal access to employment and 
development opportunities

• consult and engage with staff, patients and 
their families to ensure the services and 
facilities of the Trust meet their needs.

We are refreshing our Patient and Carer Expe-
rience Strategy 2016 to 2018. The refreshed 
strategy will run from 2018 to 2023 and equality 
and diversity will be the golden thread woven 
throughout it. The strategy will meet the duties 
and requirements of the Equality Act 2010 
and the national NHS Equality Delivery System 
2 (EDS2).   The strategy will be available from 
spring 2018.

An Equality and Diversity Strategy for staff is 
being developed for the year ahead to further 
outline and progress our commitment to equality 
and diversity in the workplace.  The aim of the 
strategy will be to demonstrate our commitment 
to employing and retaining a diverse workforce 
and developing robust employment practices that 
are free from discrimination and create equality 
of opportunity for everyone.

The Trust has an Equality and Diversity and Hu-
man Rights Policy in respect of our employment 
which is kept under review.  The effectiveness 
of all of these policies is routinely monitored 
through incidents and other events to ensure 
that none of our services adversely affect any 
one section of the communities we serve, or any 
one of the protected characteristics. In addition, 
all our policies, transformations and associated 
documents are equality impact-assessed.

Conclusion

We delivered our expected financial performance 
last year despite national efficiency requirements 
being applied and the loss of income from some 
commissioned services with effect from 1 April 
2017. This was a positive achievement given that 
it was the fifth successive year of pressures on 
the level of income and because of the difficulties 
in identifying further cost improvements. As ever, 
it was very much a team effort across the whole 
organisation to deliver this financial performance 
without compromising patient care. We achieved 
the majority of our performance targets for the 
year.

In conclusion, it is appropriate to reaffirm the 
comments made last year. We will continue 
to face significant financial challenges both 
in 2018/19 and beyond; however, we remain 
positive that these challenges will be met despite 
the effort required to do so and the likelihood of 
having to face some difficult decisions in future.

The Financial Statements included in this report 
(and also available on our website) are a summa-
ry of the information in the full accounts which 
are available on our website and on demand by 
emailing our Communications Team at hnf-tr.
communications@nhs.net

Our directors consider the annual report and 
accounts, taken as a whole, is fair, balanced and 
understandable and provides the information 
necessary for stakehold-
ers to assess our Trust’s 
performance, business 
model and strategy.

MICHELE MORAN 

Chief Executive 

23 MAY 2018
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Directors’ Report

The Board of Directors sets the strategic goals 
and objectives of the Trust and monitors the 
Trust’s performance against these objectives, 
ensuring appropriate action is taken when 
necessary. It is responsible for managing the 
business of the Trust and is legally responsible 
for delivering high-quality, effective services and 
for the financial control and performance of the 
Trust.

The Board is made up of Executive and Non-Ex-
ecutive Directors who develop and monitor the 
Trust’s Strategy and performance against key 
objectives and other indicators.

The table overleaf provides details of the compo-
sition of the Board of Directors throughout the 
year. During the year there were some changes 
at Board level that are also summarised below: 

• Dr Dasari Michael resigned as Medical 
Director in September 2017.

• Dr John Byrne was appointed as the new 
Medical Director from 1 October 2017. 

• Dr Andrew Milner, Non-Executive Director 
and Senior Independent Director (SID), 
reached the end of his term of office at the 
end of October 2017 and left the Trust.

• Mr Peter Baren was appointed Senior 
Independent Director from November 2017

• Mr Francis Patton was appointed as a 
Non-Executive Director in January 2018. 
The Governor Appointments, Terms and 
Conditions Committee oversaw the process 
and details are provided within the Council 
of Governors section of the report.   

• Ms Teresa Cope, Chief Operating Officer, 
commenced a three-month career break in 
February 2018 and left the Trust at the end 
of March.

• Ms Lynn Parkinson was appointed Interim 
Chief Operating Officer in February 2018.

The Chairman of the Board of Directors is Sharon 
Mays and the Board of Directors comprised seven 
non-executive directors (including the chairman) 
and six executive directors (including the chief 
executive). Peter Baren, Non-Executive Director, 
took over the role of Senior Independent Director 
from Andrew Milner. Elizabeth Thomas, Director 
of Human Resources and Diversity, is a non-vot-
ing member of the Board of Directors.  

The Board of Directors reviews and evaluates 
its performance via a process led by the senior 
independent director or a nominated non-ex-
ecutive director. This review covers areas such 
as constructive challenge, appropriateness 
of the agenda, quality of papers, quality and 
inclusiveness of debate, and effectiveness of the 
Chairman. A review of the strategic priorities is 
reported on a quarterly basis.

An independent review of governance arrange-
ments against NHS Improvement’s Well-Led 
framework was commissioned in late 2016 and 
the work was undertaken by Deloitte in 2017.  
Twenty-five recommendations were made and 
an action plan was devised to deliver on all the 
recommendations and reported to Board.  The 
final action plan was presented in September 
2017.  

Accountability
Report
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At the end of 2017/18, an internal review of 
these actions was undertaken which confirmed 
their delivery and integration into business as 
usual.

The governance structure of the organisation 
was fully reviewed in preparation for 2017/18 
and was embedded during the year.  A number 
of improvements were made to the committee 
structure to provide a clear focus on key gov-
ernance areas.  One key change was the sepa-
ration of the Integrated Audit and Governance 
Committee which was separated into two - the 
Audit Committee and the Quality Committee.  
The Audit Committee continues to provide a 
means of independent and objective review 
and seeks assurance about the adequate and 
effective operation of the Trust’s internal control 
systems, with the Quality Committee established 
to provide a clearer focus on quality and patient 
safety performance.  In addition, the Quality 
Committee is able to review performance in 
relation to information governance and research 
and development.  A Finance Committee was 
also introduced in July 2017 and details of all 
committees are described in this report.

Each Board of Directors sub-committee produces 
an annual effectiveness review report on its activ-
ities, achievements and plans for the year ahead 

which is presented to the Board of Directors by 
the committee chair.

The arrangements for evaluation of the Chairman 
and Non-Executive Directors were agreed by the 
Council of Governors’ Appointments, Terms and 
Conditions Committee. The Senior Independent 
Director led the appraisal of the Chairman, with 
appropriate consultation with Non-Executive 
Directors, Governors and other relevant parties. 
The Chairman led the evaluation of the Non-Ex-
ecutive Directors supported by the Council of 
Governors’ Appointments, Terms and Conditions 
Committee.  

The Chief Executive and Executive Directors are 
subject to formal appraisal by the Chairman and 
Chief Executive respectively. This is based on the 
agreement of objectives linked to the key compo-
nents of the Trust’s annual plan and progress is 
monitored throughout the year. The Chairman is 
consulted concerning the corporate, as opposed 
to professional, performance of the Executive 
Directors. Regular meetings with the Non-Execu-
tive Directors and the Chairman are held without 
the Executive Directors being present. The Board 
of Directors’ composition is in accordance with 
the Trust’s constitution and details of attendance 
at meetings are provided in the attendance table.

Composition of the Board of Directors

Non-Executive Directors:

Name Position Appointed to 
Humber NHS 
Foundation Trust

Term of office 
ends

Sharon Mays Trust Chairman 
• Chairman of Council of Governors 
• Chairman of Remuneration and 

Nomination Committee

16 September 2014 15 September 2020

David Crick Independent Non-Executive Director 
• Chair of Mental Health Legislation 

Committee up to January 2018

1 June 2012 31 May 2018

Andrew Milner Independent Non-Executive Director
• Chair of Strategic Investment Commit-

tee (up to 30 October 2017)
• Senior Independent Director (up to 30 

October 2017) 

1 April 2013 31 October 2017

Peter Baren Independent Non-Executive Director 
• Chair of Audit Committee  
• Chair Charitable Funds Committee (up 

to September 2017) 
• Chair of Finance Committee (up to 

January 18).  
• Senior Independent Director from 

November 2017

1 December 2013 31 January 2020

Paula Bee Independent Non-Executive Director
• Chair of Charitable Funds Committee 

from September 2017

1 March 2016 28 February 2019

Mike Cooke Independent Non-Executive Director
• Chair of Quality Committee, 
• Chair of Strategic Investment Commit-

tee from October 2017 –March 2018

1 September 2016 31 August 2019

Mike Smith Independent Non-Executive Director
• Chair of Mental Health Legislation 

Committee from February 2018

1 October 2016 30 September 2019

Francis Patton Independent Non-Executive Director, 
• Chair of Finance Committee from 1 

February 2018

1 January 2018 31 December 2020

Executive Directors

Michele Moran Chief Executive 29 January 2017 N/A

Hilary Gledhill Director of Nursing, Quality and Patient 
Experience

1 June 2015 N/A

Peter Beckwith Director of Finance 10 March 2017 N/A

Teresa Cope Chief Operating Officer 1 April 2015 Career break Febru-
ary–May 2018. Left 
the Trust 31/3/18

Lynn Parkinson Interim Chief Operating Officer 1 February 2018 Covering vacancy 
of Chief Operating 
Officer role since 
February 2018 

Dasari Michael Medical Director 1 May 2014 30 September 2017

John Byrne Medical Director 1 October 2017 N/A

Elizabeth 
Thomas 
(non-voting)

Director of Human Resources & Diversity 1 February 2014 N/A

The composition of the Board of Directors 
allows it to fulfil its statutory and constitutional 
functions and to comply with its provider licence. 
The balance of the Board of Directors meets the 
provisions of the NHS Foundation Trust Code of 
Governance requirements for at least half of the 

directors (excluding the Chairman) being inde-
pendent Non-Executive Directors. The Non-Ex-
ecutive board members possess a wide range 
of skills and experience essential for an effective 
Board of Directors. These skills enable them to 
provide independent judgement and advice on 
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The Trust Board has the overall responsibility 
for risk management throughout the Trust and 
reviews the Board Assurance Framework and 
Trust-wide risk register on a quarterly basis. Risks 
identified by Board committees and sub-groups 
are recorded on the relevant directorate/care 
group risk register and managed through the 
necessary forum. Risks are identified across the 
organisation and there is an escalation process in 
place to use when required.

Regular updates from the Executive Management 
Team and the Trust’s Audit, Quality and Finance 
Committees are received by the Board of Direc-
tors for further assurance around the application 
of risk management within the organisation.   

The Audit Committee is the Board committee 
with overarching responsibility for risk. The role 
of the committee is to scrutinise and review the 
Trust’s systems of governance, risk management 
and internal control. Regular assurance is sought 
in terms of the Trust’s risk management arrange-
ments to enable oversight of the approach to risk 
as well as the Trust-wide risk register and Board 
Assurance Framework to focus on individual risks 
and suitability of identified controls. The Trust has 
also formed a Quality Committee in April 2017 
and a Finance Committee in August 2017 which 
also are responsible for risk management within 
the organisation and have assigned sections 
of the Board Assurance Framework that are 
reviewed on a cyclical basis for oversight of risks 
to achievement of the Trust’s strategic objectives.

Leadership for risk management across the 
organisation is provided by the Executive 
Management Team (EMT) and is chaired 
by the Chief Executive. The Executive 
Management Team gives consideration 
to the development of systems and 

issues of strategy, vision, performance, resources 
and standards of conduct, and constructively 
challenge, influence and help the executive team 
develop proposals on such strategies. 

The Council of Governors’ is chaired by the Chair-
man who is responsible for providing leadership 
to both the Board of Directors and the Council 
of Governors. The Chairman ensures there is 
effective communication between the Board of 
Directors and the Council of Governors, gaining 
the views of the Governors as necessary for 
consideration by the Board of Directors.  

Executive and Non-Executive Directors have 
an open invitation to attend the Council of 
Governors’ meetings, the Governor groups and 
Governor development days that are held. They 
also receive copies of the Council of Governors’ 
meeting papers, including the minutes. The 
Chairman, supported by the Senior Independent 
Director, promotes an engaging relationship 
between the Board of Directors and Council of 
Governors. Sessions with Board members and 
Governors take place within the development 
day meetings which give an opportunity for 
Governors to engage with Executive and Non-Ex-
ecutive Directors. There has also been regular 
attendance by Governors at the Board of Direc-
tors’ public meetings. A Governor, Non-Executive 
and Executive Knowledge and Engagement visit 
programme to inpatient units, services and teams 
is also in place.  Executive and Non-Executive 
Directors had a visibility programme which 
involved them travelling to the Trust’s sites and 
meeting its teams. This included shadowing staff 
to gain a better understanding of the services 
being provided and any issues staff were facing.

The Board of Directors delegates the day-to-day 
management of the Trust’s operational services 
to the Executive Directors, with the Non-Exec-
utive Directors sharing corporate responsibility 
for ensuring the Trust is run in an economical, 
effective and efficient way. 

The Chairman and Chief Executive continually 
review the balance, appropriateness and effec-
tiveness of the Board of Directors, ensuring there 
is continuity when new directors are appointed. 

processes, with individual directors championing 
risk management within their own area of 
responsibility. The group fulfils the lead function 
for managing the Trust-wide Risk Register, 
reviewing all proposed new risks for inclusion, 
monitoring existing risk entries on a regular basis 
and considering requests for risk de-escalations.

The Operational Performance and Risk Group 
is chaired by the Chief Operating Officer and 
considers risk registers at a care group and direc-
torate level. The group is responsible for ensuring 
that risk assessments are consistent, timely and 
that appropriate actions have been taken to 
manage and mitigate the level of risk. Care group 
risk registers are cross-referenced to identify any 
emerging themes or trends in terms of risk and 
items can be escalated for consideration of the 
Executive Management Team when required.

These arrangements ensure that the Trust has 
an effective process for managing all types of 
risk and that it is making appropriate risk man-
agement decisions to enable the organisation to 
deliver its objectives.

Trust performance was closely monitored during 
the year by the Board of Directors through the 
presentation of reports and discussion of key per-
formance information at each of its meetings. The 
Board of Directors acknowledges its responsibility 
for preparing the Annual Report and Accounts 
and considers that, taken as a whole, they are fair, 
balanced and understandable and provide the 
information necessary for patients, regulators and 
other stakeholders to assess the Trust’s perfor-
mance, business model and strategy. As far as the 
Board of Directors is aware, there is no relevant 
audit information which the auditors are unaware 
of and the directors have taken all necessary steps 
as directors to make themselves aware of any 
relevant audit information and to establish that 
the auditors are aware of that information.

The Trust Board has in place a three-year Risk 
Management Strategy (2016-2019) which sets out 
the Trust’s commitment to embedding an inte-
grated approach to managing risk. It is recognised 
that a proactive approach to risk management can 
enable a reduction in harm to patients and staff, 
assist in creating safer care environments and is 
essential for the achievement of the organisation’s 
strategic goals as well as the Trust’s corporate and 
clinical objectives.

The Trust has undertaken a self-assess-
ment to identify areas for improvement 
within risk management and has devel-
oped a plan for implementing its Risk 
Management Strategy. Risk management 
objectives have also been developed 
which are based on the outcome of the 
risk maturity assessment carried out by 
the Trust in line with national guidance 
and best practice.

A review will be undertaken in early 2018/19 as 
part of the Board’s strategy sessions to review the 
definition of the Trust’s risk appetite or the level 
of risk that it is prepared to accept, tolerate, or 
be exposed to. A revised risk appetite statement 
will then be developed following agreement by 
the Board of Directors which is responsible for 
defining the level of risk that can be accepted 
against key domain areas as well as the Trust’s 
strategic goals.  

Hilary Gledhill - Director of Nursing
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Enhanced quality reporting  

The Trust uses a ‘traffic light’ or ‘RAG-rating’ 
system to report on performance and quality 
against selected priorities and key performance 
indicators (KPIs). This is translated to reflect the 
organisation’s performance on the selected 
priorities and initiatives and is reported internally 
at three levels:

Level 1 
Monthly and quarterly performance and 
quality reports to the Board of Directors via 
the Integrated Quality Performance Tracker 
(IQPT)/Quality Dashboard.

Level 2 
Monthly care group reports via a dashboard 
to the operational care groups and their 
directors.

Level 3 
Monthly performance reports at team level 
to service managers and team leaders.

The Trust reports externally to our commissioners 
via contract activity reporting on a monthly basis 
which highlights service performance and quality 
within the organisation.

Reporting processes within the Trust ensure that 
it can effectively monitor its clinical processes 
and activity through performance and quality 
reporting that trigger alerts when issues are 
identified. It is also allows for the analysis of 
root causes of problems by considering timely 
information gathered from different sources at 
various levels of the Trust. As such, the Trust is 
able to effectively manage people and processes 
to improve decisions, be more effective in service 
delivery and deliver better quality services.

Meetings are held regularly with commissioners, 
board members, care group directors, service 
managers and with team leaders and their teams. 
Internal and external audits are undertaken to 
ensure our methods of calculation and delivery 
meet national and local guidelines. 

All NHS Improvement and CQC indicators are 
reported in the Trust’s Integrated Quality Perfor-
mance Tracker and in care group dashboards. 
KPIs that are failing to either meet a target or 
are showing a continued downward trajectory 
(subsequently at risk of breaching a target) are 
reported by exception on performance indicator 
returns (PIs). PIs are discussed with operational 
staff to understand the issues and problems and 
current action plans are agreed that support the 
development of services and make improvements 
that will enable the Trust to meet its contractual 
obligations. 

More information on the governance arrange-
ments within the organisation can be found 
in the Annual Governance Statement and the 
Annual Quality Accounts.

The improvement journey of the Trust was pro-
gressed further this year.  Our Quality Account, 
which is provided as part of this report, provides 
a detailed summary of quality priorities we said 
we would achieve this year and evidences our 
delivery against each.  In addition, our Quality 
Account includes statements received direct from 
our service users. 

Quality remains at the heart of everything we 
do and we will continue on our improvement 
journey.  

The Care Quality Commission  

The Care Quality Commission (CQC) carried out 
its announced scheduled Well-Led inspection of 
the Trust from 16–18 October 2017.

Following the inspection, the Trust received a 
full report into the quality of care provided. The 
overall rating of the Trust improved from the 
previous inspection of ‘requires improvement’ to 
‘good’. The CQC rated the domains of effective, 
caring and well-led as ‘good’. The safe domain 
was rated as ‘requires improvement,’ although 
this was an improvement from the 2016 inspec-
tion when safe was rated as ‘inadequate.’

The CQC identified a number of actions that the 
Trust must take in order to comply with legal 
obligations. Further information regarding the 
CQC inspection can be found in the Annual 
Governance Statement and the Annual Quality 
Accounts later in this report.

Financial Requirements  

The Trust remains compliant with cost allocations 
and charging requirements laid down by HM 
Treasury.

In accordance with Section 43(2A) of the NHS 
Act 2006 the Trust confirms that the income 
from the provision of goods and services for 
the purposes of the health service in England 
is greater than its income from the provision of 
goods and services for any other purposes. The 
Trust has therefore met this requirement.

Also, in accordance with section 43(3A) of the 
NHS Act 2006, the Trust can confirm that the 
other income it has received has had no impact 
on its provision of goods and services for the 
purposes of the health service in England.

Statement as to disclosure to auditors: Each 
director at the time of approving this report has 
confirmed that, as far as the director is aware, 
there is no relevant audit information of which 
the NHS Foundation Trust’s Auditor is unaware. 
The Director has taken all the necessary steps in 
order to be aware of the relevant audit informa-
tion and to establish that the Trust’s Auditor is 
aware of that information.

Remuneration Report  

Annual Statement on Remuneration  

The Remuneration and Nomination Committee 
determines the salaries of the Chief Executive 
and the other Executive Directors by considering 
market rates. All directors are on permanent 
contracts with the Chief Executive and other 
directors having a six-month notice period. There 
is no performance-related pay and no compensa-
tion for early termination for directors. The Chief 
Executive has the potential to earn a discretional 
annual non-consolidated performance-related 
bonus.

The Council of Governors determines the pay for 
the Chairman and Non-Executive Directors and in 
so doing takes into account comparative remu-
neration of other foundation trusts. They are 
on fixed term, renewable contracts. There is no 
performance-related pay and no compensation 
for early termination.

The Remuneration and Nomination Committee 
agreed a cost of living award for the Chief 
Executive and Executive Directors in line with 
Agenda for Change - of 1% with effect from 1 
April 2017. 

There were no other changes relating to senior 
managers’ remuneration made during the year 
and the Council of Governors is currently review-
ing the salaries of the Chairman and Non-Execu-
tive Directors.

MICHELE MORAN 

Chief Executive 

23 MAY 2018

SHARON MAYS 

Chairman 

23 MAY 2018
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Policy on Board of Directors Remuneration

TABLE 1  Non-Executive Director Remuneration Policy 

The Remuneration and Nomination Committee 
is not involved in setting the remuneration 
and terms of service of other senior managers 
currently employed within the Trust, with the 
exception of two senior managers who are 
on Very Senior Manager contracts. All current 
senior managers are on permanent contracts 
with three-month notice periods and standard 
NHS terms and conditions. The remuneration of 
these senior managers is based on the NHS-wide 
job evaluation scheme (known as Agenda for 
Change) which is uplifted annually by the Execu-
tive Management Group in line with the national 
uplift advised by the Department of Health.  

The Trust has no outstanding equal pay claims 
to date and generic job descriptions have been 
developed, ensuring current and future com-
pliance with equal pay requirements. Past and 
present employees are covered by the provisions 
of the NHS Pension Scheme. A description of 
the scheme and its accountancy treatment is 
described in Note 9 to the Annual Accounts.

TABLE 2  Executive Director Remuneration Policy

Element Policy

Fee payable A ‘spot fee’ which is reviewed annually. The setting of that fee and 
the subsequent review are undertaken with reference to national 
benchmarking data and national pay awards (Agenda for Change).

Percentage uplift (cost of living 
increase

Reviewed annually by the Nominations Committee taking into 
consideration national pay awards and financial implications.

Travel Travel and subsistence expenses are reimbursed and paid with 
remuneration via payroll.

Pension contributions scheme Non-Executive Directors do not have access to the NHS Pension.

Other remuneration None.

Element Policy

Salary A 'spot' salary which is reviewed annually.  The setting of 
the salary and the subsequent review are undertaken with 
reference to national benchmarking data and national pay 
awards (Agenda for Change).

Taxable benefits Travel and subsistence expenses are reimbursed and paid 
with salary via payroll.

Annual performance related bonuses No performance related bonuses are paid for directors. 
The Chief Executive has the potential to earn a discretional 
annual non-consolidated performance related bonus.

Long-term performance related bonuses No long-term performance related bonuses are paid.

Pension-related benefits Executive directors and service directors can access the NHS 
Pension scheme.

Percentage uplift (cost-of-living increase) Reviewed annually by the Remuneration Committee 
taking into consideration national pay awards and financial 
implications

Executive Director Remuneration 
Policy

The Chief Executive and Executive Directors 
hold permanent Trust contracts with three and 
six-month notice periods and standard NHS terms 
and conditions. The Remuneration and Nomi-
nation Committee aims to ensure the executive 
Board members are fairly rewarded having proper 
regard to the Trust’s circumstances and linked to 
national advice such as uplift for directors.

Directors do not receive any bonus-related 
payments. The Chief Executive has the potential 
to earn a discretional annual non-consolidated 
performance-related bonus. Details of the 
salaries and allowances of the Chief Executive 
and other Executive Directors during 2016/17 
and 2017/18 are shown in Table 3. Details of the 
pension benefits of the Chief Executive and other 
Executive Directors are also shown in Table 5. The 
information in these tables is subject to audit.

Non-Executive Director Remuneration Policy

Details of salaries and allowances paid to the 
Chairman and Non-Executive Directors during 
2016/17 and 2017/18 are provided in Table 3. 
The information included in this table is subject 
to audit. These allowances are not pensionable 
remuneration.

The Chairman and Non-Executive Directors of 
the Trust are appointed by the Council of Gov-
ernors and are remunerated in accordance with 
terms and conditions approved by the Council of 
Governors.
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The Benefits in Kind covers the monetary value 
of the provision of a car and travel costs. The 
2017-18 pension-related benefits figures have 
been adjusted for employee pension contribu-
tions.

Reporting bodies are required to disclose 
relationship between the remuneration of the 
highest-paid director in their organisation and 
the median remuneration of the organisation’s 
workforce.   

The banded remuneration of the highest-paid 
director at Humber NHS Foundation Trust in the 
financial year 2017/18 was £165,000 – £170,000. 
This was 8.4 times the median remuneration of 
the workforce, which was £19,852. 

Total remuneration includes salary, non-con-
solidated performance-related pay, benefits in 
kind as well as severance payments.  It does not 
include employer pension contributions and the 
cash equivalent transfer value of pensions.

Table 4 below illustrates this calculation.

TABLE 4

2017/18 2016/17

Band of Highest Paid Director’s Total Remuneration (£’000) 165 - 170 160 – 165

Median Total 19,852 21,692

Remuneration Ratio 8.4 7.5

Cash Equivalent Transfer Value (CETV) is the 
actuarially assessed capital value of the pension 
scheme benefits accrued by a member at a 
particular point in time.  The benefits valued are 
the members’ accrued benefits and any contin-
gent spouse or civil partner’s pension payable 
from the scheme.  A CETV is a payment made 
by a pension scheme, or arrangement to secure 
pension benefits in another pension scheme 
or arrangement when the member leaves the 
scheme and chooses to transfer the benefits 
accrued in their former scheme.  

The pension figures shown relate to the benefits 
that the individual has accrued as a consequence 
of their total membership of the pension scheme, 
not just their service in a senior capacity to which 
the disclosure applies. The CETV figures include 
the value of any pension benefits in another 

scheme or arrangement, which the individual 
has transferred to the NHS pension scheme and 
any additional benefits accrued to the member 
as a result of their purchasing additional years of 
pension service in the scheme at their own cost. 
CETVs are calculated within the guidelines and 
framework prescribed by the Institute and Faculty 
of Actuaries.

Real increase in CETV reflects the increase in 
CETV effectively funded by the employer.  It 
takes account of the increase in accrued pension 
due to inflation, contributions paid by the 
employee (including the value of any benefits 
transferred from another pension scheme or 
arrangement) and uses common market valua-
tion factors for the start and end of the period. 

Current CPI applied to Pensions is 1.0%
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Remuneration and Nominations 
Committee

The Remuneration and Nominations Committee 
is a sub-committee of the Board of Directors. This 
committee makes recommendations to the Board 
of Directors about appointments, remuneration 
and terms of service of the Chief Executive and 
the Executive Directors and gives consideration 
to succession planning for directors and reviews 
the structure, size and composition of the Board 
of Directors. The committee is chaired by the 
Trust Chairman and membership includes all the 
Non-Executive Directors and, where appropriate, 
the Chief Executive.

The role of the committee is to keep under 
review the size, structure and composition of 
the Board of Directors and to make recommen-
dations for any changes. It is responsible for the 
recruitment and selection process of the Chief 
Executive and Executive Directors and for deter-
mining salary, terms and conditions and appraisal 
arrangements. Any proposed suspension or 
termination of an Executive Director would also 
come under its remit, in conjunction with the 
Trust’s disciplinary procedures. The committee 
also works with the Council of Governors 
Appointment, Terms and Conditions Committee 
in terms of the equivalent processes in relation to 
the Chairman and Non-Executive Directors. 

The Committee considers the approval of any 
new or replacement Board-level appointments, 
taking into account job descriptions/person spec-
ifications and proposed remuneration packages 
using NHS benchmarks and relevant Very Senior 
Managers guidance. Appointments are made 
using robust recruitment and selection processes 
which include stakeholder sessions and a formal 
panel interview. Appointments are then ratified 
by the committee.

The HR Director attends the committee but is not 
a voting member.

Policy on Board Remuneration

The Chairman and Non-Executive Directors of 
the Trust are appointed by the Council of Gov-
ernors and are remunerated in accordance with 
terms and conditions approved by the Council of 
Governors.

Three meetings of the committee were held 
during the period of this report and details of 
attendance are presented in the Board of Direc-
tors’ attendance table on page 72. The terms of 
reference for the committee are available on the 
Trust’s website or from the Trust Secretary.

Staff Report
Staff costs 2017/18 2016/17

Permanent Other Total Total

£000 £000 £000 £000 

Salaries and wages 67,780 6,629 74,409 90,467 

Social security costs 6,840 - 6,840 8,220 

Apprenticeship levy 343 - 343 - 

Employer's contributions to NHS 
pensions 

8,588 - 8,588 10,377 

Pension cost - other 579 - 579 355 

Other post employment benefits - - - - 

Other employment benefits - - - - 

Termination benefits - - - - 

Temporary staff 2,887 2,887 4,094 

Total gross staff costs 84,130 9,516 93,646 113,513 

Recoveries in respect of seconded 
staff

- - - - 

Total staff costs 84,130 9,516 93,646 113,513 

Of which

Costs capitalised as part of assets 122 - 122 108 

Average number of employees 
(WTE basis) 2017/18 2016/17

Permanent
Number

Other
Number

Total
Number

Total
Number

Medical and dental 67 - 67 65 

Ambulance staff - - - - 

Administration and estates 479 16 495 546 

Healthcare assistants and other 
support staff 

615 28 643 785 

Nursing, midwifery and health 
visiting staff 

682 103 785 951 

Nursing, midwifery and health 
visiting learners 

4 - 4 12 

Scientific, therapeutic and technical 
staff 

232 2 234 326 

Healthcare science staff - - - - 

Social care staff 78 1 79 60 

Other - - - - 

Total average numbers 2,157 150 2,307 2,745 

Of which:

Number of employees (WTE)
engaged on capital projects

3 - 3 4 
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Breakdown of Staff

Male Female

Directors 2.0 5.0 

Senior Manager 5.0 14.9 

Employees 515.4 1,623.7 

Information on the remuneration of the directors and on the expenses of the governors and 
the directors.

2017/18 2016/17

Governors Directors Total Governors Directors Total

the total number of in office 10 14 24 10 16 26

the number of receiving expenses 
in the reporting period and

14 13 27 10 14 24

the aggregate sum of expenses 
paid to in the reporting period.

£2,171 £14,268 £16,439 £2,382 £11,682 £14,064

Staff sickness absence

2017/18 2016/17

Number Number

Total FTE Days Lost 28,393           31,535 

Total FTE Days Available (Years)             2,291             2,596 

Average Sick Days per FTE                   12                   12 

Staff Policies and actions applied 
during the Financial Year 

Policies applied during the financial year 
for giving full and fair consideration to 
applications for employment made by 
disabled persons, having regard to their 
particular aptitudes and abilities.

The Trust’s policy is to give full and fair consid-
eration to applications for employment received 
from disabled persons, having regard to their 
particular aptitudes and abilities and recognising 
the Confident Employer accreditation and NHS 
Employment Standards. Along with a policy for 
Recruitment and Selection, the Trust provides 
regular training and guidance to all recruiting 
managers. Following a successful pilot the Trust 

will roll out values-based recruitment within the 
wider organisation in the next few months.  This 
approach will ensure that staff joining will have 
the right values to support the Trust’s values of 
Caring, Learning and Growing. 

The Trust’s Recruitment and Retention plan has 
been launched. The three key objectives for the 
Recruitment and Retention Plan are:

• To become an employer of choice to attract 
and retain talented staff 

• To have robust values-based recruitment 
that ensures the right skills at the right time

• To have excellent staff engagement and 
retention

Policies applied during the financial year 
for continuing the employment of, and 
for arranging appropriate training for, 
employees who have become disabled 
persons during the period.

The Trust has recently revised the Sickness 
Policy and this reinforces support available to 
staff. Manager and supervisor training has been 
delivered and over the forthcoming year advice 
will be provided to managers to support staff 
with long-term conditions, giving consideration 
to reasonable adjustments and redeployment 
when required.  

Policies applied during the financial year 
for training, career development and 
promotion of disabled employees.

All policies are subject to an Equality Impact 
Assessment and trade unions are involved in the 
agreement and introduction of revised and new 
policies.

The Trust’s Workforce and Organisational 
Development Strategy was launched in October 
2016 and the actions arising from the action 
plan will be embedded across the Trust in the 
2017/18 financial year.  Going forward, work has 
commenced on the Talent Management strategy 
and approach for the organisation.

The Trust has also refreshed the Appraisal Policy 
which sets out clear expectations to support 
Talent Management and succession planning for 
the Trust.

Actions taken in the financial year to 
provide employees on a systematic basis 
with information on matters of concern 
to them as employees.

The Trust communicates with staff on a regular 
basis through Midday Mail, an email bulletin. 
There is also the monthly ‘Board Talk’ newsletter 
and regular face-to-face meetings.

The Trust holds monthly trade union meetings 
through the Trust Consultation and Negotiation 
Committee (TCNC).

Actions taken in the financial year to 
consult employees or their representa-
tives on a regular basis so that the views 
of employees can be taken into account 
in making decisions which are likely to 
affect their interests.

The Trust participates in the quarterly Staff 
Friends and Family Survey and produces local 
surveys to establish the views of employees. The 
Trust has also introduced a quarterly Pulse Check 
Survey with a focus on engagement.

Actions taken in the financial year to en-
courage the involvement of employees in 
the NHS Foundation Trust’s performance.

At the end of 2016 the Trust Workforce and 
Organisational Development Strategy was 
developed and was refreshed in December 2017.  
The strategy sets out a Framework for Delivery 
which included four key strategic workforce and 
organisational development priorities to achieve 
the vision over the next five years. 

These key priorities are

• Healthy Organisational Culture

• Capable and Sustainable Workforce

• Effective Leadership and Management

• Enabling Transformation and Organisational 
Development

In addition to this the Trust encourages staff to 
be active members of the Trust and promotes 
this through the intranet and the induction 
process.

Information on the findings and feedback of the 
Staff Friends and Family Survey is shared with 
staff.

Information relating to the Trust’s performance 
and Board information is shared with staff on the 
Trust’s intranet site.
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Actions taken in the financial year to 
encourage health and wellbeing for 
employees.

The Trust has introduced additional policies 
applied during the financial year.

• The Trust has developed a Personal Respon-
sibility Framework to support a change in 
culture and to ensure staff understand their 
responsibility within the organisation and 
recognise the valuable role and contribution 
they provide.

• The Trust has a well-established Leadership 
Forum and this has been refreshed to make 
sessions  more interactive and focused on 
key priorities and challenges.

• The Trust has also introduced a Reward 
Scheme for staff which provides an addi-
tional day of annual leave (pro rata) if staff 
undertake all of their statutory and manda-
tory training, completion of their appraisal 
and have received their flu vaccination if 
they are working within a clinical area.

• The Trust has also refreshed the following 
policies:

- Annual Leave

- Flexible Workforce

- Job Evaluation

- Uniform Dress Code and ID Badge

• The Trust’s Leadership Programme was 
agreed in the 2016/2017 financial year and 
the first cohort of training took place in May 
2017.

• In advance of the introduction of the new 
Apprenticeship Levy, the Trust has developed 
a plan and created a steering group to 
identify opportunities for new apprentice-
ship  roles.

• The Trust has developed a Staff Employee of 
the Month scheme.

Occupational Health

The Trust has an Occupational Health department 
and provides a service internally and externally to 
private sector organisations.

The service offers confidential and independent 
support on pre-employment health checks, 
health referrals, vaccinations, back care support 
and counselling.

To support the wellbeing of staff, the service 
also provides aromatherapy sessions through an 
external provider.

Health and Safety

The Trust’s Health and Safety department 
supports the Employee Wellbeing agenda 
with regular stress audits across the Trust. The 
department also supports the Trust’s induction 
programme, providing health and safety training 
to staff.

Staff Survey 

The Trust’s Workforce and Organisational Devel-
opment Strategy, along with the Communication 
Strategy, supports continued improvement to staff 
engagement, which is measured in the national 
annual Staff Survey and the Staff Friends and Family 
Test (FFT).  We have also introduced a quarterly 
internal pulse check on the staff engagement 
elements of the national staff survey to enable us to 
monitor progress within different areas of the Trust, 
adjusting plans where necessary.

The Trust’s progress during 2017/18 against our four strategic Workforce and 
Organisational Development priorities is set out below.  

Healthy 
Organisational 
Culture

Capable/Sustainable 
Workforce

Effective Leadership/
Management

Transformation 
& Organisational 
Development

• HR Policy Review/
update programme 
including Flexible 
Working Policy

• Health & Wellbeing 
Programme in place

• Launch of Vision & 
Values

• Launch of Staff 
Charter

• Personal Responsibility 
Policy in place

• Attendance and 
mandatory training 
compliance targets 
achieved

• Increased staff en-
gagement via planned; 
opportunistic and 
reactive interventions

• Introduced a quarterly 
Pulse Check to meas-
ure staff engagement

• Recruitment & Reten-
tion Plan in place

• Recruitment Training 
in place

• Increased Recruitment 
Activity - Humber 
‘brand’ and use of 
social media

• Values driven stake-
holder recruitment

• Implementation of 
recruitment Key Per-
formance Indicators

• Review of temporary 
staffing/agency spend

• New Appraisal 
Policy (including talent 
management and 
succession planning) 
developed

• Implementation of the 
Apprenticeship Levy

• Introduction of a 
Leadership Framework

• Increased manage-
ment toolkit/training

• Developed and run 
a Trust Leadership 
Programme (Zeal)

• Introduced a Distribut-
ed Leadership Plan

• Board Development 
Programme in place

• Quarterly Leadership 
Forum in place

• E-Coach & Mentorship 
available

• Healthcare Leadership 
Model available

• Improved senior 
leadership visibility 
and accessibility

• Increased manage-
ment information and 
Key Performance

• Implementation of 
the Workforce & OD 
Strategy plan

• Internal OD consul-
tancy

• Updated HR & OD 
Intranet

• Commenced the 
implementation of the 
Electronic Staff Record 
Manager and Employ-
ee Self Service

• Expansion of E-Forms

• Centralisation of 
Training Budget linked 
to Learning & Devel-
opment Plan

• Statutory/Mandatory 
Training Group set up

• E-learning capability 
recruited

• Commenced HR 
modernisation and 
Cost Improvement 
Programme

continued overleaf
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Healthy 
Organisational 
Culture

Capable/Sustainable 
Workforce

Effective Leadership/
Management

Transformation 
& Organisational 
Development

• Use of staff feedback 
e.g. annual staff 
survey; FFT, exit 
interviews, Pulse 
Checks to improve 
staff engagement.

• Improved uptake 
of the Annual Flu 
Campaign

• Introduction of new 
roles/ways of working

• Staff Reward & 
Recognition Scheme 
introduced

• Compliance with 
Equality Delivery 
Scheme 2

• Integrated Health & 
Social Care develop-
ment

• Uptake of National 
Shadow Board 
Programme – tailored 
for the Trust (shadow 
Executive Manage-
ment Team)

• Maximisation of new 
business

Workforce and Organisational Development priorities continued

The Board of Directors has agreed six key Work-
force and Organisational Development priorities 
to be delivered in 2018/19:

• Staff engagement

• Staff health and wellbeing

• Human resources and organisational devel-
opment transformation

• Resourcing

• Learning and development

• Leadership and management capability

One of the Trust’s key priorities is to ensure all 
staff feel empowered and senior leaders are 
accessible and visible. Our new values of Caring, 
Learning and Growing support this priority.

The Trust has held focused sessions on staff 
engagement and staff health and wellbeing at 
its Leadership Forum and has developed a Staff 
Engagement and Wellbeing Plan.

Employee engagement is a priority for the Trust 
and we are keen to ensure that staff feel they 
have a voice and are able to contribute.

Summary of the Performance of the 
NHS Staff Survey

In the 2017 National Staff Survey the Trust was 
compared with other Combined Mental Health /
Learning Disability and Community Trusts. The 
overall response rate for our comparator group 
was 44.8%. The response rate for Humber NHS 
Foundation Trust was 37.6%, which equated to 
470 responses from a usable sample of 1,249. 
18% of the responses were from Administration 
and Clerical, 17% from Mental Health nurses and 
10% from Maintenance/Ancillary staff.

The overall staff engagement score for the Trust, 
which ranges from one to five, with one indi-
cating staff are poorly engaged with their work, 
team and their trust, and five indicating staff are 
highly engaged, is 3.56. This figure has slightly 
decreased from 3.64 in the 2016 survey. The 
national average is 3.79.

Last year we employed around 500 additional 
community staff who had transferred out of the 
Trust before the 2017 staff survey was conduct-
ed. This may have had an impact on our results 
when compared to previous years.

The results of the 2017 National Staff Survey 
show:

Top Five Ranking Scores (where the Trust 
compares most favourably with other combined 
mental health/learning disability and community 
trusts in England).

• Percentage of staff/colleagues reporting 
most recent experience of harassment, 
bullying or abuse

• Percentage of staff reporting errors, near 
misses or incidents witnessed in the last 
month

• Percentage of staff believing that the 
organisation provides equal opportunities for 
career progression or promotion

• Percentage of staff experiencing discrimina-
tion at work in the last 12 months

• Percentage of staff witnessing potentially 
harmful errors, near misses or incidents in 
last month

Bottom Five Ranking Scores (where the Trust 
compares least favourably with other combined 
mental health/learning disability and community 
trusts in England).

• Staff confidence and security in reporting 
unsafe clinical practice

• Effective team working

• Effective use of patient/service user feed-
back

• Percentage of staff able to contribute 
towards improvements at work

• Percentage of staff agreeing that their role 
makes a difference to patients/service users

The Trust has an established Health and Wellbe-
ing and Engagement Group with representatives 
across all areas of the Trust and oversees the 
Staff Engagement Plan. Staff engagement is a 
key priority of the Trust and two of the Trust’s 
Leadership Forums have been dedicated to Staff 
Engagement with an opportunity to share good 
practice and develop opportunities to further 
improve staff engagement.

To address the key findings in relation to staff 
being able to contribute towards improvement at 
work, the Trust is re-launching the staff sugges-
tion scheme, ensuring staff are involved in and 
given the opportunity to contribute to improve-
ment programmes, i.e. quality, transformation. 
We are exploring opportunities for shadowing 
to support improvement at work. In the ‘back 
to basics’ work, there is a requirement to ensure 
opportunities for team meetings and timely 
communication takes place and supervision and 
appraisals are conducted.

In addressing the percentage of staff agreeing 
that their role makes a difference to patients/
service users, the Trust now has an established 
recognition scheme and as part of the Staff 
Engagement Plan one of the measures is to 
ensure every role counts and this will be a focus 
of staff induction, mandatory training , service 
improvement and staff appraisal.
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Exit packages

Humber NHS Foundation Trust did not have any exit package arrangements in 2017/18 (£Nil: 2016/17).

Reporting of compensation schemes - 
exit packages 2017/18

Number of 
compulsory 

redundancies
Number

Number of other 
departures 

agreed
Number

Total number of 
exit packages

Number

Exit package cost band (including any 
special payment element)

  

<£10,000 - - -

£10,001 - £25,000 - - -

£25,001 - 50,000 - - -

£50,001 - £100,000 - - -

£100,001 - £150,000 - - -

£150,001 - £200,000 - - -

>£200,000 - - -

Total number of exit packages by type - - -

Total resource cost (£) £0 £0 £0

Reporting of compensation schemes - 
exit packages 2016/17

Number of 
compulsory 

redundancies
Number

Number of other 
departures 

agreed
Number

Total number of 
exit packages

Number

Exit package cost band (including any 
special payment element)

  

<£10,000 - - -

£10,001 - £25,000 - - -

£25,001 - 50,000 - - -

£50,001 - £100,000 - - -

£100,001 - £150,000 - - -

£150,001 - £200,000 - - -

>£200,000 - - -

Total number of exit packages by type - - -

Total resource cost (£) £0 £0 £0

Exit packages: other (non-compulsory) 
departure payments 2017/18 2016/17

Payments 
agreed

Total value of 
agreements

Payments 
agreed

Total value of 
agreements

Number £000 Number £000

Voluntary redundancies including early 
retirement contractual costs

- - - -

Mutually agreed resignations (MARS) 
contractual costs

- - - -

Early retirements in the efficiency of the 
service contractual costs

- - - -

Contractual payments in lieu of notice - - - -

Exit payments following Employment 
Tribunals or court orders

- - - -

Non-contractual payments requiring HMT 
approval

- - - -

Total - - - -

Of which: - - - -

Non-contractual payments requiring HMT 
approval made to individuals where the 
payment value was more than 12 months’ 
of their annual salary

- - - -

Expenditure on consultancy

2017/18 2016/17

£000 £000

Consultancy costs 202 212
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Off-payroll arrangements

As part of its commitment to tackling tax avoid-
ance and ensuring everyone pays their fair share, 
HM Treasury reviewed the tax arrangements of 
senior public sector employees and published its 
report in May 2012. The review recommended 
that, in central government departments and 
their arm’s length bodies, for all new engage-
ments and contract renewals that board mem-

bers and senior officials with significant financial 
responsibility should be on the organisation’s 
payroll unless there are exceptional circumstances 
– in which case the Accounting Officer should 
approve the arrangements – and such exceptions 
should exist for no longer than six months. 

The Trust’s current position is presented below:

To ensure adherence to HM Treasury requirements in respect of tax and national insur-
ance for public sector appointees, we have arrangements in place for the appropriate 
use of external contractors where engagements last for six months or more and the 
daily rate exceeds £245. These arrangements apply when we contract with an individual 
through an intermediary company, and also where the contract is direct with an individ-
ual, and provides the appropriate assurances that the independent contractor is comply-
ing with their income tax and national insurance obligations.

For all off-payroll engagements as of 31 Mar 2018 for more than £245 per 
day and that last for longer than six months

2017/18

Number of 
engagements

Number of existing engagements as of 31 Mar 2018 8

Of which:

Number that have existed for less than one year at the time of reporting 3

Number that have existed for between one and two years at the time of reporting 3

Number that have existed for between two and three years at the time of reporting 2

Number that have existed for between three and four years at the time of reporting -

Number that have existed for four or more years at the time of reporting -

For any off-payroll engagements of board members, and/or senior officials 
with significant financial responsibility, between 1 Apr 2017 and 31 Mar 
2018

2017/18

Number of 
engagements

Number of off-payroll engagements of board members, and/or, senior officials with 
significant financial responsibility, during the financial year.

1

Number of individuals that have been deemed “board members and/or senior 
officials with significant financial responsibility”. This figure should include both 
off-payroll and on-payroll engagements.

1

A senior official has been engaged to cover the secondment of the permanent staff member to a role 
within the Local Authority.

Number of employees who were relevant 
union officials during the relevant period

Full-time equivalent employee number

24 Trade Union Representatives 3.26 FTE

Percentage of time Number of employees

0% 2

1-50% 22

51-99% 0

100% 0

First Column Figures

Provide the total cost of facility time 35067.89

Provide the total pay bill 93646000

Provide the percentage of the total pay bill spent 
on facility time, calculated as: (total cost of facility 
time ÷ total pay bill) x 100

0.04%

For all new off-payroll engagements, or those that reached six months in 
duration, between 01 Apr 2017 and 31 Mar 2018, for more than £245 per day 
and that last for longer than six months

2017/18

Number of 
engagements

Number of new engagements, or those that reached six months in duration 
between 01 Apr 2017 and 31 Mar 2018

3

Of which: Number assessed as within the scope of IR35 0

Number assessed as not within the scope of IR35 3

Number engaged directly (via PSC contracted to trust) and are on the trust’s payroll 0

Number of engagements reassessed for consistency/assurance purposes during the 
year

0

Number of engagements that saw a change to IR35 status following the consistency 
review

0

Disclosures on trade union facility time is reported on the tables below.

Table 1: Relevant union officials

Table 2: Percentage of time spent on facility time 

Table 3: Percentage of pay bill spent on facility time 
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Table 4: Paid trade union activities 

Time spent on paid trade union activities as a percentage of total paid facility time hours calculated as: 
(total hours spent on paid trade union activities by relevant union officials during the relevant period ÷ 
total paid facility time hours) x 100 1.70%

Code of Governance

The Trust has applied the principles of the NHS 
Foundation Trust Code of Governance on a 
comply or explain basis. The NHS Foundation 
Trust Code of Governance, most recently revised 
in July 2014, is based on the principles of the 
UK Corporate Governance Code issued in 2012. 
Schedule A to the Code of Governance sets out 
the requirements in six categories and the Trust’s 
response and declarations for each area are 
below. All statutory requirements as per category 
1 of Schedule A of the Code of Governance have 
been complied with, if appropriate in the year.

The Board of Directors will reserve certain mat-
ters to itself and will delegate others to specific 
committees and Executive Directors. Details of 
this are set out in a document called Standing 
Orders, Scheme of Delegation and Standing 

Financial Instructions. Copies of this document 
are available from the Trust Secretary or available 
on the Trust’s website.

During the financial year 2017/18 the principles 
of the code were applied and requirements met. 
Schedule A of the Code of Governance sets out 
the requirements in six areas and the response 
and declaration from the Trust for each area is 
included in the table below.

As per section 1 of Schedule A of the Code of 
Governance, all statutory requirements have 
been complied with, if appropriate.

Schedule A, section 2 of the Code of Governance 
requires a declaration and supporting explanation 
for the provisions set out below and an expla-
nation is included or a reference is made to the 
relevant section in the Annual Report.

Code of 
Governance 
Reference

Requirement

A.1.1 The schedule of matters reserved for the board of directors should include a clear state-
ment detailing the roles and responsibilities of the council of governors. This statement 
should also describe how any disagreements between the council of governors and the 
board of directors will be resolved. The annual report should include this schedule of mat-
ters or a summary statement of how the board of directors and the council of governors 
operate, including a summary of the types of decisions to be taken by each of the boards 
and which are delegated to the executive management of the board of directors.
Comply – SFIs - Board of Directors – page 85-86

A.1.2 The annual report should identify the chairperson, the deputy chairperson (where there is 
one), the chief executive, the senior independent director (see A.4.1) and the chairperson 
and members of the nominations, audit and remuneration committees. It should also set 
out the number of meetings of the board and those committees and individual attendance 
by directors.
Comply – Board of Directors – page 72

A.5.3 The annual report should identify the members of the council of governors, including a 
description of the constituency or organisation that they represent, whether they were 
elected or appointed, and the duration of their appointments. The annual report should 
also identify the nominated lead governor.
Comply – Council of Governors – page 86

B.1.1 The board of directors should identify in the annual report each non-executive director it 
considers to be independent, with reasons where necessary.
Comply - Board of Directors – page 42-43

B.1.4 The board of directors should include in its annual report a description of each director’s 
skills, expertise and experience. Alongside this, in the annual report, the board should 
make a clear statement about its own balance, completeness and appropriateness to the 
requirements of the NHS foundation trust.
Comply - Board of Directors – page 74-80

B.2.10 A separate section of the annual report should describe the work of the nominations 
committee(s), including the process it has used in relation to board appointments.
Comply – Board of Directors – page no 54

B.3.1 A chairperson’s other significant commitments should be disclosed to the council of 
governors before appointment and included in the annual report. Changes to such com-
mitments should be reported to the council of governors as they arise, and included in the 
next annual report. Page 80
Comply – register of interest is publicly available for the chairman and all those on the 
Board of Directors. It is presented at each meeting of the Board of Directors.

B.5.6 Governors should canvass the opinion of the trust’s members and the public, and for 
appointed governors the body they represent, on the NHS foundation trust’s forward plan, 
including its objectives, priorities and strategy, and their views should be communicated 
to the board of directors. The annual report should contain a statement as to how this 
requirement has been undertaken and satisfied.
Comply – Council of Governors – page no 81

B.6.1 The board of directors should state in the annual report how performance evaluation of 
the board, its committees, and its directors, including the chairperson, has been conduct-
ed.
Comply – Board of Directors – page no 69

B.6.2 Where there has been external evaluation of the board and/or governance of the trust, 
the external facilitator should be identified in the annual report and a statement made as 
to whether they have any other connection to the trust.
Comply as required – Board of Directors – page no 69

C.1.1 The directors should explain in the annual report their responsibility for preparing the 
annual report and accounts, and state that they consider the annual report and accounts, 
taken as a whole, are fair, balanced and understandable and provide the information nec-
essary for patients, regulators and other stakeholders to assess the NHS foundation trust’s 
performance, business model and strategy. Directors should also explain their approach to 
quality governance in the Annual Governance Statement (within the annual report).
Comply – Board of Directors – page no 44
External Auditors responsibilities – page 69
Annual Governance Statement - page 101

C.2.1 The annual report should contain a statement that the board has conducted a review of 
the effectiveness of its system of internal controls.
Comply – Annual Governance Statement –page no 104
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C.2.2 A trust should disclose in the annual report:
(a) if it has an internal audit function, how the function is structured and what role it 
performs; or
(b) if it does not have an internal audit function, that fact and the processes it employs for 
evaluating and continually improving the effectiveness of its risk management and internal 
control processes.
Comply –Audit Committee – page 73

C.3.5 If the council of governors does not accept the audit committee’s recommendation on 
the appointment, reappointment or removal of an external auditor, the board of directors 
should include in the annual report a statement from the audit committee explaining the 
recommendation and should set out reasons why the council of governors has taken a 
different position.
Comply - not applicable dependent on outcome of decision

C.3.9 A separate section of the annual report should describe the work of the audit committee 
in discharging its responsibilities. The report should include:
• the significant issues that the committee considered in relation to financial statements, 

operations and compliance, and how these issues were addressed;
• an explanation of how it has assessed the effectiveness of the external audit process 

and the approach taken to the appointment or re-appointment of the external auditor, 
the value of external audit services and information on the length of tenure of the 
current audit firm and when a tender was last conducted; and

• if the external auditor provides non-audit services, the value of the non-audit services 
provided and an explanation of how auditor objectivity and independence are safe-
guarded.

Comply –Audit Committee – page no 98

D.1.3 Where an NHS foundation trust releases an executive director, for example to serve as a 
non-executive director elsewhere, the remuneration disclosures of the annual report should 
include a statement of whether or not the director will retain such earnings.
Comply –not applicable

E.1.5 The board of directors should state in the annual report the steps they have taken to en-
sure that the members of the board, and in particular the non-executive directors, develop 
an understanding of the views of governors and members about the NHS foundation trust, 
for example through attendance at meetings of the council of governors, direct face-to-
face contact, surveys of members’ opinions and consultations.
Comply – Board of Directors – page no 85

E.1.6 The board of directors should monitor how representative the NHS foundation trust’s 
membership is and the level and effectiveness of member engagement and report on this 
in the annual report.
Comply- foundation trust membership – page no 87

The information listed in Schedule A, section 
three is publicly available via the Annual Report, 
the Trust’s website or the Trust Secretary.

To comply with section four, re-appointment 
of the non-executive directors, the Chairman 
will confirm to governors that following formal 
performance evaluation, the performance of the 
individual proposed for re-appointment continues 
to be effective and demonstrates commitment to 
the role.

In respect of section five, the names of governors 
submitted for election or re-election are accom-
panied by sufficient biographical details and any 
other relevant information to enable members 
to take an informed decision on their election. 
This includes prior performance information. 
This requirement is met through the individual’s 
election statement.

The Trust complies with all provisions of section 
six.

External Reviews

During the course of the year a review was un-
dertaken on Governance and Human Resources.

This review was commissioned from Deloitte 
at an in-year cost of £35k. Deloitte is also the 
Trust’s external auditor appointed by the Council 
of Governors.

A full inspection review of the Trust was also 
undertaken by the CQC as reported earlier. No 
costs were attached to this review

Board of Directors Sub-Committees

The Board of Directors has seven sub-commit-
tees, details of each are provided below:

Remuneration and Nominations  
Committee 
Details can be found on page 47 of this report.

Audit Committee (formerly Integrated Audit 
and Governance Committee) 
The Integrated Audit and Governance Committee 
(IAGC) was separated into the Audit Committee 
and the Quality Committee in 2017. The Audit 
Committee provides a means of independent and 
objective review and seeks assurance about the 
adequate and effective operation of the Trust’s 
internal control systems.

The committee comprises three non-executives 
directors and is chaired by Non-Executive Direc-
tor Peter Baren. In accordance with NHS Im-
provement guidance, Mr Baren has relevant and 
recent financial experience. The committee met 
five times last year and included attendance from 
the Director of Finance, the external and internal 
auditors and the Counter-Fraud Manager.

The committee reviewed the Annual Report and 
Accounts, including the opinion of our External 
Auditors prior to their submission to Trust Board.

The committee approved the annual audit and 
counter-fraud plans and reviewed all internal and 
external audit reports.

The Committee made recommendations to the 
Council of Governors, via the Finance and Audit 
Governor Group in relation to appointment of 
External Auditors for the Trust, this was approved 
at the Council of Governors Meeting in March 
2017.

The chair of the committee reports on its 
proceedings to the Board of Directors as soon 
as practicable after the meeting, raising any 
significant issues of concern.

The Audit Committee approved the Annual Audit 
Plan which includes significant risks to be tested.
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Charitable Funds Committee 
The Charitable Funds Committee oversees 
the administration of the charitable funds on 
behalf of the Trust (charity number 1052727). 
The committee meets bi-monthly and provides 
advice to the Board of Directors. The committee 
was chaired by Non-Executive Director Peter 
Baren until September 2017 when Paula Bee, 
Non-Executive Director, took over as the Chair. 
The committee comprises another Non-Executive 
Director, the Director of Finance, acting as 
financial trustee, the Charitable Funds Manager 
and the Financial Services Manager. The method 
of appointment of trustees is governed by the 
Trust’s standing orders, with the Charitable Funds 
Committee structure established within its terms 
of reference.

Attendance of directors at the committee 
meetings is presented in the Board of Directors’ 
attendance table.

Finance Committee 
The primary role of the Finance Committee is to 
monitor, review and support the Finance Direc-
torate of the Trust, making recommendations to 
the Board of Directors as appropriate and taking 
actions as required. It challenges the timeliness, 
accuracy and quality of financial and perfor-
mance measures and reporting, and the systems 
underpinning them. It also ensures performance 
and relevant action plans are reviewed and 
managed in pursuit of Trust objectives and that 
review and challenge is provided to the Estates 
and Facilities work programme, policies and 
procedures.

The Committee was initially chaired by Peter 
Baren, Non-Executive Director, but on appoint-
ment Francis Patton took this over. Other core 
members of the Committee are two Non-Exec-
utive Directors, Chief Operating Officer, Director 
of Finance and the Deputy Director of Finance/
Financial Controller.

Attendance of directors at the Finance Com-
mittee meetings is presented in the Board of 
Directors’ attendance table.

Mental Health Legislation Committee 

The Mental Health Legislation Committee is 
established as a sub-committee of the Board of 
Directors accountable to the Board of Directors. 
The principal aims of the committee are to:

• provide strategic leadership pertaining to the 
Mental Health Act, the Mental Capacity Act 
and their respective codes of practice and 
other related mental health legislation;

• monitor, provide challenge and seek assur-
ance of compliance with external standards 
relating to mental health legislation;

• approve and review mental health legislation 
polices and protocols.

The committee was chaired by Non-Executive 
Director David Crick until January with Mike 
Smith, Non Executive Director, taking over in 
February 2018. It has a core membership of 
one other Non-Executive Director (who is also a 
designated Manager Panel member), the Medical 
Director, Director of Nursing, and the Mental 
Health Legislation Manager (who is also the chair 
of the Mental Health Legislation Steering Group). 
An independent consultant psychiatrist, who 
has recognised particular experience in mental 
health and related legislation, is also part of the 
membership together with a representative of 
each local authority and a care group director 
with nursing experience.

Attendance of directors at the Mental Health 
Legislation Committee meetings is presented in 
the Board of Directors’ attendance table.

Quality Committee 
The Quality Committee was established in 
May 2017 to assure the Board of Directors that 
appropriate processes are in place to give con-
fidence that quality, patient safety performance 
and associated risks are monitored effectively and 
that appropriate actions are taken to address any 
deviation from accepted standards and to man-
age identified risks. It also reviews performance in 
relation to information governance and research 
and development requirements are monitored 
effectively with appropriate actions being taken 
to address any performance issues and risks.

The Committee also provides the strategic 
overview of and assurance against clinical and 
quality governance, clinical risk and patient and 
carer experience and engagement issues in the 
Trust as well as:

• providing a strategic overview of Clinical 
Governance, Risk and Patient Experience to 
the Board of Directors.

• providing oversight and assurance to the 
Board of Directors in relation to all activities 
relating to Quality, Patient Safety and Patient 
Experience on behalf of the Board.

• providing an assurance to the Trust Board 
that risks and governance issues of all types 
are identified, monitored and controlled to 
an acceptable level.

For assurance, reports were received from the 
Quality and Patient Safety Committee (QPaS) 
demonstrating the work that is being done to 
improve patient care, patient safety and patient 
experience.

The Committee is chaired by a Non-Executive 
Director, Mike Cooke, and has a core member-
ship of two other Non-Executive Directors, the 
Chief Executive (ex-officio), Director of Nursing 
– Management support to the Committee, the 
Medical Director and Chief Operating Officer.

Attendance of directors at Quality Committee 
meetings is presented in the Board of Directors’ 
attendance table.

Strategic Investment Committee 
The Strategic Investment Committee ensures 
that processes governing strategic investments 
are being followed and makes recommendations 
to the Board of Directors on major capital or 
revenue expenditure, joint ventures, acquisitions 
and mergers, purchase, sale or alteration of 
property (above an agreed threshold) and service 
expansion or major service change.

The committee Chair was Non-Executive Director 
Andrew Milner until October 2017 when Mike 
Cooke, Non-Executive Director, took over as 
temporary Chair until January 2018. Francis 
Patton, Non-Executive Director, became the 
new Chair in March 2018. The committee has a 
core membership of two other Non-Executive 
Directors, the Director of Finance, Infrastructure 
and Informatics and Deputy Director of Business 
and Contracting.

Attendance of directors at the Strategic Invest-
ment Committee meetings is presented in the 
Board of Directors’ attendance table.
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Board of Directors, Sub-Committee and Council of Governors Meeting Attendance

There were a number of Board of Directors and sub-committee meetings held during the period of this 
report. The table below shows the attendance by members of the Board of Directors. Some members of 
the Board of Directors are not members of some of the committees but will attend by request if there is a 
specific item to be discussed.

On some occasions, non-executive directors may have attended a committee meeting that they do not 
normally attend. The Chairman attends each committee during the year to observe.

Teresa Cope  
Chief Operating 
Officer (Career break 
from 5 February 
2018 – Left the Trust 
31/3/18

9/9 2/3 N/A N/A 5/9 3/5 4/5 2/3

Lynn Parkinson 
Interim Chief Oper-
ating Officer (from 5 
February 2018)

3/3 N/A 0/1 N/A N/A 2/2 2/2 1/1 N/A

Internal Audit

In public sector organisations, internal audit work 
is regulated by the Public Sector Internal Audit 
Standards, which became effective on 1 April 
2013 and govern the way in which all internal 
audit services operating within the public sector 
(including the NHS) should undertake their 
functions with regard to assurance audits and 
consultancy activity. The standards also support 
the professional practice of internal audit across 
the NHS.

AuditOne provides the internal audit service for 
the Trust. AuditOne took over from the East 
Coast Audit Consortium (ECAC) on 1 June 2017. 
The Director of AuditOne takes a strategic role 
for overseeing the effective delivery of the audit 
service at the Trust and the operational element 
of the service is undertaken by a team led by an 
audit manager who maintains regular contact 
with Trust staff. Executive responsibility for the 
internal audit function lies with the Director of 
Finance.

The role of internal audit, as defined by the 
Institute of Internal Auditors, is to provide an 
independent assurance function that the Trust’s 
risk management, governance and internal 
control processes are operating effectively. 
Internal audit oversight forms part of the core 
remit of the Audit Committee within the Trust 
– the committee’s terms of reference require it 
to regularly review the effectiveness of internal 
audit and to oversee the overall delivery of the 
internal audit service to the Trust.

*denotes optional attendance at committee

External Audit

For 2017/18, the Trust’s external auditor was 
Deloitte. During the year a total of £59k (includ-
ing VAT) was paid to Deloitte for audit services.

There was a further £29k paid for a review of 
Governance and Human Resources.

To maintain auditor objectivity, independence 
and probity, these services were carried out by 
Deloitte staff who were not involved in the Trust 
statutory audits, nor did the audit staff have 
any involvement with the findings, which were 
reported directly to the Trust and not via the 
audit partner.

As part of its external audit plan, Deloitte tested 
risks relating to revenue recognition in respect of 
NHS income, property valuations and manage-
ment override of controls as part of its review 
of the 2016/17 financial statements. All controls 
around these risks were found to be appropriate 
and in line with Deloitte’s expectations. Rec-
ommendations following the audit have been 
made in relation to asset valuations, fixed asset 
register and contract variations. These have been 
accepted by management and actions will be put 
in place to address each of them.

The contract for External Audit Services was 
renewed with Deloitte for a three-year period 
from April 2017.

Name & Position Board Remunera-
tion

Committee

Mental 
Health 

Legislation 
Committee

Charitable 
Funds 

Committee

Audit 
Committee

Strategic 
Investment 
Committee

Finance 
Committee

Quality 
Committee

Council of 
Governors

Sharon Mays 
Chairman

12/12 3/3 N/A N/A N/A N/A 6/8 1/1 3/3

Michele Moran
Chief Executive

12/12 3/3 N/A 6/7 4/5 7/11 6/8 6/6 3/3

David Crick  
Non-Executive 
Director

12/12 3/3 4/4 N/A N/A N/A N/A 4/6 2/3

Andrew Milner
Non-Executive 
Director (Senior Inde-
pendent Director) up 
to October 2017

5/7 2/2 N/A 4/4 3/3 5/6 1/1 N/A 1/2

Peter Baren  
Non-Executive 
Director (Senior 
Independent Director 
from November 
2017)

12/12 3/3 N/A 7/7 5/5 10/11 8/8 3/6* 1/3

Paula Bee
Non-Executive 
Director

11/12 3/3 0/4 6/7 N/A N/A N/A 4/5 1/3

Mike Cooke Non-Ex-
ecutive Director

10/12   3/3 N/A N/A 2/5* 9/11 5/6 5/6 2/3

Mike Smith
Non-Executive 
Director

9/12 3/3 4/4 N/A 2/5 6/11 N/A N/A 3/3

Francis Patton 
Non-Executive 
Director (from 1 
January 2018)

4/4 1/1 N/A N/A 0/1 1/2 2/3 N/A 0/1

Dasari Michael 
Medical Director (to 
30 September 2017)

5/6 N/A 0/2 N/A N/A N/A N/A 1/3 1/1

John Byrne 
Medical Director 
(from 1.10.17)

6/6 N/A 2/2 N/A N/A N/A N/A 2/3 2/2

Hilary Gledhill 
Director of Nursing

11/12 N/A 0/4 N/A N/A N/A N/A 5/6 2/3

Peter Beckwith 
Director of Finance

11/12 N/A N/A 7/7 5/5 11/11 6/8 N/A 2/3

Elizabeth Thomas
Director of Human 
Resources & Diversity 
(non-voting)

11/12 3/3 N/A N/A N/A N/A 1/1 1/3 2/3
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Audit work is planned in advance as part of a 
strategic approach which ensures that fundamen-
tally important and high-risk areas are audited 
more frequently and less critical (but nonetheless 
significant) systems are reviewed cyclically 
(perhaps only once every three years).

Attendance of directors at all committee 
meetings is presented in the Board of Directors’ 
attendance table. The Terms of Reference of 
the Audit Committee are published on the Trust 
website.

Board of Directors: Expertise and Experience

Sharon Mays, Chairman  
(term of office expires 15 September 2020)

Prior to taking up the position of chairman, Sha-
ron served as a governor, non-executive director, 
deputy chairman and senior independent director 
of the Trust. She joined the Board of the Trust in 
July 2011 and was appointed as Chairman of the 
Trust with effect from September 2014. 

Before joining the Board of the Trust, Sharon 
was a non-executive director of East Riding 
of Yorkshire Primary Care Trust. Sharon was a 
member of the Joint Independent Audit Com-
mittee of the Police and Crime Commissioner for 

Andrew Milner, Non-Executive Director and 
Senior Independent Director   
(term of office ended 31 October 2017)

Andrew brought almost three decades of 
experience in the private sector and another 13 
years of senior leadership in the public sector to 
the Trust, including assistant chief executive and 
chief officer roles with East Riding of Yorkshire 
Council and North East Lincolnshire Council.

He has been a Board member of other local NHS 
organisations as well as lay chair of NHS com-

Humberside and Hum-
berside Police force. She 
was also the Principal 
Independent Person for 
standards investigations 
undertaken by the East 
Riding of Yorkshire Council 
in connection with alleged 
breaches of the Council’s Code of Conduct. 

Sharon is a qualified lawyer and prior to her 
involvement with the NHS was a partner at a 
locally based commercial law firm where she 
specialised in property regeneration and other 
commercial property transactions.

plaints panels and has chaired 
a number of partnership 
boards. Andrew has also 
been extensively involved 
in local education as a 
governor and BHSF Group 
Limited.

He is currently a director of Sun Organics Ltd, a 
trustee of local charities HEY Smile Foundation 
and Help for Health, a governor at Archbishop 
Sentamu Academy and Aspire Academy and 
Chairman of Brantingham Village Hall Trustees.

Peter Baren, Non-Executive Director  
(term of office expires 31 January 2020)

A chartered accountant with a degree in Busi-
ness Finance, Peter has many years’ experience 
working in organisational finance at the most 
senior level. 

Peter has held group finance controller positions 
in engineering and manufacturing companies 
for almost 30 years, with his most recent post 
being Group Finance Director of Cheshire-based 

national housebuilder and 
commercial property 
developer the Emerson 
Group from 2001 to 
2012. 

He serves as a non-ex-
ecutive director with social 
landlord Coast and Country Housing Ltd and has 
been a member of the Finance and Capital Devel-
opment Committee at York St John University.

David Crick, Non-Executive Director  
(term of office expired 31 May 2018)

David was a family doctor in Hull for more 
than 30 years, retiring in February 2011; he had 
training in psychiatry and counselling. 

During his many years as a GP, David took on 
various roles with the local health authority 
and with the Primary Care Trust until October 

2007, serving as executive 
committee vice-chair and 
lead for mental health 
and musculoskeletal 
services. 

He teaches Whole Person 
Medicine (with an emphasis on 
Mental Health) in Eastern Europe with PRIME 
International.

Paula Bee, Non-Executive Director   
(term of office expires 28 February 2019)

Having originally trained as a physiotherapist, 
Paula has been involved in the wellbeing of older 
people throughout her career, which went on 
to encompass various community roles both in a 
voluntary and professional capacity. Throughout 
this time, she developed a passion for enabling 
people to fulfil their potential. As Chief Executive 
of Age UK Wakefield District and member of the 
Age England Association Executive Group, Paula 
has been fortunate to be at the forefront of local 

and national changes that 
have the potential to alter 
the experience of ageing 
for us all.

Paula is also currently 
the Chair of the Wakefield 
Assembly (the local VCS Board 
for voice and influence), on the Board of Nova 
(the support agency for voluntary and commu-
nity groups in Wakefield district), a member of 
the Health and Wellbeing Board and part of 
Wakefield Provider Alliance.
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Mike Cooke, Non-Executive Director   
(term of office expires 31 August 2019)

Mike Cooke joined Humber NHS Foundation 
Trust on 1 September 2016 and is delighted to 
bring his NHS and wider leadership experience 
and to help in any way he can to benefit pa-
tients, service users and staff. Mike had a 32-year 
career in NHS provider leadership roles - half of 
this time spent as Chief Executive, most recently 
at Nottinghamshire Healthcare. 

Mike was founder and first Chair of the Mental 
Health Foundation Trust Network and helped set 
up and then chaired the East Midlands Lead-
ership Academy. He has a long-held interest in 
health services research and was Special Profes-
sor in Healthcare Innovation and Leadership at 
the University of Nottingham, chaired several 
research collaborations and networks in the East 

Mike Smith, Non-Executive Director  
(term of office expires 30 September 2019)

Mike was appointed in October 2016 having 
previously served as a non-executive director 
for Rotherham Doncaster and South Humber 
Teaching NHS Foundation Trust. 

He has an honours degree in law, a Master’s in 
business administration and recently received his 
third degree - a Master’s in mental health law for 
which he was given a commendation. He is also 
a Chartered Fellow of the Institute of Transport 
and Logistics. 

Francis Patton, Non-Executive Director  
(term of office expires 31 December 2020)

Francis has worked in the hospitality sector for 
over 30 years. He started as a graduate trainee 
with Joshua Tetley, part of Allied Breweries, in 
1985 and worked his way up through the various 
incarnations of the company as an area manager, 
general manager and finally commercial director 
for Vanguard Pubs and Restaurants, part of 
Allied Domecq Inns. In 1999 the pub business 
of Allied Domecq was bought by Punch Taverns 
and Francis became the Commercial Director 
of Punch Taverns as a Board member. He held 
that role until 2004 when the role was split into 
Commercial Director and Customer Services 
Director (both Board roles) and Francis took the 
Customer Services role.

Francis retired from Punch at the end of 2007 
but moved into a series of non-executive roles 

Midlands and served two 
terms on The National 
Advisory Board of the 
National Institute of 
Health Research. He was 
heavily involved in the 
success of The Institute of 
Mental Health and is affiliated 
with the University of York since his move to the 
East Riding. Mike is a long-term service user and 
was lead chief executive for ImROC, an impor-
tant recovery movement across sectors in mental 
health. He was in 2010 awarded a Commander 
of The Order of the British Empire for services to 
mental health. 

Mike is a trustee of Yorkshire Wildlife Trust, a 
University of York consultant, executive mentor 
and coach and lives in Storwood on Pocklington 
Canal.

Mike has extensive expe-
rience in the public and 
private sectors, has been 
the president of his local 
chamber of commerce 
and serves as a director of 
the Magna Science Ad-
venture Centre in Rotherham, 
where he lives. When not working in the NHS, 
Mike is the Lord-Lieutenant’s Officer for South 
Yorkshire, planning Royal visits and assisting in 
the presentation of honours and awards.

as well as starting his own 
PR business with some 
colleagues and becoming 
a part-time lecturer at 
Leeds Beckett University. 
At present Francis teaches 
part-time at Leeds Beckett 
University, is Non-Executive Chair 
of the commercial arm of SIBA, is Chair of Cask 
Marque, an accreditation company for quality 
beer, is a trade advisor for the BII, is Vice Chair 
and SID for Barnsley Hospital NHSFT, is Chair 
of Barnsley Facility Services, a wholly-owned 
subsidiary company of Barnsley Hospital FT, 
and is part-owner in and director of Fleet Street 
Communications, one of the top PR agencies in 
the hospitality and leisure sector.

Francis has extensive experience in corporate 
strategy, finance, customer services, public 
relations and corporate lobbying.

Michele Moran, Chief Executive 
(appointed January 2017)

Michele is a nurse, midwife and health visitor by 
background and has more than 30 years’ experi-
ence of front-line roles in NHS management and 
care. 

Michele was appointed to the role of Chief 
Executive at Humber on a permanent basis in 
February 2017. Prior to her four years as Chief Ex-
ecutive at Manchester Mental Health and Social 
Care NHS Trust, Michele served as Deputy Chief 
Executive/Chief Operating Officer/Chief Nurse at 
Leeds and York Partnership NHS Foundation Trust 
for seven years. 

An ex-chair of the Foundation 
Trust Network Clinical Leads 
Network and a member 
and current Non-Executive 
Director of the National 
Skills Academy for Health. 
Michele has extensive 
experience in the primary care 
and acute sectors.

A qualified nurse, mental health nurse and 
midwife, Michele also has a Master’s degree in 
health services management from the University 
of Manchester.
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Dr John Byrne, Medical Director 
(appointed 1 October 2017)

Born in Dublin, Dr Byrne graduated in medicine 
from University College Dublin in 1994 before 
serving for six years as a doctor in the Royal Army 
Medical Corps, where he completed his training 
in general practice. 

In 2002 he became a partner at a GP surgery in 
Hampshire and in 2008 was appointed locality 
medical director for Hampshire Community 
Healthcare. Three years later Dr Byrne became 
Clinical Director for Integrated Care at Southern 
Health NHS Foundation Trust and then Clinical 
Director and Accountable Officer for the  

Southampton and West 
Hampshire Division in 
2012. 

In 2014, he became 
General Practice Regional 
Adviser for the Care Quality 
Commission’s (CQC) Birming-
ham-based Primary Medical Services team, also 
working part-time with NHS Elect advising NHS 
trusts on clinical strategy. 

Dr Byrne completed a Master’s degree in Quality 
Improvement at Ashridge Business School in 
2014 and is a Health Foundation GenQ leader-
ship fellow.

Dr Dasari Michael, Medical Director 
(appointed 1 May 2014 until September 2017)

A consultant psychiatrist in learning disability, Dr 
Dasari Michael is a Fellow of the Royal College 
of Psychiatrists and an executive committee 
member in the Faculty of Learning Disability. He 
is also a CASC examiner for the Royal College of 
Psychiatrists.

Dr Michael joined what became Humber NHS 
Foundation Trust in 2006 after working as a 
consultant psychiatrist in learning disability since 
2003. He became clinical director of the Trust’s 
learning disability service in 2006.

Elizabeth Thomas, Director of Human 
Resources and Diversity 
appointed 1 February 2014 (non- voting)

Elizabeth has been a deputy director since 
2010. A Fellow of the Institute of Personnel and 
Development, Elizabeth has a Master’s degree 
in human resource management and has many 
years’ experience in NHS workforce planning and 
management.

Teresa Cope, Chief Operating Officer  
appointed 1 April 2015 (Career break from 5 
February and left the Trust 31 March 2018)

Teresa joined Humber in April 2015 and has over 
20 years’ experience in the NHS, starting her ca-
reer as a diagnostic radiographer before moving 
into management roles in the acute and mental 
health sectors and in provider and commissioning 
organisations. During her career, Teresa has 
worked across a number of functions including 
operations, strategy and planning, performance, 
and service transformation. 

He has been Training Pro-
gramme Director for the 
East Riding Core Training 
Scheme in Psychiatry. He 
has played a key role in 
the development of the 
learning disability service in 
the organisation. His main areas 
of interests are patient-focused pathways of care 
with safety at their heart, bringing innovation 
into service delivery, encouraging a culture of 
learning and training, developing research and 
fostering collaborative working among profes-
sionals.

Elizabeth has held senior roles 
in the local NHS since 1994 
including Associate Direc-
tor of Human Resources 
at NHS East Riding of 
Yorkshire Primary Care Trust 
from 2004 to 2010, and Head 
of Human Resources at the former 
East Riding of Yorkshire and Yorkshire Wolds and 
Coast Primary Care Trusts from 2001 to 2004.

Prior to joining Humber, 
Teresa spent three years 
as the Director of Quality, 
Delivery and Contracting 
for Nottingham City Clin-
ical Commissioning Group, 
which included commissioning 
mental health and community 
services for Nottinghamshire. Prior to this, Teresa 
worked for Nottinghamshire Healthcare NHS 
Foundation Trust as both a general manager and 
then as an associate director for forensic services. 

Teresa took a career break from 5 February for 
three months

Hilary Gledhill, Director of Nursing, Quality 
and Patient Experience 
appointed 1 June 2015

Hilary joined the Trust in June 2015 and has over 
30 years’ experience in the NHS. She qualified as 
a registered nurse in 1983 and worked as a nurse 
in acute hospital services and the community 
before moving into senior quality improvement 
and nurse leadership roles, gaining experience 
in community care and commissioning organisa-
tions. 

Hilary has a working experience of many health-

care sectors and services 
including prison health, 
mental health services, 
ambulance services, 
hospital and community 
services. 

Prior to joining the Trust, she 
spent two years as the Director of Quality and 
Integrated Governance and the Executive Nurse 
for East Riding of Yorkshire Clinical Commission-
ing Group, which included commissioning mental 
health and community services for residents of 
the East Riding of Yorkshire.

Peter Beckwith, Acting Director of Finance  
(from 10 March 2017)

Peter has been Deputy Director of Finance and 
Contracting with the Trust since December 2015. 
Prior to joining the Trust, Peter held various senior 
roles with local NHS organisations including NHS 
England and NHS Hull. Prior to joining the NHS, 
Peter accumulated 19 years’ finance experience 

in local government across 
several different local 
authorities.

Peter is a Fellow of the 
Association of Chartered 
Certified Accountants.
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Lynn Parkinson, Interim Chief Operating 
Officer  
(from 5 February 2018)

Lynn has spent her whole career working in 
mental health in Leeds and York. Lynn started 
as a student nurse and worked her way up 
management positions working as Deputy and 
then Interim Chief Operating Officer in Leeds 
and York NHS Foundation Trust before joining 
our Trust in February 2018. Since qualifying as 

a registered mental health 
nurse in 1989 Lynn has a 
wealth of experience in 
a wide variety of clinical 
services including acute 
inpatients, community and 
for a number of years with 
the Eating Disorder Service. Lynn 
has a background in Service Improvement and 
expertise in applying improvement methodology 
such as lean six sigma in clinical settings.

Register of Directors’ Interests

The Register of Directors’ Interests is held by the 
Trust Secretary. It is a public document which can 
be accessed by contacting the Trust Secretary 
on 01482 389194 or through the website in the 
Board papers section. Directors’ interests have 
been fully considered and it has been concluded 
that there are no such interests which may 
conflict with their management responsibilities 
as per the requirements of Monitor’s code of 
governance.

It is reported that the chairman had no other 
significant commitments that affected her ability 
to carry out her duties to the full and was able to 
allow sufficient time to undertake those duties.

The Board of Directors works as a unitary board 
and members have been selected to ensure the 
success of the organisation as a foundation trust, 
with an appropriate balance of clinical, financial, 
business and management backgrounds and 
skills. Should it be necessary to remove either the 
chairman or any non-executive director, this shall 
be undertaken by the Council of Governors in 
accordance with the Trust’s constitution.

The chairman and non-executive directors of the 
Trust are appointed by the Council of Governors 
and are remunerated in accordance with terms 
and conditions approved by the Council of 
Governors.

Council of Governors

Message from the Lead Governor, 
Julie Hastings 

Excellent communication is 
key to the role of governors 
within the Trust. This year has 
found this role strengthened and 
enhanced as we grow in our knowledge 
and understanding of how to develop a 
thriving service for our patients, carers, 
families and staff.

Your continued communication with us enables 
the governors to act on your behalf, to challenge, 
question and to work towards improvement in all 
areas of Humber’s work.

Your governors are volunteers, some elected and 
some members from Humber staff or our partner 
organisations. All of your governors choose to 
go that extra mile to enhance and enable local 
services at the Trust.

The Annual Members Meeting is our opportunity 
to engage directly with you and to showcase the 
services the Trust provides to our community. 
It is also a chance for you to speak directly to 
Humber staff. We were privileged to welcome 
Martin Green, Hull City of Culture 2017 Director 
as our keynote speaker, whose mantra proved 
the importance of excellent communication, 
volunteering and community echoed the whole 
ethos of the governor team.

The Trust is proactive in ensuring the patient 
and carer voice is at the heart of everything we 
do. We have three forums where we involve 
our patients, carers, families, patient/carer 
governors and Trust staff including; a Patient 
and Carer Experience forum for patients, carers 
and patient/carer governors to provide their lived 
experiences to help us to improve our services, a 
Staff Champions of Patient Experience forum for 
staff to share best practice and listen to learn 
from each other’s experiences and a Widen-
ing Participation forum for organisations 
working with the Trust to actively 
engage in Trust activities.

The Trust’s constitution was reviewed during 
the year and two new constituencies, Service 

User and Carer and Whitby added. The Staff 
constituency was split into clinical and non 
clinical seats and the role of observers on the 
Council was removed from the constitution. 

Governor elections took place for nomina-
tions within the East Riding. Service User and 

Carer and Whitby constituencies. Two seats were 
available for the Staff constituency one for clinical 
and one for non clinical. This culminated in Ros 
Jump being re-elected for East Riding along with 
John Cunnington and Huw Jones. Sam Grey (non 
clinical) and Jack Hudson (clinical) were elected 
uncontested for the Staff constituency. For the 
new constituencies, Mike Oxtoby and Stephen 
Christian were elected to the Service User and 
Carer, and Doff Pollard to the Whitby constitu-
ency. Mike Oxtoby was previously a Governor for 
the East Riding, but chose to stand in the new 
Service User and Carer constituency. A valued 
and informative induction session was provided 
for the newly elected governors to enable them 
to learn more about their role.

The Council of Governors is comprised of people 
from many walks of life who have various skills 
and experience which they bring to the role, 
enhanced by their enthusiasm, dedication and 
commitment to really make a difference. The 
overarching aim of governors is to work with the 
Trust to enable continued improvement around 
the excellent quality of care, standards and 
innovations for patients, carers, families and to 
fully support staff.
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Council of Governors

The Council of Governors is made up of indi-
viduals who have been elected by local people 
and staff who represent our constituencies. The 
Council includes representatives who are nom-
inated from a range of partner organisations. 
The Council of Governors is chaired by the Trust 
chairman.

Monitor, the sector regulator for health services 
in England, requires foundation trusts to appoint 
a Lead Governor. Julie Hastings was elected by 
the Council of Governors to fulfil this role.

The specific statutory powers and duties of the 
Council of Governors are to:

• Appoint and, if appropriate, remove the 
chairman.

• Appoint and, if appropriate, remove the 
other non-executive directors.

• Decide the remuneration and allowances 
and the other terms and conditions of office 
of the chairman and the other non-executive 
directors.

• Approve (or not) any new appointment of a 
chief executive.

• Appoint and, if appropriate, remove the 
Trust’s auditor.

• Receive the Trust’s annual accounts, any 
report of the auditor on them and the 
annual report.

• Hold the non-executive directors, individually 
and collectively, to account for the perfor-
mance of the Board of Directors.

• Represent the interests of the members of 
the Trust as a whole and the interests of the 
public.

• Approve “significant transactions”.

• Approve an application by the Trust to enter 
into a merger, acquisition, separation or 
dissolution.

• Decide whether the Trust’s non-NHS work 
would significantly interfere with its principal 
purpose, which is to provide goods and 
services for the health service in England, or 
performing its other functions.

• Approve amendments to the Trust’s consti-
tution.

Non-executive directors are appointed for a term 
of three years up to the maximum specified in 
the Trust’s constitution. Non-executive director 
appointments may be terminated in line with the 
requirements of the constitution.

The Council of Governors holds the non-ex-
ecutive directors on the Board of Directors 
to account for the performance of the Trust, 
including ensuring the Board of Directors acts so 
that the Trust does not breach the terms of its 
licence.

The Council of Governors comprises 25 Gover-
nors who are members of the public and staff 
constituencies and representatives from partner 
organisations. 

Composition of the Council of Governors

Public - 14 Governors 6 East Riding of Yorkshire

4 Hull

1 Wider Yorkshire and Humber

2 Service User and Carer

1 Whitby

Staff - 5 Governors 3 non clinical 
2 clinical

Partner Organisations - 6 Governors University of Hull

Humberside Police

Voluntary Partner

Hull Local Authority

East Riding Of Yorkshire Local Authority

Humberside Fire and Rescue

The table below sets out the composition of the Council of Governors.

Council of Governors’ Meetings

The Council of Governors met on a quarterly 
basis, of which the July, October and January 
meetings fell within the 2017/18 reporting peri-
od, and also held an Annual Members’ Meeting 
in September. Council of Governors’ public 
meetings are open for members of the public 
to attend and the meeting dates and papers are 
published on our website. Governor attendance 
at these meetings is provided in the table later in 
this section. Governors are involved in setting the 
agenda for the Council’s meetings. Each meet-
ing, when possible, begins with a patient story 
which is a presentation by a patients’/service area 
team which allows them to give their views on 
services and the challenges they may have had to 
face during their journey.

The Council of Governors did not use its powers 
to require one of more of the directors to attend 
a Council of Governors meeting for the purpose 
of obtaining information about the Trust’s 
performance of its functions or the directors’ 
performance of their duties. Directors chose 
to attend the Council of Governors meetings, 
often to present their reports. A summary of 
their attendance is included in the table detailing 
attendance at Board and sub committee meet-
ings. Further information about the work of the 
Board of Directors can be found in the Directors’ 
Report.

Council of Governors’ Sub 
Committee/Groups

The Council of Governors may not delegate its 
responsibilities but can choose to carry out its 
duties through groups, committees or individuals. 
A sub committee (statutory requirement) and 
three governor groups hold meetings which are 
detailed below:

• Appointments, Terms and Conditions 
Committee

• Finance and Audit Governor Group

• Communications and Membership Governor 
Group

• Strategy and Business Development Gover-
nor Group.

Appointments, Terms and Conditions 
Committee

The Appointments, Terms and Conditions Com-
mittee met twice during 2017/2018. This commit-
tee is chaired by Julie Hastings, elected governor 
for East Riding. The group consists of a team of 
governors and valued support and guidance from 
Senior Independent Director Andrew Milner, until 
the end of his term of office in October 2017, 
when he was replaced by Peter Baren, Non Exec-
utive Director, who was appointed as the Senior 
Independent Director in November 2017, Director 
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of Human Resources and Diversity Elizabeth 
Thomas, and, when required, invited guests who 
share their expertise and specialist knowledge. 
Any decisions made by this group are presented to 
the full Council of Governors for its approval.

During this year the committee has been involved 
in the recruitment process for a new non-execu-
tive director. In considering these appointments 
the committee took into account the views of the 
Board of Directors regarding the skills, experience 
and qualifications required for these roles. The 
interview panel was chaired by a governor and 
included members of the Appointments, Terms 
and Conditions Committee supported by the 
Chairman, Senior Independent Director and 
the Director of Human Resources and Diversity. 
Following the rigorous interviews, a recommenda-
tion for appointment was made to the Council of 
Governors. Further work is being undertaken by 
the committee around succession planning for the 
non-executive directors.

Communications and Membership 
Governor Group

Regular meetings of the group have taken place 
during the year. Discussions have included:

• Engaging with members

• Review of Membership strategy

• Information technology issues including NHS 
e-mails for Governors,

• Membership and governors’ issues

• Governor visits

Non-Executive Director Paula Bee attends the 
meetings along with members of the Communi-
cations Team.

Finance and Audit Governor Group

The group meets on a quarterly basis to discuss 
the finances of Trust, paying particular attention 
to its financial performance against its own 
targets and those of the Government. These 
meetings are chaired by a Governor and attend-
ed by the Chair of the Audit Committee and the 
Executive Director of Finance.

Strategy and Business Development 
Governor Group

Governors were involved in developing the 
Trust’s Strategy and Operational Plan and had the 
opportunity to discuss the content at a specially 
arranged session with Board members. Regular 
updates on implementation and specific aspects 
of the plan are provided through the Strategy 
and Business Development Governor Group, 
the outcomes of which were reported to the 
Council of Governors. Regular meetings of the 
group are held which are chaired by a Governor 
and attended by a non-executive director, 
representatives of the Business Development 
Department and other Governors. Views of the 
group are reported to the Board of Directors via 
the non-executive director who attends and via 
the chairman, who meets on a regular basis with 
the group chair.

Governors other activities

During the year governors were involved with 
the Patient-Led Assessment of the Care Environ-
ment (PLACE) inspections and were part of the 
inspection panels. The visits involved talking to 
patients about the environment they are in and 
asking what they think of the food and service 
they receive. Visits for 2018 have started and 
governors are again involved.

Some Governors have taken part in the Recovery 
College Board and all Governors are invited to 
attend meetings of sub committees of the Board 
to observe how they are run. Governor champi-
ons have been identified to be part of the Patient 
Experience Group which will take forward the 
Patient and Carer Experience pledges outlined in 
the Patient and Carer Experience Strategy.

Governors have taken part in the recruitment 
processes for the Medical Director and non-exec-
utive director during the year either as part of the 
panel or on the stakeholder groups. Governors 
have also taken part in the non-executive 
directors’ appraisal process both via the review 
panels and by submitting their views on their 
performances. 

Governors have been involved in the develop-
ment of the Quality Report and representatives 
attended an event to decide what the priorities 
would be for the coming year. Governors were 
asked to make comments on the report and 
those received were published in the Quality 
Report.

• Staff governors have attended or been 
involved with the following

• Staff Governor Meetings with the Chairman,

• Governor Development Session meetings

• Governor Knowledge & Engagement Op-
portunities ~ includes visits to units (which 
will also include observing team meetings) 
and observing team meetings in corporate 
services and community teams ~ 3 this ‘year’

• Attendance of Well Led review with Deloitte

• Judging panel for staff awards & Monthly 
staff awards

• Improving / extending relationships with 
other governors – understanding the strate-
gic priorities / activities for the Trust better, 
opportunities for networking in role

• Meeting prospective / new Governor to 
explain role purpose

• Informally at meetings / training etc. repre-
senting role as Staff Governor ~ explain role 
& trust strategies, e.g. Health & Wellbeing

• Meeting with Director of Finance – re ‘Self 
Certification Action’

• Member (Staff Governor) of The Health and 
Wellbeing Steering Group

• Attendance of Staff Awards

Bi-monthly governor development days were 
held with various topics being discussed including 
reviewing in detail the roles and responsibilities 
of governors, reviewing the Constitution and 
receiving presentations including the Perfect 
Ward App and Smoke Free initiatives

To help improve communication between the 
Board of Directors and Council of Governors, 
Directors attend the Development sessions as 
required, attend the Council of Governors meet-

ing and additional sessions with the Board of 
Directors are built into the governor development 
day as required. Governors set the agenda for 
the development days by identifying areas they 
wish to receive more information on including 
presentations from specific teams/services. 
Members of the Board of Directors engage with 
governors in various ways including:

• attendance and membership of Governor 
groups/committee

• joint Board of Directors and governor 
sessions for budgets, cost improvement 
programme and quality accounts

• attendance at development days

• involvement in visits by governors to patient 
areas

• attending Patient-Led Assessment of the 
Care Environment (PLACE) inspections

The Board of Directors is responsible for the 
day-to-day running of the Trust although the 
Board of Directors takes account of the views 
of governors when developing its strategy and 
forward plans.

Governors have an established governor forum 
event, where only governors are present. The 
agendas for these meetings are set by the 
governors themselves and the actions from 
these meetings are shared with the chairman so 
appropriate action can be taken.

Governors are invited to attend the Trust’s 
public Board of Directors meetings and observe 
at Board sub committee meetings so they can 
see how the Board of Directors works and learn 
more about the services and business the Trust 
provides. The Board of Directors meets on a 
monthly basis (with the exception 
of August and December), 
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with every meeting held in public. The agenda 
and supporting papers for the public meetings 
are published on our website. Details of attend-
ance at these meetings for the period of this 
report are detailed in another section of this 
report. Confidential and commercially sensitive 
matters are discussed in part II (private) meetings 
and matters which are not confidential or 
commercially sensitive are discussed at meetings 

Council of Governors Members and their Attendance in 2017/18

Name Constituency
No of Council Meetings 
attended / possible total

Term of Office 
ended/s

Current Governors

Rodney Evans (elected) Hull Public 2/3 Jan 2019

Robert Hunt (elected) Hull Public 0/3 Jan 2020

Martin Clayton (elected) Hull Public 3/3 Jan 2019

Neel Kamal (elected) East Riding Public 2/3 Jan 2019

Sam Muzaffar (elected) East Riding Public 3/3 Jan 2019

Julie Hastings (elected) – Lead Governor East Riding Public 3/3 Jan 2019

Ros Jump (elected) East Riding Public 1/3 Jan 2021

John Cunnington East Riding Public 0/0 Jan 2021

Huw Jones East Riding Public 0/0 Jan 2021

Mike Oxtoby (elected) Service User and Carer 3/3 Jan 2021

Stephen Christian (elected) Service User and Carer 0/0 Jan 2021

Doff Pollard (elected uncontested) Whitby Public 0/0 Jan 2021

Peter Lacey (elected)
Wider Yorkshire and Humber 

Public
1/3 Jan 2019

Anne Gorman (elected) Staff non clinical 3/3 Jan 2019

Mandy Dawley (elected) Staff non clinical 3/3 Jan 2019

Craig Enderby Staff clinical 3/3 June 2018

Sam Grey (elected uncontested) Staff non clinical 0/0 Jan 2021

Jack Hudson (elected uncontested) Staff clinical 0/0 Jan 2021

John Thirkettle (appointed) Humberside Police 0/3 Feb 2019

Elaine Aird (appointed) East Riding of Yorkshire Council 2/3 Jan 2019

Gwen Lunn (appointed) Kingston upon Hull City Council 1/3 May 2019

Andy Barber (appointed) HEY Smile Foundation 2/3 Feb 2021

Governors who left during 2017/18

Kirsty Fishburn (appointed)
University of Hull Faculty of 

Health and Social Care
Resigned June 2017

Jonathan Beckerlegge (observer)
NHS East Riding Clinical 

Commissioning Group
Left due to change in Constitution Sept 2017

David Smith (appointed) Hull and East Yorkshire Mind Resigned April 2017

Eric Bennett (elected) Hull Public End of Term of Office

Pat Collard (elected) East Riding Public Resigned June 2017

Marie Nicoll (elected) East Riding Public End of Term of Office

Ron Morgan (elected) East Riding Public End of Term of Office

Jezz Farmer (elected) Staff Resigned September 2017

Vanessa Colman (elected) Staff Left Trust September 2017

Helena Spencer (elected) Hull Public Resigned March 2018

held in public. Governors are sent a link to the 
website for the public papers, the agenda for the 
part II meeting and also have access to the part II 
minutes.

The detailed breakdown of current 
governors is as below. Public and staff 
governors were publicly elected.

There is a procedure for dealing with disputes 
between the Council of Governors and the Board 
of Directors and this is set out in Annex 9 of the 
Trust’s constitution, but it was not necessary to 
use this during the year.

Expenses

Governors receive no remuneration for their role. 
However, the Trust provides appropriate reim-
bursement, for example to cover travel expenses 
for governors who participate in events or activ-
ities arranged by the Trust. During the period 1 
April 2017 to 31 March 2018, a total of fourteen 
governors claimed reimbursement for expenses. 
This included those governors who are no longer 
in post or who have left during the year. The 
total cost reimbursed to governors for this period 
was £2,171.05 compared to £2,382.49 paid to 10 
governors in 2016/17.

Register of Interests 

Governors are required to declare any interests 
as per the constitution. The register of interests 
for the Council of Governors is available from 
the Membership Office on 01482 389132 or by 
emailing HNF-TR.governors@nhs.net.

Governor Elections 

Elections were held in December 2017/January 
2018 for eight governor seats covering four 
constituencies. The details are below:

• Public – East Riding: Three seats were 
available and all seats were filled through an 
election process

• Public – Service User and Carer: Two seats 
were available and both seats were filled 
through an election process

• Public – Whitby: One seat was available 
which was elected to uncontested.

• Staff: Two seats were available one for 
clinical and one for non clinical which was 
elected to uncontested

Membership

A total of 183 new public members joined our 
Trust during 2017/18, taking our membership 
total (excluding staff members) to 13,427. The 
Trust aims to develop its membership to reflect 
the diversity of services provided and to ensure it 
is representative of the people it serves. One of 
the greatest benefits of being a foundation trust 
is having a vibrant membership that is passionate 
about the people we care for and the services we 
provide.

As of 31 March 2018, the Trust had 6,696 mem-
bers in the East Riding, 5,731 in Hull, 803 in the 
wider Yorkshire and Humber area, 2,508 staff 
members and 197 members living outside our 
catchment area. Our Trust membership is fairly 
static; however, there are plans to hold more 
recruitment events within the constituencies to 
ensure our membership is as representative as 
possible of the communities we serve. Our staff 
are broadly representative of the Trust’s public 
membership in numerical terms.

During 2017/18 recruitment opportunities were 
included as part of other events that took place 
throughout the year including Board of Directors 
meetings, Voluntary services World Mental 
Health Day.

86 Annual Report and Accounts 2017/18 Annual Report and Accounts 2017/18  87



The charts below show how membership is made up and the ethnicity profile up to 31 
March 2018.

Membership Size and Movement

Public Constituency (at 31.3.18) 2017/18 2018/19 (est)

At year start 1 April 14,396 13,427

New Members 183 750

Members Leaving 1,152 500

At year end 31 March 13,427 13,677

Staff Constituency (at 31.3.18) 2017/18 2018/19 (est)

At year start 1 April 2,976 2,508

New Members 460 500

Members Leaving 928 300

At year end 31 March 2,508 2,708

Patient/Carer Constituency (at 31.3.18) 2017/18 2018/19 (est)

At year start 1 April 8 50

New Members 43 150

Members Leaving 1 20

At year end 31 March 50 180

Analysis of Current Membership*

Public Constituency

Age (years) Number of Members Eligible Membership

0 - 16 1 1,093,709

17 - 21 195 350,293

22+ 12,286 4,000,161

Ethnicity

White 12,358 4,692,156

Mixed 55 84,561

Asian or Asian British 192 385,964

Black or Black British 130 80,346

Other 33 40,910

Gender Analysis

Male 4,597 2,688,702

Female 8,805 2,755,460

Patient/Carer Constituency

Number of Members Eligible Membership

Age (years)

0 – 16 0 0

17 – 21 0 0

22+ 10 0

*The analysis section of this report excludes:-

945 public members with no date of birth, 659 members with no stated ethnicity, 40 patient members 
with no date of birth

Trust members must be over 14 years old. Our 
membership constituencies are Hull, East Riding 
of Yorkshire, Service User and Carer, Whitby and 
the wider Yorkshire and Humber area and staff. 
We also have 510 public out-of-area catchment 
members, but these members only receive 
information on the services we provide and are 
not eligible to vote in governor elections.

The Trust’s members play an important part in 
our future development and can become in-
volved in services by working with our governors 
if they wish. Membership is about community 
engagement and developing our organisation in 
partnership with the community.

Through our membership we want our 
members to be truly interested in mak-
ing a difference and getting involved.

One of the greatest benefits of being a founda-
tion trust (FT) is having a membership that can 
influence the services we provide. We produce a 
membership magazine, Humber People, which 
gives information on what is happening within 
the Trust, patient activities, puzzles and compe-
titions.

Our Membership Plan is currently being reviewed 
but identifies what members can do including:-

• Support the Trust – by taking part in 
meetings, giving their feedback on services, 
suggesting ways the Trust can improve or 
save money;

• Be informed and kept up to date – by taking 
part in meetings, via the Trust’s members’ 
magazine, Humber People;

• Inform the Trust and help shape service 
development – by sending their views to 
the Membership Officer, non-executive and 
executive directors, and governors;

• Get involved in voluntary activities – by sup-
porting the Trust’s charity, Health Stars, and 
volunteering to assist the work of services, 
for example the Recovery College;

• Recruit other members – by talking to 
people in their own communities, taking 
part in Trust member recruitment drives in 
the community;

At its strongest and most powerful the 
real benefits of membership will come 
from the links they make with key Trust 
objectives. We want the membership to 
have a loud voice in our community

Contact details

The Membership Office is the initial contact point 
for new and existing members. Details of how to 
contact the Membership Office and our Gover-
nors are as follows:

Membership Office 
Freepost RLZB-RKZB-AJSJ 
Trust Headquarters 
Willerby Hill 
Beverley Road 
Willerby 
HU10 6ED

Tel. 01482 389132

Email. HNF-TR.governors@nhs.net

To contact members of the Board of Directors, 
please telephone our Trust headquarters recep-
tion on 01482 301700 or write to us using the 
freepost address provided.

Just what the doctor ordered! 

About Social Prescribing

Issue 28 - Free copy

CAMHS Unit given 

the go ahead

15,693 
Members

Want to 
become a 
Governor?

It’s election  
time!

Issue 29 - Free copy

CQC “Good” report

Breastfeeding myths busted! 
We have the facts

Trust wins £80 million 
contract 

16,100 
Members

Issue 30 - Free copy

Humber TeachingNHS Foundation Trust

15,982 Members

Join our Council of Governors

Happy 70th Birthday to the NHS!

Entrance to De La Pole Hospital circa 1960 Trust HQ today which was part of the De La Pole Hospital

2966 Humber People August 18_v6.indd   1

06/08/2018   11:23:42
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Single Oversight Framework

The Trust has an Integrated Quality Performance 
Tracker which reports performance against iden-
tified key performance indicators to the Board of 
Directors on a monthly basis. Indicators reported 
are based around both the NHS Improvement 
and the Care Quality Commission’s Intelligent 
Monitoring Framework (Caring, Effective, Safe, 
Responsive and Well Led).

Segmentation

Humber NHS Foundation Trust is recorded as 
being in Segment 2 by NHS Improvement at the 
time of preparing this annual report.

Finance and Use of Resources

The Finance and Use of Resources theme is based 
on the scoring of five measures from ‘1’ to ‘4’, 
where ‘1’ reflects the strongest performance. 
These scores are then weighted to give an overall 
score. Given that Finance and Use of Resources 
is but one of the five themes feeding into the 
Single Oversight Framework, the segmentation of 
the Trust disclosed above might not be the same 
as the overall finance score here.

Area Metric
2017/18 Q1 

Score
2017/18 Q2 

Score
2017/18 Q3 

Score
2017/18 Q1 

Score forecast

Financial 
sustainability

Capital service capacity 2 2 3 3

Liquidity 1 1 1 1

Financial 
efficiency

I&E margin 3 3 2 2

Finiancial 
controls

Distance from financial plan 1 1 2 2

Agency spend 2 2 2 1

Overall scoring 2 2 2 2

Statement of the Chief Executive's 
responsibilities as the Accounting 
Officer of Humber NHS Foundation 
Trust

The NHS Act 2006 states that the chief executive 
is the accounting officer of the NHS foundation 
trust. The relevant responsibilities of the accounting 
officer, including their responsibility for the pro-
priety and regularity of public finances for which 
they are answerable, and for the keeping of proper 
accounts, are set out in the NHS Foundation Trust 
Accounting Officer Memorandum issued by NHS 
Improvement.

NHS Improvement, in exercise of the powers 
conferred on Monitor by the NHS Act 2006, has 
given Accounts Directions which require Humber 
NHS Foundation Trust to prepare for each financial 
year a statement of accounts in the form and on the 
basis required by those Directions. The accounts are 
prepared on an accruals basis and must give a true 
and fair view of the state of affairs of Humber NHS 
Foundation Trust and of its income and expenditure, 
total recognised gains and losses and cash flows for 
the financial year.

In preparing the accounts, the Accounting Officer 
is required to comply with the requirements of the 
Department of Health Group Accounting Manual 
and in particular to:

• observe the Accounts Direction issued by NHS 
Improvement, including the relevant accounting 
and disclosure requirements, and apply suitable 
accounting policies on a consistent basis

• make judgements and estimates on a reasona-
ble basis

• state whether applicable accounting standards 
as set out in the NHS Foundation Trust Annual 
Reporting Manual (and the Department of 
Health Group Accounting Manual) have been 
followed, and disclose and explain any material 
departures in the financial statements

• ensure that the use of public funds complies 
with the relevant legislation, delegated authori-
ties and guidance and

• prepare the financial statements on a going 
concern basis.

The accounting officer is responsible for 
keeping proper accounting records which 
disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time 
the financial position of the NHS foundation 
trust and to enable him/her to ensure that the 
accounts comply with requirements outlined 
in the above mentioned Act. The Accounting 
Officer is also responsible for safeguarding the 
assets of the NHS foundation trust and hence 
for taking reasonable steps for the prevention 
and detection of fraud and other irregularities.

To the best of my knowledge and belief, I have 
properly discharged the responsibilities set 
out in the NHS Foundation Trust Accounting 
Officer Memorandum.

MICHELE MORAN 

Chief Executive 

23 MAY 2018
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Annual Governance Statement

Scope of responsibility

As Accounting Officer, I have responsibility for 
maintaining a sound system of internal control 
that supports the achievement of the Trust’s 
policies, aims and objectives, whilst safeguarding 
the public funds and departmental assets for 
which I am personally responsible, in accordance 
with the responsibilities assigned to me. I am also 
responsible for ensuring that the Trust is ad-
ministered prudently and economically and that 
resources are applied efficiently and effectively. 
I also acknowledge my responsibilities as set out 
in the NHS Foundation Trust Accounting Officer 
Memorandum.

The Board of Directors through its Audit Com-
mittee agreed the Trust’s 2017/18 Internal Audit 
Plan with its internal auditors which consisted of 
24 reviews that have all been undertaken. The 
results of these audits culminated in the Head of 
Internal Audit’s opinion on the system of internal 
control which has been incorporated as part of 
this statement.

The Purpose of the System of 
Internal Control

The system of internal control is designed to 
manage risk to a reasonable level rather than 
to eliminate all risk of failure to achieve policies, 
aims and objectives; it can therefore only provide 
reasonable and not absolute assurance of effec-
tiveness. The system of internal control is based 
on an ongoing process designed to identify 
and prioritise the risks to the achievement of 
the policies, aims and objectives of the Trust, 
to evaluate the likelihood of those risks being 
realised and the impact should they be realised, 
and to manage them efficiently, effectively and 
economically. The system of internal control has 
been in place in Humber NHS Foundation Trust 
for the year ended 31 March 2018 and up to 
the date of approval of the annual report and 
accounts.

Capacity to Handle Risk

The Trust has a comprehensive, integrated 
framework in place to ensure that a structured 
control environment is in place where risks are 
identified, assessed and properly managed, 
where high standards are safeguarded and 
excellence can flourish. To support this, we have 
a Corporate Risk Manager responsible for the 
development and implementation of the Trust 
Risk Management Strategy and framework across 
the organisation. This role provides dedicated 
leadership and coordination to development and 

delivery of the Risk Management Strategy 
Implementation Plan and leads in 

the development of information 
technology solutions to 

support the intelligent risk management environ-
ment. Full transition of the Trust’s risk registers 
onto the DATIX Risk Management system has 
been completed in-year allowing for electronic 
management of risk through a more effective 
real-time solution.

Ultimate responsibility for the management of 
the risks facing the organisation sits with the 
Board of Directors. The Board considers the 
strategic and high level Trust-wide operational 
risks facing the organisation as part of its routine 
business in order to satisfy itself collectively that 
risks are being effectively managed. The Trust 
Board continuously strives to strengthen the cul-
ture of risk management throughout the organi-
sation. Each Board Committee and its sub-groups 
has a collective responsibility to ensure effective 
risk management and good governance as they 
discharge their duties, and this is reflected in 
their respective Terms of Reference. Through 
their work plans they will contribute towards 
reducing the organisation’s exposure to risk. Risks 
identified by Committees and reporting groups 
will be communicated and recorded on the 
appropriate directorate risk registers and subject 
to overview, monitoring and intervention by the 
Corporate Risk Manager, internal governance 
arrangements, as well as providing assurance to 
the Audit Committee, Trust Board and relevant 
board committees.

As the Chief Executive, I am accountable for 
having effective risk management systems and 
internal controls in place and for achieving 
statutory requirements. I have delegated overall 
duty to ensure risk management is discharged 
appropriately, to the Director of Nursing, who 
is responsible for the implementation of the 
Risk Management Strategy. Financial risk man-
agement has been delegated to the Director of 
Finance.

All Executive Directors, Care Group Directors, 
Clinical Care Directors, Associate Medical 
Directors and Managers are responsible for iden-
tifying, communicating and managing the risks 
associated with their portfolios in accordance 
with the Trust’s risk management framework. 
They are responsible for understanding the 

approach towards risk management of all key 
clients, contractors, suppliers and partners and 
mitigate where necessary, where gaps are found. 
They are responsible for identifying risks that 
should be escalated to and from the Trust-wide 
Risk Register.

Guidance on populating risk registers and 
managing risk is available to all staff electronically 
via the Trust intranet. Roles and responsibilities in 
terms of risk management are incorporated into 
the Trust Risk Management Policy and Strategy 
and are also displayed via the intranet on the 
dedicated Risk pages. All staff employed by the 
Trust are required to attend the mandatory and 
statutory training that is relevant to their role 
and to ensure they meet their own continuous 
professional development requirements. Training 
covers mandatory requirements and elements 
that are dependent on the job role.

The Risk and Control Framework

The Trust is committed to embedding an integrat-
ed approach to managing risk, and recognises 
that the proactive and continuous management 
of risk is essential to the efficient and effective 
delivery of services. The Board of Directors 
has approved a three-year Risk Management 
Strategy which sets out the Trust’s commitment 
to embedding this approach to managing risk 
and it is recognised that a proactive approach to 
risk management can enable a reduction in harm 
to patients and staff, assist in creating safer care 
environments and is essential for the achieve-
ment of the organisation’s strategic goals as well 
as the Trust’s corporate and clinical objectives.

The Trust has undertaken a self-assessment 
to identify areas for improvement within risk 
management and has developed a plan for 
implementing its Risk Management Strategy. Risk 
management objectives have also been devel-
oped, which are based on the outcome of the 
risk maturity assessment carried out by the Trust 
in line with national guidance and best practice.

A review will be undertaken in early 2018/19 as 
part of the Board’s strategy sessions to review 
the definition of the Trust’s risk appetite or 
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the level of risk that it is prepared to accept, 
tolerate, or be exposed to. A revised risk appetite 
statement will then be developed following 
agreement by the Board of Directors, who are 
responsible for defining the level of risk that can 
be accepted against key domain areas as well as 
the Trust’s strategic goals.

The management of risks is a key factor in 
achieving the provision of the highest quality 
care, requiring the identification, management 
and minimising of activities or events which 
could result in unnecessary risks to service users, 
staff and visitors/members of the public. All of 
our staff are expected to identify, manage and 
reduce risk as one of their fundamental duties in 
an environment of honesty and openness, where 
mistakes and untoward incidents are identified 
quickly and dealt with in a positive and respon-
sive way. The Board of Directors has approved a 
three-year Risk Management Strategy which sets 
out the Trust’s commitment to embedding an 
integrated approach to managing risk.

Current risks confronting the organisation are 
identified as part of a ‘top down’ assessment 
process and a ‘bottom up’ risk identification 
process involving analysis of incidents, claims 
and complaints and other tools such as unit risk 
assessments. Any risks identified by stakeholders 
either on an individual basis or as a group are 
taken account of in the risk assessment process.

To ensure risk management is robust, we have 
used the ‘Alarm National Model for Risk Man-
agement’ to undertake a self-assessment of our 
‘risk maturity’. We will use this as a development 
tool, identifying areas for improvement, as 
well as setting and implementing clear plans. 
Risk management objectives have also been 
developed, which are based on the outcome of 
the risk maturity assessment carried out by the 
Trust and are in line with national guidance and 
best practice. A review will be undertaken in 
early 2018/19 to re-assess the Trust level of ‘risk 
maturity’ and to inform any additional actions 
required to further develop risk managements 
arrangements within the Trust.

Trust-wide Risks

The Trust-wide risk register is compiled of 
identified risks that should they be realised, 
would have implications at Trust-level and would 
have a significant impact upon the organisation. 
The current risks captured on the Trust-wide 
risk register are referenced below. The current 
controls in place as well as the further areas for 
action have also been detailed to indicate the 
level of mitigation currently in place and addition-
al actions planned to reduce the impact of the 
risk or likelihood of its occurrence.

Risk Description Mitigating Controls Further Mitigating Actions

The Trust’s cash 
position deteriorates 
adversely where day 
to day functioning is 
impacted and the or-
ganisation is no longer 
financially independent.

• Daily monitoring of the cash position 
and weekly update to CE 

• Forecasts made on a monthly basis.
• Weekly reviews of outstanding debtors 

with contact made to recover debt and 
additional recovery through the SBS 
system. 

• Creditor assessment and payment made 
on a weekly basis. 

• Cash position reported as a standing 
item to the Board and Finance Commit-
tee. 

• Trust remains within its Revenue and 
Capital budgets which are dependent 
on Resources provided.

• Budget Reduction Strategy 
and MTFP which integrates the 
Cash Flow projections which 
includes a sensitivity analysis.

Failure to identify, 
agree and implement 
a financial plan that 
returns the Trust to 
surplus, meets NHS Im-
provement control total 
and deliver its short, 
medium and long term 
CIP and service trans-
formation to ensure 
costs are contained 
within budget. This also 
reflects the risk that in-
come declines through 
implementation of 
tariff, or national and 
local commissioner 
targets.

• Budgets agreed 
• Monthly reporting & monitoring and 

discussion with budget holders 
• Small contingency / risk cover provided 

in plan. 
• CIP programme - Project management 

approach to delivery of CIP (standard-
ised templates). 

• Bi-weekly Deputies meeting tasked with 
CIP delivery. 

• MTFP developed to inform plans. 
• Service plans.
• Finance Committee established. 
• Budget recovery plan agreed by EMT. 
• Budget Reduction Strategy 2018-19 to 

2020-21 established which will produce 
a MTFP, incorporating the CIP process. 

• Non-recurrent savings.

• Development of MTFP report-
ing to Board on a quarterly 
basis. 

• Budget Recovery Plan imple-
mentation.

• Draft version MTFP.
• Budget Reduction Strategy 

implemented with agreement 
from CCGs regarding capacity 
and demand.

Failure to achieve the 
organisation’s Cost Im-
provement Programme, 
achieve control total, 
and achieve required 
NHS Improvement Use 
of Resources Score for 
2017/18.

• Monthly Monitoring of Financial 
Position discussed with budget holders 
(regular confirm and challenge) 

• CIP programme - Project management 
approach to delivery of CIP (standard-
ised templates) 

• OPRG Sub-Group monitors perfor-
mance against plans 

• Small amount of contingency/Risk cover 
provided for in plan Contractual discus-
sions with commissioners. 

• Standing item on EMT agenda 
• Standing item on Finance Committee 

agenda 
• Non-recurrent savings identified and 

agreed at EMT/ Finance Committee

• Improve Communications sec-
tions of Service Plans to ensure 
opportunities are exploited to 
showcase/market our services 

• Engage NHSI for sight of other 
Trust CIPs

• Non-recurrent savings to be 
removed from budget 

• 3 year Budget Reduction 
Strategy introduced 2018-19 to 
2020-21
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Risk Description Mitigating Controls Further Mitigating Actions

Failure to meet Regula-
tion 18 HSCA (RA) Reg-
ulations 2014 regarding 
Safer Staffing.

• Contractual discussions with commis-
sioners. 

• Standing item on EMT agenda 
• Standing item on Finance Committee 

agenda 
• Non-recurrent savings identified and 

agreed at EMT/ Finance Committee 

Failure to meet Regula-
tion 18 HSCA (RA) Reg-
ulations 2014 regarding 
Safer Staffing.

• Routine performance monitoring 
of staffing establishments and daily 
staffing levels review by care groups 

• Health roster system. 
• Management of attendance. 
• Support from other professional groups 

and nursing leadership to deliver safe 
staffing levels. 

• Daily checks on following days roster 
requirements to ensure staff cover is 
arranged in some clinical areas. 

• Continued recruitment drive, looking 
at different incentive schemes, use of 
overtime, bank and agency 

• Daily rota management in some clinical 
areas. 

• Use of flexible workforce solutions 
where available in some clinical areas. 

• Validated tool used to agree establish-
ments. 

• DATIX incident reports. 
• Bed Escalation Policy. 
• Monthly performance report- Quality 

dashboard to identify risks

• Ensure a 12 monthly review 
of inpatient establishments is 
undertaken with priority given 
to PICU 

• Work with commissioners to 
develop new models of care/
delivery options utilising the 
whole workforce 

• Consider the purchase of the 
Safe Care module for e-Roster 
to inform real time decision 
making to reflect changes in 
patient acuity 

• Continue to actively recruit to 
vacancies and consider creative 
ways of doing so, working 
with partners across the health 
economy 

• Consideration of nursing 
apprenticeships and nursing 
associate roles and greater use 
of the wider multi-disciplinary 
team in providing clinical 
leadership to units

• Focus on safer staffing from a 
multidisciplinary team approach 
to be strengthened to oversee 
and develop a work plan to 
ensure the Trust has robust 
systems and processes in place 
in relation to safer staffing

• Ensure patient experience is 
captured across all units to pro-
vide patient insight in relation 
to quality of care delivery

The Board of Directors maintains overarching 
responsibility for risk management throughout 
the organisation and considers the content of 
the Trust-wide Risk Register and Board Assur-
ance Framework four times a year at quarterly 

intervals. Content of the Trust-wide risk register 
is reviewed on a monthly basis by the Executive 
Management Team and is also discussed at Board 
committees meetings alongside relevant sections 
of the Board Assurance Framework.

CQC Compliance

An announced scheduled well-led inspection 
was carried out by the Care Quality Commission 
(CQC) in year, from 16 – 18 October 2017. This 
was preceded by a number of unannounced 
inspections across 8 core services and substance 
misuse services.

The overall rating of the Trust improved from the 
previous inspection to good. The CQC rated the 
effective, caring and well-led domains as good. 
The safe domain was rated as ‘requires improve-
ment,’ although this was an improvement from 
the 2016 inspection when safe was rated as 
‘inadequate.’

The CQC identified 15 actions that the Trust must 
take in order to comply with legal obligations. 
The actions are included the following themes:

• Ensuring staff receive supervision, mandato-
ry training and appraisals

• Ensuring that there are sufficient staff to 
meet safe staffing levels

• Ensuring that accurate complete and con-
temporaneous records are maintained.

• Ensuring that patients have an up to date 
risk assessment and management plan in 
place.

• Ensuring that the rooms used by the Rapid 
Response Service are properly maintained

• Ensure that all staff know what the Freedom 
to Speak up Guardian is and who they are.

• Ensuring that audit schedules are in place 
for the mental health crisis and health based 
place of safety services

• Ensuring that governance systems and 
processes are in place across all community 
health services

• Ensuring that recovery plans are regularly 
reviewed in line with Trust policy and best 
practice.

• Ensuring that patients receive regular clinic 
reviews in line with policy and best practice.

In addition to the areas the Trust must improve 
the CQC identified a number of areas that the 
trust should take action to address. A com-
prehensive Improvement Plan was developed 
to address the concerns raised via ‘must’ and 
‘should’ do actions that were detailed in the final 
inspection reports. The ‘must do’ Improvement 
Plan was presented to the Board of Directors 
in February 2018. A Quality and Regulations 
Governance (QRG) Group has been introduced 
in order to monitor and drive the delivery of the 
must and should do actions. The QRG group, 
report through the Executive Management Team 
(EMT), the Quality and Patient Safety (QPaS) 
group and the Quality Committee receives 
quarterly assurance in relation to action plan 
delivery which is presented to the Board through 
the Quality Committee assurance report to the 
Board.

The Trust has in place a robust process for ‘Fit 
and Proper Persons’ testing in line with current 
guidance to ensure compliance with NHS provid-
er license, general condition 4 : Fit and proper 
persons. Self-declaration forms are used for 
both Board members and Council of Governors 
members and testing arrangements are in place 
to review the disqualified director and insolvency 
registers to ensure fit and proper eligibility. 
Self-declarations are completed on an annual 
basis for both governors and directors to ensure 
continuity of up-to-date information and assur-
ance that testing requirements are met. Further 
action is planned to strengthen Trust arrange-
ments for 2018-19 with wider application of the 
requirements to Trust Council of Governors and 
implementation of investigation procedures.

Humber NHS Foundation Trust is fully compliant 
with the registration requirements of the Care 
Quality Commission (CQC) as at the 31 March 
2018.
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Governance Structure

Each of the Trust’s Board Committees 
and aligned sub-groups have a collective 
responsibility to ensure that effective 
risk management is embedded within 
the organisation and to ensure that 
governance arrangements are in place to 
monitor its application as they discharge 
their duties, and this is reflected in their 
respective Terms of Reference. 

Through their work plans they will contribute 
towards reducing the organisation’s exposure to 
risk. Risks identified by Committees and reporting 
groups will be communicated and recorded on 
the appropriate risk register and will be subject 
to overview, monitoring and intervention by the 
Corporate Risk Manager, providing assurance 
to the relevant Committee and the Board of 
Directors.

Audit Committee - is the Board Committee 
with overarching responsibility for risk manage-
ment. The role of the Committee is to scrutinise 
and review the Trust’s systems of governance, 
risk management, and internal control. It seeks 
regular assurance on the Trust’s risk management 
arrangements to enable it to review the organ-
isation’s approach to risk, as well as reviewing 
the Trust-wide risk register and Board Assurance 
Framework regularly.

The Committee reviews the adequacy of all 
risk and control related disclosure statements 
together with any accompanying Head of Internal 
Audit statement, External Auditor opinion or 
other appropriate independent assurances. On 
occasion it will commission internal or external 
auditors to review and report on aspects of risk 
management or on the management of signifi-
cant risks. The committee has also commissioned 
a rolling review of Care Group and Directorate 
risk register undertaken through deep-dives to 
review the quality and appropriateness of risk 
register entries across the organisation on a 
recurring basis.

Finance Committee – is the Board Committee 
with overarching responsibility for oversight of 
the Trust’s Finances. The role of the Committee 
is to scrutinise and review the Trust’s financial 
position and activity. It seeks regular assurance 
on the Trust’s risk management arrangements 
specifically related to finance risks and is respon-
sible for one section of the Board Assurance 
Framework, which it also reviews as a standing 
agenda item at each meeting.

Quality Committee – is the Board Committee 
with overarching responsibility for oversight 
of the Trust’s quality and patient experience 
agenda, but this extends to Human Resources 
and Operational delivery also. The role of the 
Committee is to scrutinise and review the Trust’s 
quality and patient safety position, as well as 
Human Resources metrics and operational 
delivery of services. The committee seeks regular 
assurance on the Trust’s risk management 
arrangements specifically related to quality, 
workforce and operations, and is responsible 
for the relevant sections of the Board Assurance 
Framework related to these areas.

Strategic Investment Committee - is the 
Board Committee with the remit to conduct 
independent and objective review and oversight 
of the Trust’s trading and commercial investment 
activities on behalf of the Board of Directors, and 
to ensure compliance with Investment Policy and 
Strategic Objectives.

Mental Health Legislation Committee – is 
a Board Committee whose remit it is to provide 
strategic leadership pertaining to the Mental 
Health Act, the Mental Capacity Act and their 
respective Codes of Practice and other mental 
health related legislation, as well as to monitor, 
provide challenge and seek assurance of compli-
ance with external standards relating to Mental 
Health Legislation and approve and review 
Mental Health Legislation polices and protocols.

Executive Management Team (EMT) – in-
volves all Executive Directors and is chaired by 
the Chief Executive. The Executive Management 
Team provides the leadership for risk manage-
ment across the Trust, considering and approving 
the development of systems and processes, as 
well as championing risk management within 
their areas of responsibility. This group is the lead 
for managing the Trust-wide Risk Register, mon-
itoring the management of risk. They consider 
and accept new items on to the Trust-wide Risk 
Register and reviewing and revising risk entries 
on a regular basis, as well as the approval/remov-
al of any risks from the Register at the request 
of the Corporate Risk Manager. The Trust-wide 
risk register and Board Assurance Framework are 
reviewed by the Executive Management Team on 
a monthly basis.

Senior Management Team (SMT) – is made 
up of deputies from across the Trust and is 
chaired by one of its members on a rolling 6 
month basis. This group is responsible for the 
effective implementation of plans and actions 
arising from EMT and to escalate any significant 
matters arising when an EMT decision is required. 
SMT are responsible for the delivery of the Trust’s 
Cost Improvement Plans and Budget Reduction 
Strategy. SMT also supports the delivery of the 
Workforce and Organisational Development 
Strategy and the effective implementation of the 
Health and Wellbeing Strategy, the development 
and implementation of the Trust’s Estate Strategy 
and gives support to the delivery of the Trust 
Communication Plan.

Operational ‘Performance & Risk’ Group –  
is chaired by the Chief Operating Officer and 
considers the Care Group risk registers, as well 
as thematic risks from directorate risk registers. 
This group is responsible for ensuring that risk 
assessments are consistent, timely and that 
appropriate actions to mitigate risks are being 
taken. Similar risks identified across the Trust are 
also highlighted, cross-referenced and considered 
as a whole. The group is also responsible for 
reviewing escalated or newly identified significant 
risks for inclusion on the Trust-wide risk register 
and referring them to the Executive Management 
Team for review and ongoing monitoring.

Care Group / Directorate Business  
meetings – are held within each Care Group 
/ Directorate, and are responsible for ensuring 
that appropriate risk registers are in place, risks 
are being effectively captured and appropriate 
mitigating actions are being taken. They are also 
responsible for highlighting risks for escalation/ 
de-escalation, based on the current risk score 
and perceived business impact for the Trust, to/
from the Trust-wide risk register via the Executive 
Management Team.

Quality & Patient Safety Committee (QPAS) 
– is accountable to the Executive Management 
Team (EMT). It oversees and coordinates all 
aspects of quality improvement (patient experi-
ence/patient safety & clinical effectiveness), assur-
ance and clinical governance activity and delivery. 
The Committee has responsibility to escalate any 
issues which may have a potential impact on the 
delivery of the organisational objectives to the 
Executive Management Team.

Clinical Risk Management Group (CRMG) 
– reports to QPAS and has responsibility for 
ensuring clinical risk management systems, 
processes and related clinical risk management 
strategies and policies are regularly reviewed 
and implemented Trust-wide. The group ensures 
that systems and processes are developed and 
maintained to enable Trust-wide monitoring and 
review of all clinical risks to ensure appropriate 
investigation, and maximisation of learning from 
incidents.

Capital Programme Board – reports to EMT 
following the assessment and prioritising of 
capital applications based on underlying risk. 
Regular reviews are undertaken on capital bids 
to ensure that any residual risk is monitored and 
managed by the relevant Trust area should a bid 
be declined.

The key to effective governance within the Trust 
is a robust integrated committee structure and 
management process, which gives the Board of 
Directors confidence that all risks are being effec-
tively controlled and managed and that attention 
is focused on the core business of the organiza-
tion, which is to care for and treat patients. The 
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governance structure in place within the Trust 
and referenced in this section of this statement 
is subject to ongoing review to ensure that it is 
effective and provides appropriate scrutiny and 
oversight.

Annual Governance Statement/ 
Board Assurance

The requirement to produce an Annual 
Governance Statement as part of the 
Annual report and accounts, enable the 
Board of Directors to demonstrate that 
risks with the potential to impact upon 
the delivery of the Trust’s principal stra-
tegic objectives are being appropriately 
managed. 

The validity of the information detailed within the 
statement can be evidenced in practice through 
the use of the Board Assurance Framework with-
in the Trust. The framework is used to monitor 
the principal risks to the corporate objectives 
which underpin the Trust strategic goals, as well 
as monitoring mitigating controls and actions, 
sources of assurance and positive /negative 
assurances contributing to the overall rating 
assigned to the strategic objective. Through the 
established assurance processes implemented 
within the Trust, the Board of Directors maintain 
oversight of systems and standards regarded as 
appropriate for a supplier of healthcare services 
in the NHS.

Development of the Board Assurance Framework 
has continued throughout 2017-18, and the 
format of the framework has been further 
developed with input from the Board of Directors 
and it committees. Information is presented with 
a focus on actual assurances received, as well 
as the risks to the key objectives that sit under 
each of the strategic goals. The Board Assurance 
Framework (BAF) aims to allow the Board of 
Directors to monitor progress against the Trust’s 
six strategic goals, as well as progress against 
individual identified risks, with the framework 
highlighting the movement of current risk ratings 
from the previous quarter’s position. This format 
allows for clear consideration to be given to the 
risks, controls and assurances, which will enable 

a focused review and discussion of the challenges 
to delivery of the organisational objectives.

The framework also provides a comprehensive 
evidence base for compliance against internal 
and external standards, as well as targets and 
requirements including CQC registration. The 
Framework is monitored closely by the Executive 
Management Team on a monthly basis. Individual 
meetings also take place with each of the Trust 
Executives on a monthly basis to undertake a 
review of their allocated strategic goal(s) and 
their aligned risks. This process ensures that there 
is robust confirm and challenge prior to sub-
mission to the Board of Directors and assigned 
committees.

Risk management activities undertaken within 
the Trust operate at a number of levels: for 
example, a health or social care professional 
creating a risk management plan for a service 
user; health and safety assessments of local 
facilities, incident reporting and organisational 
learning, corporate planning around the organ-
isational response to a major incident; or risk 
assessment and mitigation for business expansion 
and development. The Trust risk management 
strategy and its related procedures serve to set 
these various risk management activities within 
a broader corporate framework and to identify a 
consistent approach to risk management across 
the Trust. Risk management is also embedded 
throughout the committee and organisational 
structure of the Trust with clear escalation routes 
of risks between units and the Board of Directors 
ranging from operational sub-groups up to the 
Board of Directors.

Public stake-holders involvement is sought where 
appropriate by the Trust and is managed through 
the Patient and Carer Experience Strategy. 
Governors are actively involved with service areas 
and their activity with patients and carers. There 
is clear focus on improving information, involve-
ment in training, culture issues related to service 
delivery and involvement in development and 
review of services. Skills support packages are 
offered to members of the groups as required. 
Active development of working relationships with 
HealthWatch and Overview and Scrutiny Com-

mittees is being pursued. The Patient Advice and 
Liaison Service (PALS) is well established within 
the Trust and there is effective reporting quar-
terly to the Trust’s Quality Committee and Board 
of Directors meetings. The Board of Directors 
hold a meeting in public on a monthly basis and 
stakeholder attendance is encouraged.

As an employer with staff entitled to member-
ship of the NHS Pension Scheme, control meas-
ures are in place to ensure all employer obliga-
tions contained within the Scheme regulations 
are complied with. This includes ensuring that 
deductions from salary, employer’s contributions 
and payments into the Scheme are in accord-
ance with the Scheme rules, and that member 
Pension Scheme records are accurately updated 
in accordance with the timescales detailed in the 
Regulations.

Control measures are in place to ensure that all 
the organisation’s obligations under equality, 
diversity and human rights legislation are com-
plied with.

Humber NHS Foundation Trust has undertaken 
risk assessments and Carbon Reduction Delivery 
Plans are in place in accordance with emergency 
preparedness and civil contingency requirements, 
as based on UKCIP 2009 weather projects, to 
ensure that this organisation’s obligations under 
the Climate Change Act and the Adaptation 
Reporting requirements are complied with.

Review of economy, efficiency and 
effectiveness of the use of resources

The Board of Directors and its sub-committee 
structure have a clear role in providing assurance 
and governance leadership within the Trust, 
particularly around the achievement of efficiency 
and effectiveness, which is a key area of focus 
under the Trust’s governance arrangements 
supported by internal and external audit reviews.

The Audit Committee is the senior sub-com-
mittee with a remit including independently 
scrutinising other Board committees. It also 
reviews the establishment and maintenance of 
an effective system of integrated governance, 

risk management and internal control across the 
whole of the Trust’s activities. This committee 
also gains assurance that confirms effective 
systems of internal control are in place.

Findings and recommendations from audits are 
monitored and reported through the Audit Com-
mittee. The Trust’s external auditors are required 
as part of their annual audit to satisfy themselves 
that the Trust has made proper arrangements for 
securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in 
its use of resources and report by exception if in 
their opinion the Trust has not.

The Strategic Investment Committee ensures that 
processes governing strategic investments are 
being followed and makes recommendations to 
the Board of Directors on major capital expend-
iture, joint ventures, acquisitions and mergers, 
purchase, sale or alteration of property (above 
and agreed threshold) and service expansion or 
major service change.

The Remuneration and Nomination Committee 
make recommendations regarding the remu-
neration allowances and terms of service for 
Executive Board members. The Charitable Funds 
Committee oversees the use of charitable funds 
on behalf of the Trust.

Trust performance is monitored by the Board of 
Directors on a monthly basis. Finance reporting 
is undertaken, which informs the Board of the 
Trust’s current financial position and provides a 
comparison with the planned position for the 
reporting period. Regular reports are also pro-
vided in relation to the Trust’s Cost Improvement 
Programme (CIP) and its level of achievement. 
Finance Committee is responsible for oversight 
of the Trust’s financial position and meets on a 
monthly basis to consider the financial reports 
and seeks assurance regarding the management 
of finance related risks.

Performance against key indicators is reported 
via the Integrated Quality Performance Report 
which provides data in regards to finance, clinical 
and workforce indicators alongside national or 
local targets and objectives. Any areas of concern 
or poor performing area are highlighted and 
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mitigating actions are determined as appropriate 
by the Board of Directors. Specific reporting of 
service waiting times and regular updates for the 
Trust’s Care Groups are also considered through 
the Trust Board to ensure that resources are 
being used effectively within the Trust and that 
any areas of concerns can be addressed quickly.

Information Governance

The Trust maintains a strict management and 
accountability framework for information govern-
ance and data security. Information Governance 
is assured by the annual information governance 
self-assessment using the NHS Information 
Governance (IG) toolkit. The self-assessed scores 
have been independently audited and an action 
plan developed to ensure further improvement. 
The Trust has scored satisfactory with respect to 
the IG toolkit assessment for 2017/18. The Trust 
scored 80% which is a small improvement on the 
previous year.

In order to provide assurance that information 
governance practices are compliant with Trust 
policy, legal and regulatory requirements and 
are embedded in the Trust culture, a programme 
of random ‘spot check’ audits is conducted 
throughout the Trust. This ensures that infor-
mation governance policies, process and opera-
tional activities are effective on the ground and 
compliant with Information Governance Toolkit 
requirements and CQC outcomes 2 and 21. If this 
is not the case, corrective action is recommended 
by the Information Governance Department. The 
results of these audits confirm that Information 
Governance practices are well established and 
are compliant with Trust policy, legal and regula-
tory requirements.

The Trust has encrypted laptops, encrypted data 
devices and desktop computers and has reviewed 
the security of all bulk data in transit and person-
al identifiable data flows identified and mitigated 
against any risks. The Trust has undertaken a re-
fresh and review of its critical information assets. 
Its key information assets have been identified 
and approved by the IG Committee this year and 
each has an Information Asset Owner assigned. 
Each asset has been updated in the Information 

Asset Register which has been approved by the 
Information Governance Committee. All data 
classified incidents were reviewed and none was 
deemed to be significant. The Trust has a quali-
fied Chief Information Officer who is up to date 
with the training required by the Information 
Authority. The Trust has also previously migrated 
to NHS Mail for additional security for data 
transfers.

Three serious incidents were declared during 
2017/18 by the Trust in relation to information 
governance, including data loss or confidentiality 
breaches. Two incidents have been closed by 
the Information Commissioner’s Office with 
no further action, one incident investigation is 
ongoing.

Annual Quality Report

The directors are required under the Health Act 
2009 and the National Health Service (Quality 
Accounts) Regulations 2010 (as amended) to 
prepare Quality Accounts for each financial year. 
NHS Improvement (in exercise of the powers con-
ferred on Monitor) has issued guidance to NHS 
foundation trust boards on the form and content 
of annual Quality Reports which incorporate the 
above legal requirements in the NHS Foundation 
Trust Annual Reporting Manual.

Annual Quality Accounts are published as part 
of the Trust Annual Report and in their develop-
ment for 2017/18, the Trust has worked with key 
stakeholders such as: Governors; HealthWatch; 
local authority members; representatives from 
local community groups; patients/ carers and 
their representatives as well as commissioners, 
to ensure that the priorities selected for review 
were appropriate and that the publication fairly 
represented the quality of our service delivery.

Stakeholders are sent a draft version of the 
accounts for comment prior to publication, and 
where these partners have commented on the 
quality accounts, feedback in printed verbatim 
within the final version.

In order to develop the quality priories for 
2018/19 an event with patients, carers, staff and 

representatives from local community groups 
was held and feedback from the event resulted 
in the following priorities being put forward for 
consideration by the Board of Directors prior to 
incorporation as Quality Priorities in the Quality 
Account.

Priority 1
Ensure we have meaningful con-
versations with patients/carers to 
develop therapeutic relationships 

and engagement in service delivery

Strategic Goal 1 
Innovating quality and patient safety

Strategic Goal 2
Enhancing prevention, wellbeing and recovery

Strategic Goal 5
Fostering
integration, partnerships and alliances

Priority 2
Ensure that quality improvement is a 
part of every staff member’s role to 
maximise patient safety across all of 

our services

Strategic Goal 1
Innovating quality and patient safety

Strategic Goal 3
Developing an effective and empowered workforce

Priority 3
Embed best available evidence in 
practice utilising patient reported 

and clinical reported outcome 
measures (PROMS, CROMS)

Strategic Goal 1
Innovating quality and patient safety

Strategic Goal 6
Maximising an efficient and sustainable organisation

Strategic Goal 2
Enhancing prevention, wellbeing and recovery

Each of the identified priorities has a set of clear 
key performance indicators to ensure delivery.

A public consultation took place for our key 
stakeholders, governors, staff and patient group 
representatives. During the event, presentations 
were delivered on the key areas for development, 
and following group discussion, those present 
were asked to prioritise their top focus areas to 

the other attendees. The Trust was given feed-
back that some of the priorities initially identified 
should be amended to better reflect the needs 
of our patients and staff. The required changes 
were subsequently made, and the final priorities 
were then agreed by our Board members.

The final agreed key qualities priorities described in the table below:
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Data Quality

The Trust has continued to take necessary steps 
to assure itself of the robustness of its data 
quality. Processes are in place within the Trust for 
the monitoring of performance information, both 
centrally through the Trust’s Performance team 
and at operational level within the Care Groups, 
such as regular meetings to review waiting time 
data. During 2017/18, the Trust has further 
developed the Integrated Performance Tracker 
which serves as useful tool for bringing together 
all aspects of Trust performance and allows for 
effective identification of trends, as well as the 
escalation of key issues to the Trust Executive 
Management Team and Board of Directors as re-
quired. The report format has undergone further 
review during 2017/18, and additional indicators 
for future reporting have been discussed by the 
Executive Management Team to further enhance 
the reporting arrangements and quality of data 
used.

A monthly Quality Report is presented to the 
Board of Directors outlining the Trust’s perfor-
mance against key quality objectives including 
comparative data, and a safer staffing dashboard 
is presented highlighting key staffing indicators. 
New weekly return forms have been introduced 
to allow for consistent entry submissions limiting 
the choices to the nationally set criteria. This 
process also allows for more accurate data 
quality in terms of clinical effectiveness at Care 
Group level.

Review of Effectiveness

As Accountable Officer, I have responsibility for 
reviewing the effectiveness of the system of 
internal control. My review of the effectiveness of 
the system of internal control is informed by the 
work of the internal auditors, clinical audit and 
the executive managers and clinical leads within 
the Trust who have responsibility for the devel-
opment and maintenance of the internal control 
framework. I have drawn on the content of the 
quality report attached to this annual report and 
other performance information available to me. 
My review is also informed by comments made 

by the external auditors in their management 
letter and other reports. I have been advised on 
the implications of the result of my review of the 
effectiveness of the system of internal control by 
the Board of Directors, Audit Committee, Quality 
Committee and Finance Committee, and a plan 
to address weaknesses and ensure continuous 
improvement of the systems is in place.

Our internal auditors provide me with an opinion 
on the overall arrangements for gaining assur-
ance through the assurance framework and on 
the controls reviewed as part of the internal audit 
work.

Executive managers within the organisation who 
have responsibility for the development and 
maintenance of the system of internal control 
provide me with assurance. The assurance 
framework itself provides me with evidence on 
the effectiveness of controls that manage the 
risks to the organisation achieving its principal 
objectives have been reviewed.

My review is also informed by assurances from 
other sources which include the Care Quality 
Commission, patient and staff surveys, Patient 
Led Assessment of the Care Environment 
(PLACE) inspections, NHS Resolution, a number 
of Foundation Trust driven external reviews and 
the registration requirements of the Care Quality 
Commission and Information Governance Toolkit 
self-assessments.

The Audit Committee (AC) has provided the 
Board of Directors with an independent and 
objective review of controls in place within the 
organisation based on assurance it has received 
from Internal Audit and External Audit, and from 
management. Internal and external audit have 
reviewed and reported on control, governance 
and risk management processes, based on audit 
plans approved by the committee. Where scope 
for improvement was found, recommendations 
were made and appropriate action plans agreed 
with management. The Trust has a mechanism in 
place to track progress in implementing agreed 
recommendations and the results of re-audit are 
fed back to the Audit. 

Finance and Quality Committees provide the 
board with assurance that effective control is in 
place with regards to the Trust’s financial position 
and in relation to the quality of services the 
organisation delivers to its users.

The Trust continues to be committed to deliver-
ing safe, quality and compassionate care.

Conclusion

The Head of Internal Audit opinion statement 
has been received on the effectiveness of the 
system of internal control. The overall opinion 
is that there is ‘good’ assurance that the system 
of internal control has been effectively designed 
to meet the organisation’s objectives, and that 
controls are being consistently applied.

My review confirms that of the internal auditor’s 
opinion above, and the audits of medical 
equipment management, and financial systems 
for petty cash undertaken in year where limited 
assurance was provided. Weaknesses were 
identified in these areas, indicating additional 
work required, but were not considered to have 
a potential impact on the achievement of the 
Trust’s objectives. Work is ongoing within the 
organisation to address the recommendations 
made by internal audit and to strengthen the 
systems and processes in place, but no significant 
internal control issues have been identified.

MICHELE MORAN 

Chief Executive 

23 MAY 2018
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Equality and diversity

Progress against our objectives for 2017/2018 
and proposed core objectives for 2018/2019 are 
detailed below.

Staff objectives for 2017/18

• Introduce positive action for Black and 
Minority Ethnic (BME) staff in all recruitment 
processes (including Board, Non-Executive 
and Governor posts) by guaranteeing an 
interview for all BME staff that meet the 
essential criteria of the person specification 
and the required right to work criteria.

• Positive engagement, staff who are listened 
to feel valued. Launch a diversity and 
inclusion staff group to actively encourage 
staff from declared characteristics under 
the Equality Act, to encourage other staff 
to reverse the trend in non-disclosure and 
promote active involvement in the Equality 
and Diversity agenda and objectives for 
the Trust. This will replace the Equality and 
Diversity steering group that historically has 
not been well attended.

• Pilot a ‘transfer window’ scheme that offers 
both BME and declared Disabled staff a time 
limited ‘window’ to request a shadowing 
opportunity for a grade higher than they are 
currently on, or request a mentor or coach as 
a positive action for future career progression.

• To further review the data findings of the 
Workforce Race Equality Scheme (WRES) and 
Trust data to learn from and take positive 
action in order to decrease the reported 
discrimination. This will include measuring the 
success of the behavioural framework and 
the personal responsibility procedure with 
the aim to reduce the number of formal HR 
processes and cases being undertaken. The 
Workforce Race Equality Scheme 2016 report 
best practice states the informal stage of 
the disciplinary process was critical in sorting 
out minor issues and that some managers 
were hindered in this process by a lack of 
confidence in applying informal strategies 
with BME staff and therefore more likely to 
go straight to HR and formalise a process

Key achievements and outcomes

Recruitment and Selection Training has been run-
ning monthly for over a year during which time 
the training has been redesigned to be robust in 
its approach to Equality and Diversity, creating 
opportunities to discuss the issues relating to the 
findings of the Workforce Race Equality Scheme 
(WRES) and other pertinent aspects.

Strong links have been made with local groups 
who represent people with Protected Charac-
teristics within our communities including the 
Disability Action Group and Hull and East Riding 
Lesbian, Gay, Bisexual and Trans (LGBT) Forum to 
make robust links between them and the Trust.

Equality and Diversity training was introduced 
as Mandatory in 2016/2017 at which point 
the compliance rate was 54%. At the start of 
2017/2018 the compliance rate was 71.1% and is 
currently 85.9%.

The Trust’s Gender Pay information was pub-
lished as is legally required by 31.03.17.

The WRES analysis of the relevant questions from 
the 2017 National NHS Staff Survey shows the 
following data/information:

Staff Attitude Survey (SAS) question 2017 score of those surveyed

KF25 % of staff experiencing harassment, 
bullying or abuse from patients relatives or the 
public in the last 12 months

White: 31%

BME: 33%

KF26 % of staff experiencing harassment, 
bullying or abuse from staff in last 12 month

White: 18%

BME: 27%

KF21 % of staff believing the organisation 
provides equal opportunities for career 
progression or promotion

White: 89%

BME: 100%

Q17b in the last 12 months have you personally 
experienced discrimination at work from 
manager/team leader or other colleague?

White: 8%

BME: 13%

Actions taken against the WRES objectives for 2017/18:

Staff Objectives 2017/2018 Key Achievements or Outcomes

1. Introduce positive action for BME staff in all re-
cruitment processes (including Board, Non-Executive 
and Governor posts) by guaranteeing an interview 
for all BME staff that meet the essential criteria of 
the person specification and the required right to 
work criteria.

Work has been undertaken to pursue this objec-
tive including exploration of the NHS Jobs system, 
networking with local NHS Equality, Diversity and 
Inclusion peers. However care has to be taken 
to ensure that actions taken are designated as 
positive action and not positive discrimination. 
Whilst NHS Jobs enables people with disabilities 
to be offered a guaranteed interview, it does not 
currently have this functionality for any other 
protected characteristic. Therefore identification 
of those applicants from BME communities need 
to be carried out manually and whilst the Trust 
continues to receive a high number of applica-
tions this is not currently practical and therefore 
other methods are being considered to assure 
delivery of this action.
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Staff Objectives 2017/2018 Key Achievements or Outcomes

2. Positive engagement, staff who are listened to 
feel valued. Launch a diversity and inclusion staff 
group to actively encourage staff from declared 
characteristics under the Equality Act, to encourage 
other staff to reverse the trend in non-disclosure 
and promote active involvement in the Equality and 
Diversity agenda and objectives for the Trust. This 
will replace the Equality and Diversity steering group 
that historically has not been well attended.

Invitations have been sent to all Trust staff 
to request participation in a number of ways 
regarding Equality, Diversity and Inclusion. These 
include raising concerns, being involved in an 
Ambassadors forum and a Diversity and Inclusion 
staff group. It is anticipated that these groups will 
have a number of functions including consulta-
tion, information and best practice sharing and 
networking and support.

3. Pilot a ‘transfer window’ scheme that offers both 
BME and declared Disabled staff a time limited 
‘window’ to request a shadowing opportunity for a 
grade higher than they are currently on, or request 
a mentor or coach as a positive action for future 
career progression.

The data available to us i.e. the Staff Survey does 
not indicate that staff from BME backgrounds feel 
that there is an issue with career development. 
However the PADR package has been reviewed 
to include Talent Management which will prompt 
the discussion regarding opportunities for devel-
opment for all.

4. To further review the data findings of the Work-
force Race Equality Scheme (WRES) and Trust data 
to learn from and take positive action in order to de-
crease the reported discrimination. This will include 
measuring the success of the behavioural framework 
and the personal responsibility procedure with the 
aim to reduce the number of formal HR processes 
and cases being undertaken. The Workforce Race 
Equality Scheme 2016 report best practice states 
the informal stage of the disciplinary process was 
critical in sorting out minor issues and that some 
managers were hindered in this process by a lack of 
confidence in applying informal strategies with BME 
staff and therefore more likely to go straight to HR 
and formalise a process.

Discussions have taken place with the deputy 
director of HR with regards to undertaking 
collaborative work with HR managers and 
business partners. This is to raise the awareness 
of the importance of the informal stage of the 
disciplinary process in addressing minor issues as 
per the WRES (2016) report.

Our Trust profile shows a Gender split of 
approximately 75.9% female and 24.1% male 
(based on whole time equivalent (WTE)). NHS 
job applications are broadly proportionate in 
that 74.61% were from females and 25% were 
from males in the year to 31 March 2018. These 
figures show that as at 31.3.18 we employed 
slightly less women and slightly more men than 
last year.

Age profile of the Trust remains an ageing one 
with the highest number of people (WTE) in the 
age ranges 41-60 (56%) and 7.6% of the work-
force are aged 61 and above which is slightly less 
than 9.4% last year.

The vast majority of applicants through NHS Jobs 
declared that they had no Disability (92.24%) 
however the Trust currently reports that of staff 
employed, 4.46 % declared a disability. It is 
worth noting that of staff employed, 35% of 
staff have chosen to either not declare a disability 
or have chosen to select undefined which is the 

same as last year. The Trust has introduced ESR 
Employee self-service which enables staff to view 
their own records highlighting what information 
is held by the Trust giving them to option to 
amend.

Ethnicity of the Trust is reported as 87.18% 
white, this includes white British, white Irish and 
other White European nationalities, with 3.9% 
BME which is an increase of 0.7% on last year’s 
figures and 8.93% choosing not to declare an 
ethnic background which is a vast improvement 
on the 12.5% of last year. These figures are 
in line with the ethnicity data reported from 
applications on NHS Jobs which is detailed as 
87.77% white British/White other. Ethnicity data 
for the East Yorkshire and Hull region is detailed 
respectively at 96.2% and 95.5% white British/
white other. It is difficult to accurately assess if 
we are representative of the local communities 
when 8.93% remain undisclosed.

Christianity remains the most popular Religion 
recorded in the Trust at 36.62%. however 
27.7% of staff did not disclose their religion 
or it remains unspecified. NHS job applications 
show 44.85% declared themselves as Christians, 
21.41% declared themselves atheists, 13.85% 
were undisclosed and 15.45% stated other.

Sexuality disclosure in the Trust remains pre-
dominantly heterosexual (64.62%) or undisclosed 
or unspecified (33.71%) which is lower than last 
year’s figures of 35.2%. NHS jobs applications 
report 89.43% heterosexual and 6.7% were 
undisclosed.

Marital status in the Trust is reported as 
50.74% married and 34.82% single whilst 
NHS job applications report single as the most 
recorded status at 55.65% followed by married 
at 31.24%. This may suggest a correlation in 
relation to the age profile of the Trust.

Active HR casework during this period shows 
that there have been eight bullying and har-
assment cases which is a decrease of one from 
last year. Capabilities have decreased to 4, a 
significant reduction from 17 last year and there 
has been an decrease of 21 (37 from 58) in 

disciplinary cases. Two formal flexible working 
requests were received (a reduction of three from 
last year) and 24 grievances which is a significant 
decrease from 59 last year.

We have had 13 reports made to the Freedom to 
Speak up Guardian since more formal recording 
commenced in June 2017. We consider this to be 
a significant improvement upon the nil return of 
the previous year as this is viewed as a ‘failsafe’ 
for the organisation. When surveyed 44% of 64 
people who completed the survey said they felt 
that they could raise concerns if necessary.

Of those individuals involved in HR casework a 
fifth (20%) were male and four fifths (80%) were 
female staff, which indicates a higher proportion 
of female staff are involved in formal HR cases 
when compared to the Trust figure of female 
(75.9%) staff employed by the Trust.

Of the formal flexible working requests both 
were from females, this shows a reduction from 
five formal requests last year, and demonstrates 
a higher proportion of requests from women 
as opposed to men when compared to Trust 
workforce data.

Modern Slavery Act 2015

Humber Teaching NHS Foundation Trust contin-
ues to take a number of steps to ensure slavery 
and human trafficking is not taking place in any 
of its supply chains or in any part of its own 
business. We do this by:

• working towards full compliance with the 
relevant legislation and regulatory require-
ments;

• working to promote the requirements of the 
legislation, making our approach known to 
our suppliers and service providers;

• building on our existing workforce aware-
ness of human trafficking and modern 
slavery, through our safeguarding policies/
protocols and commercial learning;

• considering human trafficking and modern 
slavery issues when making procurement 
decisions.

Review of information of NHS job applications, HR case work activity and Trust work-
force information shows the following data/information.
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Independent 
Auditor’s Report

Humber NHS Foundation Trust

11 May 2018

Final Head of Internal Audit Opinion 
for the year ending 31 March 2018

Independent Auditor’s Report to the 
Council of Governors and Board of 
Directors of Humber NHS Trust

1. Introduction

In accordance with Public Sector Internal Audit 
Standards, the Head of Internal Audit is required 
to provide an annual opinion on the overall 
adequacy and effectiveness of the organisation’s 
system of internal control.

The purpose of this report is to provide the Trust 
with the final Head of Internal Audit Opinion for 
the year ending 31 March 2018, which should 
be used to inform the Annual Governance 
Statement.

2. Final Head of Internal Audit 
Opinion on the Effectiveness of the 
System of Internal Control at Humber 
NHS Foundation Trust for the year 
ending 31 March 2018

2.1 Roles and responsibilities

The Accountable Officer is responsible for main-
taining a sound system of internal control and is 
responsible for putting in place arrangements for 
gaining assurance about the effectiveness of that 
overall system.

The Annual Governance Statement is an annual 
statement by the Accountable Officer, on behalf 
of the Board, setting out:

• how the individual responsibilities of the Ac-
countable Officer are discharged with regard 
to maintaining a sound system of internal 
control that supports the achievement of 
policies, aims and objectives;

• the purpose of the system of internal control 
as evidenced by a description of the risk 
management and review processes, includ-
ing the Assurance Framework process;

• the conduct and results of the review of 
the effectiveness of the system of internal 
control, including any disclosures of signifi-
cant control failures together with assuranc-
es that actions are or will be taken where 
appropriate to address issues arising.

The organisation’s Assurance Framework should 
bring together all of the evidence required to 
support the Annual Governance Statement 
requirements.
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In accordance with Public Sector Internal Audit 
Standards, the Head of Internal Audit is required 
to provide an annual opinion, based upon, and 
limited to, the work performed, on the overall 
adequacy and effectiveness of the organisation’s 
risk management, control and governance pro-
cesses (i.e. the organisation’s system of internal 
control). This is achieved through a risk-based 
plan of work, approved by the Audit Committee, 
which should provide a reasonable level of 
assurance, subject to the inherent limitations 
described below.

The opinion does not imply that Internal Audit 
have reviewed all risks and assurances relating 
to the organisation. The opinion is substantially 
derived from the conduct of risk-based plans, 
generated from a robust and organisation-led 
Assurance Framework. As such, it is one 
component that the Accountable Officer takes 
into account in making the Annual Governance 
Statement. The Accountable Officer will need 
to integrate these results with other sources of 
assurance when making a rounded assessment of 
control for the purposes of the Annual Govern-
ance Statement.

2.2 The Head of Internal Audit Opinion

The purpose of my annual Head of Internal 
Audit Opinion is to contribute to the assurances 
available to the Accountable Officer and the 
Board which underpins the organisation’s own 
assessment of the effectiveness of the system of 
internal control. This Opinion will in turn assist 
in the completion of the Annual Governance 
Statement.

My opinion is set out as follows:

2.2.1 Overall opinion; 
2.2.2 Basis for the opinion; 
2.2.3 Commentary. 
2.2.1 Overall Opinion

2.2.1 Overall Opinion

From my review of your systems of internal control, I am providing good assur-
ance that the system of internal control has been effectively designed to meet 
the organisation’s objectives, and that controls are being consistently applied.

2.2.2 Basis of the Opinion

The basis for forming my opinion is as follows:

1. An assessment of the design and operation of 
the underpinning Assurance Framework and 
supporting processes for governance and the 
management of risk;

2. An assessment of the range of individual 
opinions arising from audit assignments, con-
tained within risk-based plans that have been 
reported throughout the year. This assessment 
has taken account of the relative materiality 
of these areas and management’s progress in 
respect of addressing control weaknesses;

3. Brought forward Internal Audit assurances;

4. An assessment of the organisation’s response 
to Internal Audit findings, and

5. Consideration of significant factors outside the 
work of Internal Audit.

Assurance Framework 
and supporting 

processes

Brought forward 
Internal Audit 

assurances

Responses to Internal 
Audit* Findings

Outturn of Internal 
Audit Plan

Significant other 
factors

2.2.3 Commentary

The below commentary provides the context for 
my opinion and together with the opinion should 
be read in its entirety.

Opinion Area Commentary

Design and operation 
of the Assurance 
Framework and 
supporting processes

The Board Assurance Framework has been updated during 2017/18 and presented 
to both Audit Committee and the Board. During 2017/18, the Board Assurance 
Framework was last presented to the Audit Committee on 13 February 2018 and to 
the Board on 28 February 2018.

The Board Assurance Framework is based on the Trust’s strategic objectives and 
an analysis of the principal risks to achieving those objectives. The key controls that 
have been put in place to manage the risks have been documented, and the sources 
of assurance for individual controls have been identified. The Board Assurance 
Framework therefore provides the Trust with a comprehensive mechanism for the 
management of the principal risks to meeting its strategic objectives and supports the 
compilation of the Annual Governance Statement.

Internal audit have reviewed the adequacy of the assurance framework in bringing 
together all of the activities and objectives of the Trust. No major issues of concern 
were identified.

Outturn of Internal 
Audit Plan

A table of individual opinions arising from audit assignments reported throughout 
the year is contained at Appendix A. Definitions of individual opinions are given at 
Appendix B.

Of the planned audits for 2017/18 that have been substantially completed to date, 
six provided substantial assurance, ten provided good assurance, three provided 
reasonable assurance and two provided limited assurance (although seven of these 
audits are not yet fully complete and so the assurance levels are provisional at this 
stage).

Brought forward 
Internal Audit 
assurances

The Head of Internal Audit Opinion for the year ended 31 March 2017 gave a level of 
assurance of ‘significant’.

We have continued to follow up on outstanding actions during 2017/18 and have 
confirmed that no significant actions remain outstanding.

Response to Internal 
Audit findings

There is a formal process in place to follow up on outstanding actions to address risks 
identified in internal audit reports. Progress against outstanding actions is reported 
in regular progress reports to the Audit Committee, with specific attention drawn to 
any actions where the target date has been put back, or where no update has been 
received from officers within the Trust.

It is for the Trust to consider whether any outstanding actions in relation to identified 
risks are sufficiently significant to be reflected in the Annual Governance Statement.

Significant factors 
outside the work of 
internal audit

While the Head of Internal Audit Opinion provides the Trust with assurances in 
relation to the areas covered by the internal audit plan, it is only one of the sources 
of assurance available to the Trust. As the Trust outsources some of its functions, 
assurances from third parties are equally as important when the Trust draws up its 
Annual Governance Statement. It is for the Trust to decide what assurance to take 
from these reports.
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3. Conformance with Public Sector Internal Audit Standards

During the year ended 31 March 2018 our work was governed by the Public 
Sector Internal Audit Standards. We have designed processes so as to ensure that 
the internal audit service delivered meets the requirements of these standards.

Appendix A Summary of work undertaken

Audit area
Assurance

Substantial Good Reasonable Limited

IM&T Audit Work - Server Operational Management 

Records Management 

Medical Equipment Management 

Facilities Management 

Risk Management Arrangements * 

Incident Management & Reporting 

Complaints & Claims Management 

Information Governance No assurance level provided

Board Reporting – Data Quality

Board Action Plans * 

Financial Systems – Payroll 

Financial Systems – Service Line Reporting / Budgetary Control 

Financial Systems – Travel & Expense Claims 

Financial Systems – Accounts Payable 

Cost Improvement Programme * 

Establishment Visit – Market Weighton GP Practice 

Establishment Visit - Humber Centre

IM&T Audit Work - Wireless Network 

IM&T Audit Work – PCMIS General Controls * 

Infection Prevention & Control * 

Patient Experience & Involvement 

Bank, Agency & Locum Staffing * 

Assurance Framework Opinion * 

Financial Systems – Petty Cash 

Total 6 10 3 2

Note 
For audits marked ‘*’, the final audit report has not yet been issued and the assurance level is therefore 
provisional. Audits where no information is included above have not yet progressed sufficiently to enable 
the assurance level to be determined and are therefore excluded from the opinion statement.

Follow-up of agreed actions

We seek evidence of implementation of agreed actions from management and 
we report on the status of overdue actions in our progress reports to the Audit 
Committee. This information is shown graphically in the below chart.

10% 90%

Progress against agreed actions

agreed actions fully implemented

agreed actions with revised 
implementation date

Definitions of Assurance Levels assigned to individual audit assignments

Assurance levels

Substantial Governance, risk management and control arrangements provide substantial assurance 
that the risks identified are managed effectively. Compliance with the control frame-
work was found to be taking place.

Good Governance, risk management and control arrangements provide a good level of assur-
ance that the risks identified are managed effectively. A high level of compliance with 
the control framework was found to be taking place. Minor remedial action is required

Reasonable Governance, risk management and control arrangements provide reasonable assur-
ance that the risks identified are managed effectively. Compliance with the control 
framework was not found to be taking place in a consistent manner. Some moderate 
remedial action is required.

Limited Governance, risk management and control arrangements provide limited assurance that 
the risks identified are managed effectively. Compliance with the control framework 
was not found to be taking place. Immediate and fundamental remedial action is 
required.
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Humber Teaching NHS Foundation Trust

Annual accounts for the year ended 31 March 2018

Signed …………………………………………….

Name M Moran
Job title Chief Executive
Date 23 May 2018

Foreword to the accounts

Humber Teaching NHS Foundation Trust

These accounts, for the year ended 31 March 2018, have been prepared by Humber Teaching 
NHS Foundation Trust in accordance with paragraphs 24 & 25 of Schedule 7 within the National 
Health Service Act 2006.



Statement of Comprehensive Income

2017/18 2016/17

Note £000 £000
Operating income from patient care activities 3 104,652 132,918 
Other operating income 4 13,734 9,986 
Operating expenses 6, 8 (112,727) (142,456)

Operating surplus/(deficit) from continuing operations 5,659 448 

Finance income 11 36 35 
Finance expenses 12 (222) (222)
PDC dividends payable (2,234) (1,998)

Net finance costs (2,420) (2,185)
Other gains / (losses) 13, 4.2 456 - 

Surplus / (deficit) for the year 3,695 (1,737)

Other comprehensive income

Will not be reclassified to income and expenditure:
Impairments 7 1,325 (2,405)
Revaluations 16 3,268 7,175 

Remeasurements of the net defined benefit pension scheme liability / asset 32 39 (173)
Total comprehensive income / (expense) for the period 8,327 2,860 

Page 3

Statement of Financial Position
31 March 

2018
31 March 

2017
Note £000 £000

Non-current assets
Intangible assets 14 879 1,117 
Property, plant and equipment 15 78,493 68,412 

Total non-current assets 79,372 69,529 
Current assets

Inventories 18 127 125 
Trade and other receivables 19 12,232 10,678 
Cash and cash equivalents 22 8,613 9,426 

Total current assets 20,972 20,229 
Current liabilities

Trade and other payables 23 (14,487) (12,706)
Borrowings 26 (273) (255)
Provisions 28 (164) (414)
Other liabilities 25 (356) (468)

Total current liabilities (15,280) (13,843)
Total assets less current liabilities 85,064 75,915 
Non-current liabilities

Borrowings 26 (4,383) (4,214)
Provisions 28 (801) (827)
Other liabilities 25 (707) (405)

Total non-current liabilities (5,891) (5,446)
Total assets employed 79,173 70,469 

Financed by 
Public dividend capital 44,320 43,943 
Revaluation reserve 17,164 12,959 
Other reserves (130) (169)
Income and expenditure reserve 17,819 13,736 

Total taxpayers' equity 79,173 70,469 

The notes on pages 9 to 49 form part of these accounts.

Name 
Position Chief Executive
Date 23 May 2018
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Information on reserves

Public dividend capital
Public dividend capital (PDC) is a type of public sector equity finance based on the excess of assets over liabilities at the 
time of establishment of the predecessor NHS organisation. Additional PDC may also be issued to trusts by the 
Department of Health and Social Care. A charge, reflecting the cost of capital utilised by the Trust, is payable to the 
Department of Health and Social Care as the public dividend capital dividend.

Revaluation reserve
Increases in asset values arising from revaluations are recognised in the revaluation reserve, except where, and to the 
extent that, they reverse impairments previously recognised in operating expenses, in which case they are recognised in 
operating income. Subsequent downward movements in asset valuations are charged to the revaluation reserve to the 
extent that a previous gain was recognised unless the downward movement represents a clear consumption of economic 
benefit or a reduction in service potential.

Other reserves
The balance on this reserve is the movement in the East Riding of Yorkshire Council Pension scheme relating to the 
membership of Humber Teaching NHS Foundation Trust.

Income and expenditure reserve
The balance of this reserve is the accumulated surpluses and deficits of the Trust.
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Statement of Cash Flows

2017/18 2016/17
Note £000 £000 

Cash flows from operating activities
Operating surplus 5,659 448 

Non-cash income and expense:
Depreciation and amortisation 6.1 2,946 2,844 
Net impairments 7 (2,813) 2,942 
Income recognised in respect of capital donations 4 - (402)
Non-cash movements in on-SoFP pension liability 341 174 
(Increase) / decrease in receivables and other assets (2,303) (3,688)
(Increase) / decrease in inventories (2) (26)
Increase / (decrease) in payables and other liabilties 1,546 (1,891)
Increase / (decrease) in provisions (296) (335)

Net cash generated from / (used in) operating activities 5,078 66 
Cash flows from investing activities

Interest received 36 27 
Purchase of intangible assets (52) (308)
Purchase of property, plant, equipment and investment property (4,237) (3,027)

Net cash generated from / (used in) investing activities (4,253) (3,308)
Cash flows from financing activities

Public dividend capital received 377 250 
Movement on loans from the Department of Health and Social Care 187 (255)
Other interest paid (188) (178)
PDC dividend (paid) / refunded (2,014) (1,802)
Cash flows from (used in) other financing activities - (13)

Net cash generated from / (used in) financing activities (1,638) (1,998)
Increase / (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (813) (5,240)
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 April - brought forward 9,426 14,666 
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 March 22.1 8,613 9,426 
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Notes to the Accounts

1 Note 1 Accounting policies and other information

1 Note 1.1 Basis of preparation

NHS Improvement, in exercising the statutory functions conferred on Monitor, has directed that the financial statements 
of the Trust shall meet the accounting requirements of the Department of Health and Social Care Group Accounting 
Manual (GAM), which shall be agreed with HM Treasury. Consequently, the following financial statements have been 
prepared in accordance with the GAM 2017/18 issued by the Department of Health and Social Care. The accounting 
policies contained in the GAM follow International Financial Reporting Standards to the extent that they are meaningful 
and appropriate to the NHS, as determined by HM Treasury, which is advised by the Financial Reporting Advisory 
Board. Where the GAM permits a choice of accounting policy, the accounting policy that is judged to be most 
appropriate to the particular circumstances of the Trust for the purpose of giving a true and fair view has been selected. 
The particular policies adopted are described below. These have been applied consistently in dealing with items 
considered material in relation to accounts. 

1 Note 1.1.1 Accounting convention
These accounts have been prepared under the historical cost convention modified to account for the revaluation of 
property, plant and equipment, intangible assets, inventories and certain financial assets and financial liabilities.

2 Note 1.1.2 Going concern
These accounts have been prepared on a going concern basis. After making enquiries, the directors have a reasonable 
expectation that Humber Teaching NHS Foundation Trust has adequate resources to continue in operational existence 
in the foreseeable future.  For this reason, they continue to adopt the going concern basis in preparing the accounts.

2 Note 1.2 Critical judgements in applying accounting policies
In the application of Humber Teaching NHS Foundation Trust’s accounting policies, management is required to make 
judgments, estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent 
from other sources.  The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and other factors 
that are considered to be relevant.  Actual results may differ from those estimates and the estimates, and underlying 
assumptions are continually reviewed.  Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the 
estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period or in the period of the revision and future periods if the revision 
affects both current and future periods.

2 Note 1.2.1 Sources of estimation uncertainty
The following are assumptions about the future and other major sources of estimation uncertainty that have a 
significant risk of resulting in a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next 
financial year:
Humber Teaching NHS Foundation Trust applies estimates for the pension provision, injury provision based on average 
life expectancy and the property plant and equipment valuation.  
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3 Note 1.3 Interests in other entities
Humber Teaching NHS Foundation Trust owns by control, Humber Primary Care Limited.  
Humber Primary Care Limited is a limited company, set up in November 2017 to hold the General Medical Services 
(GMS) contract for Peeler House.  It has not been consolidated due to materiality.

Humber Teaching NHS Foundation Trust is the Corporate Trustee of the Humber Teaching NHS Foundation Trust 
Charitable Funds - Registered charity number 1052727.  The Charitable Funds have not been consolidated into the 
accounts of Humber Teaching NHS Foundation Trust on the basis of immateriality.  The balance of the funds at 31 
March 2018 is £527k.

4 Note 1.4 Income

Income in respect of services provided is recognised when, and to the extent that, performance occurs and is 
measured at the fair value of the consideration receivable. The main source of income for the Trust is contracts with 
commissioners in respect of health care services. 

Where income is received for a specific activity which is to be delivered in a subsequent financial year, that income is 
deferred. 

Income from the sale of non-current assets is recognised only when all material conditions of sale have been met, and 
is measured as the sums due under the sale contract.

Revenue grants and other contributions to expenditure
Government grants are grants from government bodies other than income from commissioners or Trusts for the 
provision of services. Where a grant is used to fund revenue expenditure it is taken to the Statement of Comprehensive 
Income to match that expenditure. 

The value of the benefit received when accessing funds from the Government's apprenticeship service is recognised as 
income at the point of receipt of the training service. Where these funds are paid directly to an accredited training 
provider, the corresponding notional expense is also recognised at the point of recognition for the benefit.

5 Note 1.5 Expenditure on employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits
Salaries, wages and employment-related payments such as social security costs and the apprenticeship levy are 
recognised in the period in which the service is received from employees. The cost of annual leave entitlement earned 
but not taken by employees at the end of the period is recognised in the financial statements to the extent that 
employees are permitted to carry-forward leave into the following period.

Pension costs 
NHS Pension Scheme
Past and present employees are covered by the provisions of the NHS Pension Scheme. The scheme is an unfunded, 
defined benefit scheme that covers NHS employers, general practices and other bodies, allowed under the direction of 
Secretary of State, in England and Wales. The scheme is not designed in a way that would enable employers to identify 
their share of the underlying scheme assets and liabilities. Therefore, the schemes are accounted for as though they 
are defined contribution schemes.

Employer's pension cost contributions are charged to operating expenses as and when they become due. 

Additional pension liabilities arising from early retirements are not funded by the scheme except where the retirement is 
due to ill-health. The full amount of the liability for the additional costs is charged to the operating expenses at the time 
the Trust commits itself to the retirement, regardless of the method of payment.
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Local Government Pension Scheme
Since December 2016, some employees are members of the East Riding of Yorkshire Local Government Pension 
Scheme, which is a defined benefit pension scheme. The scheme assets and liabilities attributable to these employees 
can be identified and are recognised in the Trust’s accounts. The assets are measured at fair value, and the liabilities at 
the present value of future obligations. 

The increase in the liability arising from pensionable service earned during the year is recognised within operating 
expenses. The net interest cost during the year arising from the unwinding of the discount on the net scheme liabilities 
is recognised within finance costs. Remeasurements of the defined benefit plan are recognised in the income and 
expenditure reserve and reported in the Statement of Comprehensive Income as an item of ‘other comprehensive 
income’.

6 Note 1.6 Expenditure on other goods and services

Expenditure on goods and services is recognised when, and to the extent that they have been received, and is 
measured at the fair value of those goods and services. Expenditure is recognised in operating expenses except where 
it results in the creation of a non-current asset such as property, plant and equipment. 
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7 Note 1.7 Property, plant and equipment

7 Note 1.7.1 Recognition
Recognition
Property, plant and equipment is capitalised where:    

•  it is held for use in delivering services or for administrative purposes;
•  it is probable that future economic benefits will flow to, or service potential be provided to, Humber Teaching NHS 
Foundation Trust;
•  it is expected to be used for more than one financial year;
•  the cost of the item can be measured reliably;
• the item has cost of at least £5,000, or
• collectively, a number of items have a cost of at least £5,000 and individually have a cost of more than £250, are 
functionally interdependent, had broadly simultaneous purchase dates, are anticipated to have similar disposal dates 
and are under single managerial control
• Items form part of the initial equipping and setting-up cost of a new building, ward or unit, irrespective of their 
individual or collective cost

Where a large asset, for example a building, includes a number of components with significantly different asset lives, 
eg plant and equipment, then these components are treated as separate assets and depreciated over their own useful 
economic lives.

7 Note 1.7.2 Measurement
Valuation
All property, plant and equipment assets are measured initially at cost, representing the costs directly attributable to 
acquiring or constructing the asset and bringing it to the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of 
operating in the manner intended by management.

All assets are measured subsequently at valuation.   The valuation of buildings has been undertaken with reference to 
the buildings' current condition and agreed obsolescence and assumed that over its life it will be maintained to its 
current condition. The valuation has been undertaken on a modern equivalent asset basis and reflects the current 
service potential of the Trust. The last full revaluation of the Trusts estate was 31st March 2017, undertaken by the 
District Valuer, which including inspecting all of the Trust buildings. An interim valuation was undertaken at the 31st 
March 2018
An item of property, plant and equipment which is surplus with no plan to bring it back into use is valued at fair value 
under IFRS 13, if it does not meet the requirements of IAS 40 of IFRS 5. 

Subsequent expenditure
Subsequent expenditure relating to an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised as an increase in the 
carrying amount of the asset when it is probable that additional future economic benefits or service potential deriving 
from the cost incurred to replace a component of such item will flow to the enterprise and the cost of the item can be 
determined reliably. Where a component of an asset is replaced, the cost of the replacement is capitalised if it meets 
the criteria for recognition above. The carrying amount of the part replaced is de-recognised. Other expenditure that 
does not generate additional future economic benefits or service potential, such as repairs and maintenance, is 
charged to the Statement of Comprehensive Income in the period in which it is incurred.

Depreciation
Items of property, plant and equipment are depreciated on a straight line basis over their remaining useful economic 
lives in a manner consistent with the consumption of economic or service delivery benefits. Freehold land is considered 
to have an infinite life and is not depreciated. 

Property, plant and equipment which has been reclassified as ‘held for sale’ ceases to be depreciated upon the 
reclassification. Assets in the course of construction and residual interests in off-Statement of Financial Position PFI 
contract assets are not depreciated until the asset is brought into use or reverts to the trust, respectively. 
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Revaluation gains and losses
Revaluation gains are recognised in the revaluation reserve, except where, and to the extent that, they reverse a 
revaluation decrease that has previously been recognised in operating expenses, in which case they are recognised in 
operating income.

Revaluation losses are charged to the revaluation reserve to the extent that there is an available balance for the asset 
concerned, and thereafter are charged to operating expenses. 

Gains and losses recognised in the revaluation reserve are reported in the Statement of Comprehensive Income as an 
item of ‘other comprehensive income’.

Impairments
In accordance with the GAM , impairments that arise from a clear consumption of economic benefits or of service 
potential in the asset are charged to operating expenses. A compensating transfer is made from the revaluation reserve 
to the income and expenditure reserve of an amount equal to the lower of (i) the impairment charged to operating 
expenses; and (ii) the balance in the revaluation reserve attributable to that asset before the impairment.

An impairment that arises from a clear consumption of economic benefit or of service potential is reversed when, and to 
the extent that, the circumstances that gave rise to the loss is reversed. Reversals are recognised in operating 
expenditure to the extent that the asset is restored to the carrying amount it would have had if the impairment had never 
been recognised. Any remaining reversal is recognised in the revaluation reserve. Where, at the time of the original 
impairment, a transfer was made from the revaluation reserve to the income and expenditure reserve, an amount is 
transferred back to the revaluation reserve when the impairment reversal is recognised.
Other impairments are treated as revaluation losses. Reversals of ‘other impairments’ are treated as revaluation gains.

7 Note 1.7.3 Derecognition
Assets intended for disposal are reclassified as ‘held for sale’ once all of the following criteria are met: 

• the asset is available for immediate sale in its present condition subject only to terms which are usual and customary 
for such sales;
• the sale must be highly probable ie:

         - management are committed to a plan to sell the asset
         - an active programme has begun to find a buyer and complete the sale
         - the asset is being actively marketed at a reasonable price
         - the sale is expected to be completed within 12 months of the date of classification as ‘held for sale’ and
         - the actions needed to complete the plan indicate it is unlikely that the plan will be dropped or significant changes 
made to it.

Following reclassification, the assets are measured at the lower of their existing carrying amount and their ‘fair value 
less costs to sell’.  Depreciation ceases to be charged. Assets are de-recognised when all material sale contract 
conditions have been met.

Property, plant and equipment which is to be scrapped or demolished does not qualify for recognition as ‘held for sale’ 
and instead is retained as an operational asset and the asset’s economic life is adjusted. The asset is de-recognised 
when scrapping or demolition occurs.

7 Note 1.7.4 Donated and grant funded assets 
Donated and grant funded property, plant and equipment assets are capitalised at their fair value on receipt. The 
donation/grant is credited to income at the same time, unless the donor has imposed a condition that the future 
economic benefits embodied in the grant are to be consumed in a manner specified by the donor, in which case, the 
donation/grant is deferred within liabilities and is carried forward to future financial years to the extent that the condition 
has not yet been met.

The donated and grant funded assets are subsequently accounted for in the same manner as other items of property, 
plant and equipment. 
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8 Note 1.7.5 Useful economic lives of property, plant and equipment 

Min life Max life
Years Years

Land - - 
Buildings, excluding dwellings 5 89 
Plant & machinery - 10 
Transport equipment - 7 
Information technology - 5 
Furniture & fittings - 10 

8 Note 1.8 Intangible assets 

8 Note 1.8.1 Recognition 

Software
Software which is integral to the operation of hardware, e.g. an operating system, is capitalised as part of the relevant 
item of property, plant and equipment. Software which is not integral to the operation of hardware, e.g. application 
software, is capitalised as an intangible asset.

Useful economic lives reflect the total life of an asset and not the remaining life of an asset. The range of useful 
economic lives are shown in the table below:

Finance-leased assets (including land) are depreciated over the shorter of the useful economic life or the lease term, 
unless the Trust expects to acquire the asset at the end of the lease term in which case the assets are depreciated in 
the same manner as owned assets above.

Intangible assets are non-monetary assets without physical substance which are capable of being sold separately from 
the rest of the Trust’s business or which arise from contractual or other legal rights. They are recognised only where it is 
probable that future economic benefits will flow to, or service potential be provided to, the Trust and where the cost of 
the asset can be measured reliably. 

Internally generated intangible assets
Internally generated goodwill, brands, mastheads, publishing titles, customer lists and similar items are not capitalised 
as intangible assets.

Expenditure on research is not capitalised.

Expenditure on development is capitalised only where all of the following can be demonstrated:

• the project is technically feasible to the point of completion and will result in an intangible asset for sale or use
• the Trust intends to complete the asset and sell or use it
• the Trust has the ability to sell or use the asset
• how the intangible asset will generate probable future economic or service delivery benefits, e.g., the presence of a 
market for it or its output, or where it is to be used for internal use, the usefulness of the asset;
• adequate financial, technical and other resources are available to the Trust to complete the development and sell or 
use the asset and
• the Trust can measure reliably the expenses attributable to the asset during development.
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8 Note 1.8.2 Measurement 

8 Note 1.8.3 Useful economic lives of intangible assets 

Min life Max life
Years Years

Software licences - 5 
Other (purchased) - 89 

Intangible assets are recognised initially at cost, comprising all directly attributable costs needed to create, produce and 
prepare the asset to the point that it is capable of operating in the manner intended by management.

Subsequently intangible assets are measured at current value in existing use. Where no active market exists, intangible 
assets are valued at the lower of depreciated replacement cost and the value in use where the asset is income 
generating. Revaluations gains and losses and impairments are treated in the same manner as for property, plant and 
equipment. An intangible asset which is surplus with no plan to bring it back into use is valued at fair value under IFRS 
13, if it does not meet the requirements of IAS 40 of IFRS 5.

Intangible assets held for sale are measured at the lower of their carrying amount or “fair value less costs to sell”.

Amortisation
Intangible assets are amortised on a straight line basis, over their expected useful economic lives in a manner 
consistent with the consumption of economic or service delivery benefits.

Useful economic lives reflect the total life of an asset and not the remaining life of an asset.  The range of useful 
economic lives are shown in the table below:
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9 Note 1.9 Inventories 

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value using the first-in first-out cost formula.  This is 
considered to be a reasonable approximation to fair value due to the high turnover of stocks.  

# Note 1.10 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash is cash in hand and deposits with any financial institution repayable without penalty on notice of not more than 24 
hours. Cash equivalents are investments that mature in 3 months or less from the date of acquisition and that are 
readily convertible to known amounts of cash with insignificant risk of change in value.

In the Statement of Cash Flows, cash and cash equivalents are shown net of bank overdrafts that are repayable on 
demand and that form an integral part of the Trust’s cash management. Cash, bank and overdraft balances are 
recorded at current values.

# Note 1.11 Financial instruments and financial liabilities

Recognition 
Financial assets and financial liabilities which arise from contracts for the purchase or sale of non-financial items (such 
as goods or services), which are entered into in accordance with the Trust’s normal purchase, sale or usage 
requirements, are recognised when, and to the extent which, performance occurs, i.e., when receipt or delivery of the 
goods or services is made.

De-recognition
All financial assets are de-recognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the assets have expired or the Trust 
has transferred substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership.

Financial liabilities are de-recognised when the obligation is discharged, cancelled or expires.

Financial assets and financial liabilities at “fair value through income and expenditure”
Financial assets and financial liabilities at “fair value through income and expenditure” are financial assets or financial 
liabilities held for trading. A financial asset or financial liability is classified in this category if acquired principally for the 
purpose of selling in the short-term. Derivatives are also categorised as held for trading unless they are designated as 
hedges.
Humber Teaching NHS Foundation Trust does not have any embedded derivatives that have different risks and 
characteristics to their host contract.

Loans and receivables
Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments which are not quoted in 
an active market.

Humber Teaching NHS Foundation Trust’s loans and receivables comprise, cash and cash equivalents, NHS 
receivables, trade receivables, accrued income and other receivables.

Loans and receivables are recognised initially at fair value, net of transactions costs, and are measured subsequently at 
amortised cost, using the effective interest method. The effective interest rate is the rate that discounts exactly 
estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset or, when appropriate, a shorter period, to 
the net carrying amount of the financial asset.

Interest on loans and receivables is calculated using the effective interest method and credited to the Statement of 
Comprehensive Income.
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Financial liabilities
All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred, and measured subsequently 
at amortised cost using the effective interest method. The effective interest rate is the rate that discounts exactly 
estimated future cash payments through the expected life of the financial liability or, when appropriate, a shorter period, 
to the net carrying amount of the financial liability.

They are included in current liabilities except for amounts payable more than 12 months after the Statement of Financial 
Position date, which are classified as long-term liabilities.

Interest on financial liabilities carried at amortised cost is calculated using the effective interest method and charged to 
finance costs. Interest on financial liabilities taken out to finance property, plant and equipment or intangible assets is 
not capitalised as part of the cost of those assets.

Loans from the Department of Health are recognised at historical cost.  Otherwise, financial liabilities are initially 
recognised at fair value.

Impairment of financial assets
At the Statement of Financial Position date, the Trust assesses whether any financial assets, other than those held at 
“fair value through income and expenditure” are impaired. Financial assets are impaired and impairment losses are 
recognised if, and only if, there is objective evidence of impairment as a result of one or more events which occurred 
after the initial recognition of the asset and which has an impact on the estimated future cash flows of the asset.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount of the impairment loss is measured as the difference between 
the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the revised future cash flows discounted at the asset’s original 
effective interest rate. The loss is recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income and the carrying amount of 
the asset is reduced through the use of an allowance account/bad debt provision.
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# Note 1.12 Leases
Leases are classified as finance leases when substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership are transferred to the 
lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

# Note 1.12.1 The Trust as lessee 

Finance leases
Where substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of a leased asset are borne by the Trust, the asset is recorded 
as property, plant and equipment and a corresponding liability is recorded. The value at which both are recognised is 
the lower of the fair value of the asset or the present value of the minimum lease payments, discounted using the 
interest rate implicit in the lease. 

The asset and liability are recognised at the commencement of the lease. Thereafter the asset is accounted for an item 
of property plant and equipment. 

The annual rental is split between the repayment of the liability and a finance cost so as to achieve a constant rate of 
finance over the life of the lease. The annual finance cost is charged to Finance Costs in the Statement of 
Comprehensive Income. The lease liability, is de-recognised when the liability is discharged, cancelled or expires.

Operating leases
Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term. Lease incentives 
are recognised initially as a liability and subsequently as a reduction of rentals on a straight-line basis over the lease 
term.

Contingent rentals are recognised as an expense in the period in which they are incurred.

Leases of land and buildings
Where a lease is for land and buildings, the land component is separated from the building component and the 
classification for each is assessed separately. 

# Note 1.12.2 The Trust as lessor

Finance leases
Amounts due from lessees under finance leases are recorded as receivables at the amount of the Trust net investment 
in the leases. Finance lease income is allocated to accounting periods to reflect a constant periodic rate of return on the 
Trusts' net investment outstanding in respect of the leases.

Operating leases
Rental income from operating leases is recognised on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease. Initial direct costs 
incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and 
recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.
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# Note 1.13 Provisions 

The Trust recognises a provision where it has a present legal or constructive obligation of uncertain timing or amount; 
for which it is probable that there will be a future outflow of cash or other resources; and a reliable estimate can be 
made of the amount. The amount recognised in the Statement of Financial Position is the best estimate of the 
resources required to settle the obligation. Where the effect of the time value of money is significant, the estimated risk-
adjusted cash flows are discounted using the discount rates published and mandated by HM Treasury.  

Clinical negligence costs 
NHS Resolution operates a risk pooling scheme under which the Trust pays an annual contribution to NHS Resolution, 
which, in return, settles all clinical negligence claims. Although NHS Resolution is administratively responsible for all 
clinical negligence cases, the legal liability remains with the Trust. The total value of clinical negligence provisions 
carried by NHS resolution on behalf of the Trust is disclosed at note 28.2 but is not recognised in the Trust’s accounts. 

Non-clinical risk pooling 
The Trust participates in the Property Expenses Scheme and the Liabilities to Third Parties Scheme. Both are risk 
pooling schemes under which the Trust pays an annual contribution to NHS Resolution and in return receives 
assistance with the costs of claims arising. The annual membership contributions, and any “excesses” payable in 
respect of particular claims are charged to operating expenses when the liability arises. 

# Note 1.14 Contingencies
Contingent assets (that is, assets arising from past events whose existence will only be confirmed by one or more future 
events not wholly within the entity’s control) are not recognised as assets, but are disclosed in note 29 where an inflow 
of economic benefits is probable.
Contingent liabilities are not recognised, but are disclosed in note 32, unless the probability of a transfer of economic 
benefits is remote. 

Contingent liabilities are defined as:

• possible obligations arising from past events whose existence will be confirmed only by the occurrence of one or more 
uncertain future events not wholly within the entity’s control; or

• present obligations arising from past events but for which it is not probable that a transfer of economic benefits will 
arise or for which the amount of the obligation cannot be measured with sufficient reliability.

# Note 1.15 Public dividend capital
Public dividend capital (PDC) is a type of public sector equity finance based on the excess of assets over liabilities at 
the time of establishment of the predecessor NHS organisation. HM Treasury has determined that PDC is not a financial 
instrument within the meaning of IAS 32. 

At any time, the Secretary of State can issue new PDC to, and require repayments of PDC from, the Trust. PDC is 
recorded at the value received.

A charge, reflecting the cost of capital utilised by the Trust, is payable as public dividend capital dividend. The charge is 
calculated at the rate set by HM Treasury (currently 3.5%) on the average relevant net assets of the Trust during the 
financial year. Relevant net assets are calculated as the value of all assets less the value of all liabilities, except for 
(i) donated assets (including lottery funded assets), 
(ii) average daily cash balances held with the Government Banking Services (GBS) and National Loans Fund (NLF) 
deposits, excluding cash balances held in GBS accounts that relate to a short-term working capital facility, and 
(iii) any PDC dividend balance receivable or payable. 

In accordance with the requirements laid down by the Department of Health and Social Care (as the issuer of PDC), the 
dividend for the year is calculated on the actual average relevant net assets as set out in the “pre-audit” version of the 
annual accounts. The dividend thus calculated is not revised should any adjustment to net assets occur as a result the 
audit of the annual accounts.
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# Note 1.16 Value added tax 
Most of the activities of the Trust are outside the scope of VAT and, in general, output tax does not apply and input tax on purchases is not 
recoverable. Irrecoverable VAT is charged to the relevant expenditure category or included in the capitalised purchase cost of fixed assets. 
Where output tax is charged or input VAT is recoverable, the amounts are stated net of VAT.

# Note 1.17 Corporation tax
Under current regulations Humber Teaching NHS Foundation Trust is not liable to corporation tax, as the Trust's activities are purely 
healthcare related and therefore exempt.

# Note 1.18 Foreign exchange 
The functional and presentational currencies of Humber Teaching NHS Foundation Trust are sterling.

A transaction which is denominated in a foreign currency is translated into the functional currency at the spot exchange rate on the date of 
the transaction. 

Where Humber Teaching NHS Foundation Trust has assets or liabilities denominated in a foreign currency at the Statement of Financial 
Position date:

• monetary items (other than financial instruments measured at 'fair value through income and expenditure') are translated at the spot 
exchange rate on 31 March 2018
• non-monetary assets and liabilities measured at historical cost are translated using the spot exchange rate at the date of the transaction 
• non-monetary assets and liabilities measured at fair value are translated using the spot exchange rate at the date the fair value was 
determined

Exchange gains or losses on monetary items (arising on settlement of the transaction or on re-translation at the Statement of Financial 
Position date) are recognised in income or expense in the period in which they arise.

Exchange gains or losses on non-monetary assets and liabilities are recognised in the same manner as other gains and losses on these 
items.

# Note 1.19 Third party assets 

Assets belonging to third parties (such as money held on behalf of patients) are not recognised in the accounts since the Trust has no 
beneficial interest in them. However, they are disclosed in a separate note to the accounts in accordance with the requirements of HM 
Treasury’s FReM. This is disclosed in Note 25.2

# Note 1.20 Losses and special payments

Losses and special payments are items that Parliament would not have contemplated when it agreed funds for the health service or 
passed legislation. By their nature they are items that ideally should not arise. They are therefore subject to special control procedures 
compared with the generality of payments. They are divided into different categories, which govern the way that individual cases are 
handled. Losses and special payments are charged to the relevant functional headings in expenditure on an accruals basis, including 
losses which would have been made good through insurance cover had the Trust not been bearing their own risks (with insurance 
premiums then being included as normal revenue expenditure).

However the losses and special payments note is compiled directly from the losses and compensations register which reports on an 
accrual basis with the exception of provisions for future losses.
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# Note 1.21 Transfers of functions to or from other NHS bodies or local government bodies

For functions that have been transferred to and from another NHS body, the assets and liabilities transferred are recognised in the 
accounts as at the date of transfer. The assets and liabilities are not adjusted to fair value prior to recognition. 

For property plant and equipment assets and intangible assets, the cost and accumulated depreciation / amortisation balances from the 
transferring entity’s accounts are preserved on recognition in Humber Teaching NHS Foundation Trust’s accounts. Where the transferring 
body recognised revaluation reserve balances attributable to the assets, Humber Teaching NHS Foundation Trust makes a transfer from 
its income and expenditure reserve to its revaluation reserve to maintain transparency within public sector accounts. 

# Note 1.22 Early adoption of standards, amendments and interpretations
No new accounting standards or revisions to existing standards have been early adopted in 2017/18.

# Note 1.23 Standards, amendments and interpretations in issue but not yet effective or adopted
The DH GAM does not require the following Standards and Interpretations to be applied in 2017/18. These standards are still subject to HM 
Treasury FReM adoption, with the government implementation date for IFRS 16 still subject to HM Treasury consideration.

      ●      IFRS 9 Financial Instruments – Application required for accounting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018, but not yet 
adopted by the FReM: early adoption is not therefore permitted
      ●      IFRS 16 Leases – Application required for accounting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019, but not yet adopted by the 
FReM: early adoption is not therefore permitted.
      ●      IFRIC 22 Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance Consideration – Application required for accounting periods beginning on or 
after 1 January 2018. This standard will have minimal impact on the Trust, as the majority of transactions are in GBP

# Note 1.24 Entity Change of Name
Humber Teaching NHS Foundation Trust was formally know as Humber NHS Foundation Trust.  The change of name occurred on the 1st 
April 2018.

2 Note 2 Operating Segments

Humber Teaching NHS Foundation Trust activities are purely healthcare related, therefore no segmental analysis is required.
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Note 3 Operating income from patient care activities

Note 3.1 Income from patient care activities (by nature) 2017/18 2016/17
£000 £000 

Mental health services
Cost and volume contract income 1,811 1,566 
Block contract income 71,875 72,158 
Clinical partnerships providing mandatory services (including S75 agreements) 1,184 1,246 
Clinical income for the secondary commissioning of mandatory services - - 
Other clinical income from mandatory services 6,912 3,847 

Community services
*Community services income from CCGs and NHS England 13,960 44,023 
Income from other sources (e.g. local authorities) 4,060 4,427 

All services
Private patient income 36 33 
Other clinical income 4,814 5,618 

Total income from activities 104,652 132,918 

Note 3.2 Income from patient care activities (by source)

Income from patient care activities received from: 2017/18 2016/17
£000 £000 

NHS England 14,701 15,767 
Clinical commissioning groups 74,834 100,810 
Department of Health and Social Care - 20 
Other NHS providers 2,063 2,813 
NHS other 125 - 
Local authorities 7,881 8,178 
Non-NHS: private patients - - 
Non-NHS: overseas patients (chargeable to patient) - - 
NHS injury scheme 36 33 
Non NHS: other 5,012 5,297 

Total income from activities 104,652 132,918 
Of which:

Related to continuing operations 104,652 132,918 
Related to discontinued operations - - 

* The 2016/17 community services income figure includes income relating to the East Riding Community Services contract.  
This contract was transferred to City Healthcare Partnership from the 1st April 2017 and does not form part of the current 
year figures.  The community services figure reported for 2016/17 of  £48,450k, has been split and reclassified to match the 
current year to aid understanding.
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3 Note 3.3 Overseas visitors (relating to patients charged directly by the provider)

2017/18 2016/17
£000 £000 

Income recognised this year - - 
Cash payments received in-year - - 
Amounts added to provision for impairment of receivables - - 
Amounts written off in-year - - 

4 Note 4 Other operating income
2017/18 2016/17

£000 £000 
Research and development 416 422 
Education and training 3,473 3,676 
Receipt of capital grants and donations - 402 
Non-patient care services to other bodies 3,854 2,094 
Support from the Department of Health and Social Care for mergers - - 
Sustainability and transformation fund income 2,597 2,496 
Rental revenue from operating leases 3,023 - 
Income in respect of staff costs where accounted on gross basis 371 896 
Other income - - 

Total other operating income 13,734 9,986 
Of which:

Related to continuing operations 13,734 9,986 
Related to discontinued operations - - 

4 Note 4.1 Income from activities arising from commissioner requested services

2017/18 2016/17
£000 £000 

Income from services designated as commissioner requested services 113,410 139,307 
Income from services not designated as commissioner requested services 3,810 3,752 

Total 117,220 143,059 

4 Note 4.2 Profits and losses on disposal of property, plant and equipment

Under the terms of its provider licence, the trust is required to analyse the level of income from activities that has arisen 
from commissioner requested and non-commissioner requested services. Commissioner requested services are 
defined in the  provider license and are services that commissioners believe would need to be protected in the event of 
provider failure. This information is provided in the table below:

The profit on disposal of property figure of £729k relates to Westwood Hospital, less a capital debtor of £273k.  The 
original disposal of the property took place in 2014/15.
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Note 5 Fees and charges
2017/18 2016/17

£000 £000 
Income - - 
Full cost - - 

Surplus / (deficit) - - 

Note 6.1 Operating expenses
2017/18 2016/17

£000 £000 
Purchase of healthcare from NHS and DHSC bodies 160 239 
Purchase of healthcare from non-NHS and non-DHSC bodies 2,276 1,945 
Staff and executive directors costs 92,230 113,012 
Remuneration of non-executive directors 125 119 
Supplies and services - clinical (excluding drugs costs) 2,872 5,420 
Supplies and services - general 1,099 1,607 
Drug costs (drugs inventory consumed and purchase of non-inventory drugs) 832 1,025 
Consultancy costs 173 212 
Establishment 2,784 2,538 
Premises 2,808 3,168 
Transport (including patient travel) 1,408 2,368 
Depreciation on property, plant and equipment 2,656 2,657 
Amortisation on intangible assets 290 187 
Net impairments (2,813) 2,942 
Increase/(decrease) in provision for impairment of receivables 26 9 
Change in provisions discount rate(s) - - 
Audit fees payable to the external auditor

audit services- statutory audit 59 66 
other auditor remuneration (external auditor only) 29 45 

Internal audit costs 185 102 
Clinical negligence 672 533 
Legal fees 188 203 
Insurance 179 - 
Research and development 510 393 
Education and training 1,226 818 
Rentals under operating leases 2,749 2,841 
Losses, ex gratia & special payments 4 7 
Other - - 

Total 112,727 142,456 
Of which:

Related to continuing operations 112,727 142,456 
Related to discontinued operations - - 
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Note 6.2 Other auditor remuneration
2017/18 2016/17

£000 £000 
Other auditor remuneration paid to the external auditor:

 Other non-audit services 29 45 
Total 29 45 

Note 6.3 Limitation on auditor's liability

Note 7 Impairment of assets
2017/18 2016/17

£000 £000 
Net impairments charged to operating (surplus) / deficit resulting from:

Changes in market price (2,813) 2,942 
Total net impairments charged to operating (surplus) / deficit (2,813) 2,942 

Impairments charged to the revaluation reserve (1,325) 2,405 
Total net impairments (4,138) 5,347 

The limitation on auditor's liability for external audit work is £5m (2016/17: £5m).

Humber Teaching NHS Foundation Trust revalued its Land and Buildings during the period, resulting in an impairment 
gain credited to revaluation reserve of £1,325k (2016/17: loss £2,405k), £1,008k as an operating expense (2016/17 
£6,752k) and £3,821k reversal of impairments credited to operating income in the statement of comprehensive income 
(2016/17 £3,810k).  This resulted in a net reversal of impairment of £4,138k (2016/17 impairment loss £5,347k)
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Note 8 Employee benefits
2017/18 2016/17

Total Total
£000 £000 

Salaries and wages 74,409 90,467 
Social security costs 6,840 8,220 
Apprenticeship levy 343 - 
Employer's contributions to NHS pensions 8,588 10,377 
Pension cost - other 579 355 
Temporary staff (including agency) 2,887 4,094 

Total staff costs 93,646 113,513 
Of which

Costs capitalised as part of assets 122 108 

Note 8.1 Retirements due to ill-health

During 2017/18 there were 6 early retirements from the Trust agreed on the grounds of ill-health (2 in the year ended 31 
March 2017).  The estimated additional pension liabilities of these ill-health retirements is £489k (£21k in 2016/17).  

The cost of these ill-health retirements will be borne by the NHS Business Services Authority - Pensions Division.
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Note 9 Pension costs

The next actuarial valuation is to be carried out as at 31 March 2016 and is currently being prepared. The direction 
assumptions are published by HM Treasury which are used to complete the valuation calculations, from which the final 
valuation report can be signed off by the scheme actuary.  This will set the employer contribution rate payable from April 
2019 and will consider the cost of the Scheme relative to the employer cost cap. There are provisions in the Public 
Service Pension Act 2013 to adjust member benefits or contribution rates if the cost of the Scheme changes by more 
than 2% of pay. Subject to this ‘employer cost cap’ assessment, any required revisions to member benefits or 
contribution rates will be determined by the Secretary of State for Health after consultation with the relevant stakeholders.

b) Full actuarial (funding) valuation
The purpose of this valuation is to assess the level of liability in respect of the benefits due under the schemes (taking 
into account recent demographic experience), and to recommend contribution rates payable by employees and 
employers. 
The last published actuarial valuation undertaken for the NHS Pension Scheme was completed for the year ending 31 
March 2012. The Scheme Regulations allow for the level of contribution rates to be changed by the Secretary of State for 
Health, with the consent of HM Treasury, and consideration of the advice of the Scheme Actuary and employee and 
employer representatives as deemed appropriate. 

Past and present employees are covered by the provisions of the two NHS Pension Schemes.  Details of the benefits 
payable and rules of the Schemes can be found on the NHS Pensions website at www.nhsbsa.nhs.uk/pensions.  Both 
are unfunded defined benefit schemes that cover NHS employers, GP practices and other bodies, allowed under the 
direction of the Secretary of State in England and Wales. They are not designed to be run in a way that would enable 
NHS bodies to identify their share of the underlying scheme assets and liabilities. Therefore, each scheme is accounted 
for as if it were a defined contribution scheme: the cost to the NHS body of participating in each scheme is taken as equal 
to the contributions payable to that scheme for the accounting period.  

In order that the defined benefit obligations recognised in the financial statements do not differ materially from those that 
would be determined at the reporting date by a formal actuarial valuation, the FReM requires that “the period between 
formal valuations shall be four years, with approximate assessments in intervening years”. An outline of these follows:

a) Accounting valuation
A valuation of scheme liability is carried out annually by the scheme actuary (currently the Government Actuary’s 
Department) as at the end of the reporting period. This utilises an actuarial assessment for the previous accounting 
period in conjunction with updated membership and financial data for the current reporting period, and is accepted as 
providing suitably robust figures for financial reporting purposes. The valuation of the scheme liability as at 31 March 
2018, is based on valuation data as 31 March 2017, updated to 31 March 2018 with summary global member and 
accounting data. In undertaking this actuarial assessment, the methodology prescribed in IAS 19, relevant FReM 
interpretations, and the discount rate prescribed by HM Treasury have also been used.

The latest assessment of the liabilities of the scheme is contained in the report of the scheme actuary, which forms part 
of the annual NHS Pension Scheme Accounts. These accounts can be viewed on the NHS Pensions website and are 
published annually. Copies can also be obtained from The Stationery Office.

Some employees are members of the NEST Pension Scheme. NEST was set up by the Government especially for auto 
enrolment. The intention of the scheme is to ensure that all employees have access to a scheme that meets the 
requirements of the pension rules. Employer contributions to the Scheme in 2017/2018 were £10k.

Note 9.1 NEST Pension Scheme

Note 9.1 Local government superannuation scheme

East Riding of Yorkshire Council Pension Scheme

Further disclosure of the East Riding of Yorkshire Council Pension scheme relating to the Trust is shown in note 32.

Page 27

# Note 10 Operating leases

# Note 10.1 Humber Teaching NHS Foundation Trust as a lessor

2017/18 2016/17
£000 £000 

Operating lease revenue
Minimum lease receipts 3,023 - 

Total 3,023 - 

31 March 
2018

31 March 
2017

£000 £000 
Future minimum lease receipts due: 

- not later than one year; 3,023 - 
- later than one year and not later than five years; 2,224 - 

Total 5,247 - 

# Note 10.2 Humber Teaching NHS Foundation Trust as a lessee

2017/18 2016/17
£000 £000 

Operating lease expense
Minimum lease payments 2,749 2,841 

Total 2,749 2,841 

31 March 
2018

31 March 
2017

£000 £000 
Future minimum lease payments due: 

- not later than one year; 2,333 2,421 
- later than one year and not later than five years; 1,828 1,357 
- later than five years. 4,130 3,261 

Total 8,291 7,039 

Humber Teaching NHS Foundation Trust receives operating income from buildings leased to private tenants and local 
authorities.

This note discloses income generated in operating lease agreements where Humber Teaching NHS Foundation Trust is 
the lessor.

This note discloses costs and commitments incurred in operating lease arrangements where Humber Teaching NHS 
Foundation Trust is the lessee.
Following NHS reforms under the Health and Social Care Act 2012 (Commencement No.4, Transitional, Savings and 
Transitory Provisions Order 2013), the costs of properties leased through NHS Property Services are disclosed  in the 
accounts, as substance of form dictates, as operating leases, though there are no formal lease agreements in place.  
Minimum lease payments represent the recharge by NHS Property Services in year.
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Note 11 Finance income
Finance income represents interest received on assets and investments in the period.

2017/18 2016/17
£000 £000 

Interest on bank accounts 36 27 
Other finance income - 8 

Total 36 35 

Note 12.1 Finance expenditure
Finance expenditure represents interest and other charges involved in the borrowing of money.

2017/18 2016/17
£000 £000 

Interest expense:
Loans from the Department of Health and Social Care 172 193 

Total interest expense 172 193 
Unwinding of discount on provisions 20 29 
Other finance costs 30 - 

Total finance costs 222 222 

Note 12.2 The late payment of commercial debts (interest) Act 1998 / Public 
Contract Regulations 2015

Note 13 Other gains / (losses)
2017/18 2016/17

£000 £000 
Gains on disposal of assets 456 - 

Total gains / (losses) on disposal of assets 456 - 
Total other gains / (losses) 456 - 

The gain on disposal of assets  of £456k, relates  to a receivable in relation to the sale of Westwood hospital in 2014/15.

Humber Teaching NHS Foundation Trust made no payments relating to the late payment of commercial debt in 2017/18 ( 
£Nil 2016/17)
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Note 16 Revaluations of property, plant and equipment

Note 17 Disclosure of interests in other entities

Note 18 Inventories
31 March 2018

31 March 
2017

£000 £000 
Consumables 127 125 

Total inventories 127 125 
of which:
Held at fair value less costs to sell - - 

Humber Teaching NHS Foundation Trust’s Land and Buildings revalued at 31 March 2018 by 
independent valuers The District Valuers Office, as part of an interim valuation.  The last full valuation of 
the Trust's property , by the district valuer, took place as at 31st March 2017.

The valuation of buildings has been undertaken with reference to the buildings' current condition and 
agreed obsolescence and assumed that over its life it will be maintained to its current condition. The 
valuation has been undertaken on a modern equivalent asset basis and reflects the current service 
potential of the Trust. A desktop revaluation of the Trusts estate was undertaken by the District Valuer, 
which including inspecting some of the Trust buildings. 

Humber Teaching NHS Foundation Trust is the Corporate Trustee of the Humber Teaching NHS 
Foundation Trust Charitable Funds - Registered charity number 1052727.  The Charitable Funds have 
not been consolidated into the accounts of Humber Teaching NHS Foundation Trust on the basis of 
materiality.  The balance of the funds at 31 March 2018 is £523k.

Inventories recognised in expenses for the year were £922k (2016/17: £1,936k).  Write-down of inventories recognised as 
expenses for the year were £0k (2016/17: £0k).

Humber Teaching NHS Foundation Trust owns by control, Humber Primary Care Limited.  
Humber Primary Care Limited is a limited company, set up in November 2017 to hold the GMS contract 
for Peeler House.  It has not been consolidated in the accounts of Humber Teaching NHS Foundation 
Trust on the basis of materiality.
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# Note 19.1 Trade receivables and other receivables
31 March 

2018
31 March 

2017
£000 £000 

Current
Trade receivables 8,582 7,127 
Capital receivables (including accrued capital related income) - 273 
Accrued income 2,390 1,530 
Provision for impaired receivables (74) (48)
Deposits and advances - - 
Prepayments (non-PFI) 344 805 
Interest receivable - - 
PDC dividend receivable - - 
VAT receivable 293 45 
Other receivables 697 946 

Total current trade and other receivables 12,232 10,678 

Of which receivables from NHS and DHSC group bodies: 
Current 6,697 7,571 
Non-current - - 

Page 36



# Note 19.2 Provision for impairment of receivables
2017/18 2016/17

£000 £000 
At 1 April as previously stated 48 42 

Increase in provision 26 9 
Amounts utilised - (3)

At 31 March 74 48 

# Note 19.3 Credit quality of financial assets

Trade and 
other  

receivables

Investments 
& Other 

financial 
assets

Trade and 
other  

receivables

Investments 
& Other 

financial 
assets

Ageing of impaired financial assets £000 £000 £000 £000 
Over 180 days 74 - 48 - 
Total 74 - 48 - 

Ageing of non-impaired financial assets past their due date
0 - 30 days 632 - 699 - 
30-60 Days 819 - 987 - 
60-90 days 286 - 230 - 
90- 180 days 158 - 378 - 
Over 180 days 868 - 391 - 
Total 2,763 - 2,685 - 

# Note 20 Other assets

# Note 21 Non-current assets held for sale and assets in disposal groups
Humber Teaching NHS Foundation Trust held no non-current assets for sale and assets in disposal groups in 2017/18 
(2016/17: £Nil).

The provision consists of non NHS receivables, outstanding for more than six months past their due date.

31 March 2018 31 March 2017

The provision consists of non NHS receivables outstanding for more than six months past their due date.

Humber Teaching NHS Foundation Trust held no other assets in 2017/18 (2016/17: £Nil).
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# Note 21.1 Liabilities in disposal groups

# Note 22.1 Cash and cash equivalents movements

2017/18 2016/17
£000 £000 

At 1 April 9,426 14,659 
Net change in year (813) (5,233)

At 31 March 8,613 9,426 
Broken down into:

Cash at commercial banks and in hand 179 429 
Cash with the Government Banking Service 8,434 8,997 

Total cash and cash equivalents as in SoFP 8,613 9,426 
Total cash and cash equivalents as in SoCF 8,613 9,426 

# Note 22.2 Third party assets held by the trust

31 March 
2018

31 March 
2017

£000 £000 
Bank balances 429 372 

Total third party assets 429 372 

The trust held cash and cash equivalents which relate to monies held by the foundation trust on behalf of patients or 
other parties. This has been excluded from the cash and cash equivalents figure reported in the accounts.

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank, in hand and cash equivalents. Cash equivalents are readily 
convertible investments of known value which are subject to an insignificant risk of change in value.

Humber Teaching NHS Foundation Trust held no non - current assets for sale and assets in disposal groups in 2017/18 
(2016/17 £Nil)
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Note 23.1 Trade and other payables
31 March 

2018
31 March 

2017
£000 £000 

Current 
Trade payables 5,948 2,992 
Capital payables 1,900 1,997 
Accruals 1,468 4,162 
Receipts in advance (including payments on account) 54 - 
Social security costs 1,128 - 
VAT payables - - 
Other taxes payable 1,721 2,136 
PDC dividend payable 233 13 
Accrued interest on loans 10 10 
Other payables 2,025 1,396 

Total current trade and other payables 14,487 12,706 

Non-current

Of which payables from NHS and DHSC group bodies: 
Current 4,222 2,056 
Non-current - - 

Note 23.2 Early retirements in NHS payables above

Note 24 Other financial liabilities
Humber Teaching NHS Foundation Trust had no other financial liabilities in the year 2017/18 (2016/17: £Nil).

Humber Teaching NHS Foundation Trust held no non-current payables in the year 2017/18 (2015/16: £Nil).

Humber Teaching NHS Foundation Trust made no payments for early retirements in 2017/18 (2016/17: £Nil).
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Note 25 Other liabilities
31 March 

2018
31 March 

2017
£000 £000 

Current 
Deferred income 356 468 

Total other current liabilities 356 468 

Non-current
Net pension scheme liability 707 405 

Total other non-current liabilities 707 405 

Note 26 Borrowings
31 March 

2018
31 March 

2017
£000 £000 

Current 
Loans from the Department of Health and Scoial Care 273 255 

Total current borrowings 273 255 

Non-current
Loans from the Department of Health and Scoial Care 4,383 4,214 

Total non-current borrowings 4,383 4,214 

Note 27 Finance leases
Humber Teaching NHS Foundation Trust had no finance leases in the year 2017/18 (2016/17: £Nil).
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Note 28.2 Clinical negligence liabilities

Note 29 Contingent assets and liabilities
31 March 

2018
31 March 

2017
£000 £000 

Value of contingent liabilities 
NHS Resolution legal claims (20) (56)
Gross value of contingent liabilities (20) (56)
Amounts recoverable against liabilities - - 
Net value of contingent liabilities (20) (56)
Net value of contingent assets - - 

Note 30 Contractual capital commitments
31 March 

2018
31 March 

2017
£000 £000 

Property, plant and equipment 106 615 
Total 106 615 

Note 31 Other financial commitments

At 31 March 2018, £1,534k was included in provisions of NHS Resolution in respect of clinical negligence liabilities of 
Humber Teaching NHS Foundation Trust (31 March 2017: £150k).

Humber Teaching NHS Foundation Trust is not  committed to making payments under non-cancellable contracts (which 
are not leases, PFI contracts or other service concession arrangements) in 2017/18 (2016/17 £Nil)

Contractual capital commitments relate to capital schemes which are not completed in the year but which Humber 
Teaching NHS Foundation Trust have contracts to complete.

NHS Resolution legal claims relate to legal claims that have been identified as a contingent liability by NHS Resolution.

Page 42



Note 32 Defined benefit pension schemes

Financial Assumptions

31 March 2018 31 March 2017
Pension Increase Rate 2.40% 2.20%
Salary Increase Rate 2.60% 3.70%
Discount Rate 2.70% 3.60%

31 March 2018 31 March 2017
£000 £000

Equities Securities 255 151 
Debt Securities 99 43 
Private Equity 34 19 
Real Estate 85 48 
Investment Funds & Unit Trusts 258 135 
Cash & Cash Equivalents 21 12 

752 408 

Approximate % 
increase to 
Defined Benefit 
Obligation

Approximate 
monetary 
amount (£000)

13% 196
0%                        -   

13% 196

Assets Obligations
£(000) £(000) £(000) % of pay

Projected Current Service cost 621 (621) (39.7%)
Total Service Cost 0 621 (621) (39.7%)
Interest income on plan assets 25 25 1.60%
Interest cost on defined benefit obligation 49 49 (3.1%)
Total Net Interest Cost 25 49 74 (1.5%)
Total included in SoCI 25 670 (547) (41.2%)

Note 32.4 Projected defined benefit cost for the period to 31 March 2019

Net (liability)/asset
Period Ended 31 March 2019

Note 32.3 Sensitivity Analysis

Change in assumptions at 31 March 2018

0.5% decrease in Real Discount Rate
0.5% increase in the Salary Increase Rate
0.5% increase in the Pension Increase Rate

In the financial year 2017/18 Humber Teaching NHS Foundation Trust contributed £564k to the fund (2016/17: £355k).

A pension deficit of £707k is included in the Statement of Financial Position as at 31 March 2018 (2016/17: £405k)

Note 32.1 The main actuarial assumptions used at the date of the Statement of Financial Position in measuring the present value 
of the defined benefit scheme liabilities are:

Note 32.2 The estimated Fund asset allocation is as follows:

East Riding of Yorkshire Council Pension Scheme

In 2015/16 49 members of staff transferred employment from Kingston upon Hull Council and in 2017/18 39 members of staff transferred 
employment from East Riding of Yorkshire Council.  Both sets of transferring staff transferred with active membership of the  Pension Fund, 
which is a defined benefits scheme.

Humber Teaching NHS Foundation Trust's obligations in respect of pension liabilities for the transferring staff is with effect from the 
respective dates of transfer and no obligation is included for the period of employment before the transfer.

The Trust commissioned Hymans Robinson to prepare an actuarial report to provide full pension details in accordance with IAS19.  
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2017/18 2016/17
£000 £000 

Present value of the defined benefit obligation at 1 April (813) (151)
Current service cost (564) (355)
Interest cost (30) (13)
Contribution by plan participants (89) (82)
Remeasurement of the net defined benefit (liability) / asset:
 - Actuarial (gains) / losses 37 (212)
Benefits paid - - 
Past service costs - - 
Business combinations - - 
Curtailments and settlements - - 

Present value of the defined benefit obligation at 31 March (1,459) (813)

Plan assets at fair value at 1 April 408 93 
Interest income 15 8 
Remeasurement of the net defined benefit (liability) / asset
 - Return on plan assets 2 39 
 - Actuarial gain / (losses) - - 

 - Changes in the effect of limiting a net defined benefit asset to the asset ceiling - - 
Contributions by the employer 238 186 
Contributions by the plan participants 89 82 
Benefits paid - - 
Business combinations - - 
Settlements - - 

Plan assets at fair value at 31 March 752 408 

Plan surplus/(deficit) at 31 March (707) (405)

31 March 
2018

31 March 
2017

£000 £000 
Present value of the defined benefit obligation (1,459) (813)
Plan assets at fair value at 752 408 

Fair value of any reimbursement right - - 
The effect of the asset ceiling - - 

Net (liability) / asset recognised in the SoFP (707) (405)

Note 32.5 Amounts recognised in the SoCI 
2017/18 2016/17

£000 £000 
Current service cost (564) (355)
Interest expense / income (15) (5)
Past service cost - - 
Losses on curtailment and settlement - - 
Total net (charge) / gain recognised in SOCI (579) (360)

Note 32.3 Changes in the defined benefit obligation and fair value of plan assets during the year

Note 32.4 Reconciliation of the present value of the defined benefit obligation and the present value of the plan 
assets to the assets and liabilities recognised in the balance sheet
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# Note 33 On-SoFP PFI, LIFT or other service concession arrangements
Humber Teaching NHS Foundation Trust does not have any PFI or LIFT schemes.

# Note 34 Financial instruments

# Note 34.1 Financial risk management
Financial reporting standard IFRS 7 requires disclosure of the role that financial instruments have 
had during the period in creating or changing the risks a body faces in undertaking its activities.  
Because of the continuing service provider relationship that Humber Teaching NHS Foundation 
Trust has with Clinical Commissioning Groups and the way those Clinical Commissioning Groups 
are financed, Humber Teaching NHS Foundation Trust is not exposed to the degree of financial risk 
faced by business entities.  Also, financial instruments play a much more limited role in creating or 
changing risk than would be typical of listed companies, to which the financial reporting standards 
mainly apply.  Humber Teaching NHS Foundation Trust has limited powers to borrow or invest 
surplus funds and financial assets and liabilities are generated by day-to-day operational activities 
rather than being held to change the risks facing it in undertaking its activities.

Humber Teaching NHS Foundation Trust’s treasury management operations are carried out by the 
finance department, within parameters defined formally within standing financial instructions and 
policies agreed by the board of directors.  Treasury activity is subject to review by Humber 
Teaching NHS Foundation Trust’s internal auditors.

Currency risk
Humber Teaching NHS Foundation Trust is principally a domestic organisation with the great 
majority of transactions, assets and liabilities being in the UK and sterling based, has no overseas 
operations and therefore has low exposure to currency rate fluctuations.

Interest rate risk
Humber Teaching NHS Foundation Trust borrows from government for capital expenditure.  The 
borrowings are for 1 – 25 years, in line with the life of the associated assets, and interest is charged 
at the National Loans Fund rate, fixed for the life of the loan.  Humber Teaching NHS Foundation 
Trust therefore has low exposure to interest rate fluctuations.

Credit risk
The majority of income derives from contracts with other public sector bodies, and therefore there is 
low exposure to credit risk. The maximum exposures as at 31 March 2018 are in receivables from 
customers, as disclosed in the Trade and other receivables note. ( See Note 19.1)

Liquidity risk
Humber Teaching NHS Foundation Trust’s operating costs were incurred under contracts with 
Clinical Commissioning Groups in 2017/18. These entities are financed from resources voted 
annually by Parliament. Humber Teaching NHS Foundation Trust funds its capital expenditure from 
internally raised funds or by borrowing and therefore is not exposed to significant liquidity risks.
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Note 35.1 Carrying values of financial assets

Loans and 
receivables 

£000 £000 £000 £000 
Assets as per SoFP as at 31 March 2018

Embedded derivatives - - - - - 
Trade and other receivables excluding non 
financial assets 9,205 - - - 9,205 
Other investments / financial assets - - - - - 

Cash and cash equivalents at bank and in hand 8,613 - - - 8,613 
Total at 31 March 2018 17,818 - - - 17,818 

Loans and 
receivables 

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 
Assets as per SoFP as at 31 March 2017

Embedded derivatives - - - - - 
Trade and other receivables excluding non 
financial assets 9,828 - - - 9,828 
Other investments / financial assets - - - - - 

Cash and cash equivalents at bank and in hand 9,426 - - - 9,426 
Total at 31 March 2017 19,254 - - - 19,254 

Note 35.2 Carrying value of financial liabilities

£000 £000 £000

- - - 
4,656 - 4,656 

- - - 
- - - 

14,487 - 14,487 
- - - 
- - - 

19,143 - 19,143 

Total book 
value

Held to 
maturity at 

£000 

Available-
for-sale

Total book 
value

Held to 
maturity

Available-
for-sale

Other financial liabilities

Other 
financial 
liabilities

Liabilities at 
fair value 

through the 
I&E

Total book 
value

Assets at 
fair value 

through the 
I&E 

Assets at 
fair value 

through the 
I&E

Liabilities as per SoFP as at 31 March 2018
Embedded derivatives
Borrowings excluding finance lease and PFI liabilities
Obligations under finance leases
Obligations under PFI, LIFT and other service concession contracts 
Trade and other payables excluding non financial liabilities 

Provisions under contract
Total at 31 March 2018
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£000 £000 £000

- - - 
4,469 - 4,469 

- - - 
- - - 

12,706 - 12,706 
- - - 
- - - 

17,175 - 17,175 

Note 35.3 Fair values of financial assets and liabilities

Note 35.4 Maturity of financial liabilities
31 March 

2018
31 March 

2017
£000 £000 

14,760 12,961 
4,383 4,214 

- - 
- - 

19,143 17,175 

Embedded derivatives
Borrowings excluding finance lease and PFI liabilities
Obligations under finance leases

In more than one year but not more than two years
In more than two years but not more than five years
In more than five years

In one year or less

Total at 31 March 2017

The fair value of Humber Teaching NHS Foundation Trust's financial assets and financial liabilities at 31 March 2018 
equates to book value.

Other 
financial 
liabilities

Liabilities at 
fair value 

through the 
I&E

Total book 
value

Provisions under contract

Total

Liabilities as per SoFP as at 31 March 2017

Trade and other payables excluding non financial liabilities 
Other financial liabilities

Obligations under PFI, LIFT and other service concession contracts 
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Note 36 Losses and special payments

Total 
number of 

cases
Total value 

of cases

Total 
number of 

cases
Total value 

of cases
Number £000 Number £000 

Losses
Cash losses - - - - 
Fruitless payments - - - - 
Bad debts and claims abandoned - - 4 3 
Stores losses and damage to property - - 5 2 

Total losses - - 9 5 
Special payments

Compensation under court order or legally binding 
arbitration award - - - - 
Extra-contractual payments - - - - 
Ex-gratia payments 3 4 4 2 
Special severence payments - - - - 
Extra-statutory and extra-regulatory payments - - - - 

Total special payments 3 4 4 2 
Total losses and special payments 3 4 13 7 
Compensation payments received - - 

2017/18 2016/17

During 2017/18 Humber Teaching NHS Foundation Trust had no bad debts written off (2016/17: 4 totalling £3k) and 
no other cases (2016/17: 5 totalling £2k).There have been 3 special payments made in 2017/18 totalling £4k 
(2016/17:4 totalling £2k)
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Note 37 Related parties

Income Expenditure Receivables Payables Income Expenditure Receivables Payables

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
City Health Care Partnership 4,875 89 4,080 5 1,160
Health Education England  3,527 1 219 3,667 887
Hull & East Yorkshire Hospitals NHS Trust 919 1,073 126 685 1,109 1,221 400 550
Humber NHS Trust Charitable Funds 23
NHS East Riding Of Yorkshire CCG 28,668 12 948 12 56,734 2,208
NHS England 19,702 51 2,200 46 18,341 787 23
NHS Hull CCG 36,479 27 1,092 52 34,794 37 777
NHS Pensions Agency 8,588 1,128 10,377 1,396
NHS Property Services 246 1,429 16 1,773 5 1,983 644
NHS Vale of York CCG 1,126 10 1,099 33
Rotherham, Doncaster and South Humber Foundation Trust 29 1 211 0 35
Northern Lincolnshire & Goole Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust 2 24 1 0 4 83 5
Tees, Esk and Wear Valleys NHS Foundation Trust 1,168 478 1,381 44 296
York Teaching Hospital NHS Foundation Trust 433 429 398 235 427 911 134 84
Yorkshire Ambulance Service NHS Trust 21 199 137 62

Local Government Bodies

Kingston Upon Hull City Council 378 75 233 401 87 180 7
East Riding of Yorkshire Council 7,715 1,148 184 5 8,627 192 503 19

Charitable Fund Transactions

Hull and East Yorkshire Smile Foundation 60 10

Note 38 Transfers by absorption

Note 39 Prior period adjustments

Note 40 Events after the reporting date

During the year one  board member and one Non Executive board member of the NHS Foundation Trust Board had a related party interests in an entity 
which has undertaken transactions with the NHS Foundation Trust.  Elizabeth Thomas has a family member working at City Healthcare Partnership and 
Mike Smith provided services to Rotherham, Doncaster and South Humber Foundation Trust as an Associate Hospital Manager .  Andrew Milner is a 
Trustee and Director at Hull and East Yorkshire Smile Foundation

The Department of Health and Social Care is regarded as a related party.  During the period Humber Teaching NHS Foundation Trust has had a 
significant number of material transactions with the Department, and with other entities for which the Department is regarded as the parent Department.  
These entities are listed below:

2017/18 2016/17

In addition, Humber Teaching NHS Foundation Trust has had a number of material transactions with other Government Departments and other central Government bodies. Humber 
Teaching NHS Foundation Trust had no other related party transactions.

Humber Teaching NHS Foundation Trust had no transfers by absorption in 2017/18 (2016/17 £Nil)

With effect from 1 May 2018, Humber Teaching NHS Foundation Trust will commence the provision of community services to NHS Scarborough and Ryedale Clinical 
Commissioning Group.  This contract will represent £10m income annually for Humber Teaching NHS Foundation Trust and the transfer of the existing workforce under TUPE 
regulations. 

Humber Teaching NHS Foundation Trust had no prior period adjustments in 2017/18 (2016/17 £Nil)

From the 1st April 2018, the name of Humber Teaching NHS Foundation Trust, changed  to Humber Teaching NHS Foundation Trust.
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Humber Teaching NHS Foundation Trust

Willerby Hill  
Beverley Road  

Willerby 
East Riding of Yorkshire 

HU10 6ED

Tel: 01482 301700

www.humber.nhs.uk


